LAVA

BOARD OF DIRECTOR’S
(As on signing date i.e., 04.09.2024)

Mr. Shailendra Nath Rai, Whole Time Director
Mr. Sunil Raina, Whole Time Director
Mr. Sanjeev Agarwal, Whole Time Director
Mr. Sunil Bhalla, Non-Executive Director
Mr. Vishal Sehgal, Non-Executive Director
Ms. Deepika Gupta, Non-Executive Director
Mr. Anupam, Shrivastava, Independent Director

Mr. Ajay Kumar Singh, Independent Director

Mr. Rajiv Kumar Singh, Independent Director

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Mr. Rajesh Sethi

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ritesh Singh

STATUTORY AUDITORS
M/s Raj Gupta & Co., Chartered Accountants

Registered Office Corporate Office

Lava International Ltd. Lava International Ltd. T +91 120 4637333
B-14, House-2, Basement Shiviok A-56, Sector-64 F +91 120 4637240
Commercial Complex, Karampura, Delhi Noida-201301, India www.lavamobiles.com

West, Delhi-110015
CIN:-U32201DL2009PLC188920
E-mail: compliance1@lavainternational.in



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To,
The Members,

Your directors are pleased to present the 15th Annual Report together with the audited Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 31st March 2024.

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The highlights of Standalone and Consolidated Financials result are as follows:

(Rs. in millions)
Standalone Consolidated

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23 2023-24* 2022-23*
Revenue from Operations 23,295.45 22,056.74 36,460.55 49,026.55

208.71 273.08 209.43 273.84
Other Income
Total Revenue 23,504.16 22,329.82 36,669.98 49,300.39
Total Expense 22,385.32 21,273.95 35,639.58 46,787.03
Earnings before interest, 1,118.84 1,055.87 1,030.40 2,513.36
tax,depreciation and
amortization (EBIDTA)
Less: Depreciation and
amortization expenses 227.57 226.61 230.19 1,286.56
Less: Finance Cost 345.24 366.41 345.56 367.22
Share of (profit)/loss of joint
venture, associates (net of -- -- 0.23 0.22
tax)
Profit before Tax (PBT) 546.03 462.85 454.42 859.36
Less: Current Tax 169.96 118.05 170.12 118.19
Less: Tax charge/(credit) relating
to earlier years 0.06 (16.98) 0.06 (16.98)




Less: Deferred Tax charge/ -52.77 8.48 -54.28 5.69
(Income)

Profit for the year (PAT) 428.78 353.30 115.90 752.46

Other Comprehensive
income/(Expense) 0.23 (2.14) 406.54 -37.39
(net of tax)
Total Comprehensive income

(net of tax) 428.55 355.44 -68.02 789.85

e The consolidated financial statements for the current financial year have been prepared without
considering financial statements of China Bird Centro Amercia, S.A, wholly owned subsidiary of the
reporting entity. Previous year figures (31st March 2023) have also been restated without considering
financial statement of China Bird Centro America, S.A (Refer Note 40 of Consolidated financial
statement).

2. OPERATIONS AND BUSINESS PERFORMANCE:

Standalone Performance:

The Company is in the business of Mobile phones, tablets and communication equipment.

During the year under consideration the Company has earned revenue from its operations of Rs 23,295.45 million,
which is 6 % higher as compared to previous year revenue from its operation of Rs. 22,056.74 million. Also, the
profit before tax during the financial year 2023-24 stood at Rs.546.03 Million as compared to previous year profit
before tax of Rs. 462.85 Million recording a rise of approximately 18%.

Consolidated Performance

During the year under consideration the Company has earned revenue on consolidated basis from its operations
of Rs. 36,460.55 Million, 26% lower as compared to previous year consolidated revenue of Rs.49,026.55 Million.
Further the profit before tax on consolidated basis during the financial year 2023-24 stood at Rs 454.42 Million as
compared to previous year profit before tax of Rs. 859.36 Million.

3. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

During the year under review, there is no change in the nature of business of the Company.
4. DIVIDEND

The Company will be utilizing the funds for the current operations and as well as for upcomingprojects, hence
Board do notrecommend any dividend for the financial year 2023-24.

5. TRANSFER TO RESERVES

During the year under review, no amount from the profit of the Company has been transferred to the General
Reserve of the Company.

6. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized Share Capital




During the year under review, there has been no change in the Authorized, Issued and Paid up Share capital of
the Company. As at 318t March 2024, the Authorized Share Capital of the Company stood at Rs. 3,961,000,000
(Rs. Three Hundred Ninety Six Crore Ten Lac only) divided into 7,82,000,000 equity shares of %5 each; (ii) 100,000
Preference Shares of 10 each; and (iii) 500,000 Preference Shares of ¥100. The paid up capital of the Company
also stood at Rs. 2,73,90,48,280 (Rs. Two Hundred Seventy Three Crore Ninety Lakh Forty Eight Thousand Two
Hundred Eighty Only) divided into (i) 54,11,26,216 equity shares of Rs. 5 each; (i) 1,00,000 Compulsory
Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each; and (iii) 324,172 Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of
Rs. 100 each as at 31.03.2024.

7. NON CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES AND DETAILS OF DEBENTURE TRUSTEE

During the year under review, the Company has not issued any Non-Convertible Debentures.
However, 250 Non-Convertible Debentures of Face Value of Rs. 10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Lakhs) each issued

by the Company for cash at par aggregating to Rs. 25,00,00,000/- (Twenty Five Crore only) on private placement
basis on September 27, 2021 were redeemed by the Company by making full payment on 25" September 2023.

8. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

As at March 31, 2024, your Company had 9 direct subsidiaries (these 9 direct subsidiaries further had 26
direct/indirect subsidiaries), 1 Joint venture and 1 Associate Company.

A report on the performance and financial position of each of the direct subsidiaries, JVs and Associates
has been provided in Form AOC-1 as per Section 129(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and is
attached herewith as Annexure-“A”.

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the Act, the audited financial statements including
consolidated financial statements along with relevant documents of the Company and financial statements
of the subsidiaries are available on the website of the Company https://www.lavamobiles.com/investor-
relations

The policy for determining material subsidiaries of the Company has been provided in the following link
https://www.lavamobiles.com/investor-relations#corporate-governance

9. DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the period under review, the Board of Directors of the Company comprised of eminent persons with
proven competence and integrity. Besides the experience, strong financial acumen, strategic astuteness,
and leadership qualities, they have a significant degree of commitment towards the Company and devoted
adequate time to the meetings and preparation. As at March 31, 2024 the board of directors comprised of
the following:

. Mr. Shailendra Nath Rai, Whole Time Director
. Mr. Sunil Bhalla, Non-Executive Director

. Mr. Vishal Sehgal, Non-Executive Director

. Mr. Sunil Raina, Whole Time Director

. Mr. Sanjeev Agarwal, Whole Time Director

. Mr. Anupam Shrivastava, Independent Director

OB WN -

Changes in Board

During the year under consideration, there had been following changes in the directorship of the Company.



S. Name Designation Appointment/ Date of
No. Cessation Appointment
/Cessation
1. Mr. Rahul Kansal Independent Director Cessation 22.08.2023
2. Mr. Vinod Rai Independent Director Cessation 22.08.2023
3. Mrs. Chitra Gouri Lal Independent Director Cessation 22.08.2023
4. Mr. Jitendra Kumar Independent Director Appointment 01.09.2023
5. Mr. Jitendra Kumar Independent Director Cessation 30.12.2023
6 Mr. Sunil Raina Additional / Whole Time Appointment 06.11.2023
) Director
7 Mr. Sunil Raina Additional / Whole Time Cessation 30.12.2023
' Director
8. Mr. Sunil Raina Whole Time Director Appointment 28.02.2024
Mr. Sanjeev Agarwal Additional / Whole Time Appointment 01.02.2024
Director
10 Mr. Hari Om Rai Chairman Cum Managing Cessation 28.02.2024
) Director
11.] Mr. Vinod Sharma Independent Director Cessation 19.03.2024
12.] Mr. Anupam Shrivastava Independent Director Appointment 26.03.2024

Also, post closure of financial year under consideration, the Board of the Company had been further
strengthened by the appointment of the following directors:

S. Name Designation Appointment/ Date of
No. Cessation Appointment/
Cessation
1.1 Mr. Ajay Kumar Singh Independent Director Appointment 16.04.2024
2 Ms. Deepika Gupta Additional Non-Executive Appointment 20.05.2024
Director
3 Mr. Rajiv Kumar Singh Additional Non-Executive Appointment 27.08.2024

Independent Director

Retire by Rotation

For the year under consideration Mr. Shailendra Nath Rai — Whole Time Director having DIN 00908417 and Mr. Sunil
Bhalla — Director having DIN 00980040 retired by rotation at the Annual General Meeting held on August 14,
2024.

Further in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Articles of
Association of the Company, Mr. Sunil Raina having DIN: 09302069 and Mr. Vishal Sehgal — Director having DIN
03127049, directors of the Company, will retire by rotation and being eligible offers themselves for their re-
appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Changes in Key Managerial Personnel

During the year under consideration Mr. Naveen Kumar (Membership No. A46279) resigned from the
position of Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company with effect from 31st August 2023.
Consequent upon his resignation, Ms. Preeti, an Associate Member of Institute of Company Secretary of
India possessing membership No. A53936 was appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
(Key Managerial Personnel) of the Company with effect from 1st September, 2023.

Further, post closure of the Financial Year under consideration Mr. Asitava Bose resigned from the position



of Chief Financial Officer of the Company with effect from the closing hours of 30" June 2024 and Ms.
Preeti (Membership No. A53936) resigned from the position of Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
of the Company with effect from closing hours of July 5, 2024. Consequent upon their resignation, Mr.
Rajesh Sethi, Group CFO of the Lava Group has been designated as Chief Financial Officer (Key
Managerial Personnel) of the Company with effect from September 4, 2024 and Mr. Ritesh Singh, an
Associate Member of Institute of Company Secretary of India possessing membership No. A61459 has

been appointed as Company Secretary (Key Managerial Personnel) of the Company with effect from
September 4, 2024.

10. MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year under review, 8 (Eight) meetings of the Board of Directors were held. The intervening gap
between two consecutive meetings was not more than the period prescribed under Companies Act, 2013.
The Board meeting dates are as under:-

Date of TotaI_Number of Directors Attendance
S. No. . associated as on the date of Number of directors % of
Meeting .
meeting attended attendance
1. 19.05.2023 8 3 37.5%
2. 07.07.2023 8 3 37.5%
3 01.09.2023 5 3 60%
) (morning)
4 01.09.2023 5 3 60%
] (evening)
5. 25.10.2023 6 5 83.33%
6. 06.11.2023 6 5 83.33%
7. 01.02.2024 5 4 80%
8. 26-03-2024 5 5 100%
MEETINGS OF COMMITTEE’S

The Board of Directors of the Company had duly constituted the following Committees:-
A) AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was constituted by a resolution of the Board dated September 22, 2014 and the Audit
Committee as on 313t March 2024 comprised of the following members:

Sr. No. Name of member Designation
1 Mr. Anupam Shrivastava Chairman

2 Mr. Sunil Raina Member

3 Mr. Sanjeev Agarwal Member

4 Ms. Preeti Secretary

Details of meeting of the members of the Audit Committee are as under: -

s Date of Total Number of members Attendance
: . associated as on the date of Number of members % of
No. Meeting .
meeting attended attendance
. 03.04.2023 4 3 75%
2. 07.07.2023 4 3 75%
3. 01.02.2024 3 2 66.66%




Further, the Audit Committee was last reconstituted on June 26, 2024. The Committee currently comprised of the
following members.

Sr. No. Name of member Designation
1 Mr. Anupam Shrivastava Chairman

2 Mr. Ajay Kumar Singh Member

3 Mr. Shailendra Nath Rai Member

B) NOMINATION, REMUNERATION AND COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination, Remuneration and Compensation Committee was constituted by a resolution of the Board dated
June 20, 2011 and The Nomination, Remuneration and Compensation Committee as at 31st March 2024
comprised of the following members:

Sr. No. Name of member Designation

1 Mr. Anupam Shrivastava Chairman

2 Mr. Sunil Bhalla Member

3 Mr. Vishal Sehgal Member

Details of meeting of the members of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee are as under:-
s. Date of TotaI_Number of members Attendance
No. Meeting associated as on the date of Number of members % of
meeting attended attendance

1. 20.06.2023 4 2 50%
2. 01.09.2023 2 2 100%
3. 06.11.2023 3 3 100%
4. 01.02.2024 2 2 100%

Further, the Nomination, Remuneration and Compensation Committee was last reconstituted on June 26, 2024 in
compliance with section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Committee currently comprised of the following
members.

Sr. No. Name of member Designation
1 Mr. Anupam Shrivastava Chairman
2 Mr. Ajay Kumar Singh Member
3 Mr. Vishal Sehgal Member
C) IPO COMMITTEE

The Board has also constituted an IPO Committee pursuant to a resolution dated May 18, 2021. During the
Financial Year 2023-24, no meeting of IPO Committee was held. Further, the said Committee was dissolved
w.e.f 1st September 2023.

D) OPERATIONAL COMMITTEE

For operational convenience, the Board of directors of the Company had constituted Operational Committee with
effect from 17t February 2020. The Committee was last reconstituted on 26t March 2024 and comprised of the
following members as at 315t March 2024:

Sr. No. Name of member Designation
1 Mr. Sunil Raina Chairman

2 Mr. Shailendra Nath Rai Member

3 Mr. Sanjeev Agarwal Member




The operational Committee met as and when required during the year under review.

E) STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee was constituted by a resolution of the Board dated July 24, 2017 and
was last reconstituted on 26" June 2024 comprising of the following members:

Sr. No. Name of member Designation
1 Mr. Ajay Kumar Singh Chairman

2 Mr. Anupam Shrivastava Member

3 Mr. Sunil Raina Member

4 Mr. Shailendra Nath Rai Member

5 Mr. Sanjeev Agarwal Member

11. ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92 read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration)Rules, 2014,
the Annual Return of the Company for the F.Y. 2023-2024 shall be placed on the website of the Company at
https://www.lavamobiles.com/investor-relations#inevstor-relation

12. PUBLIC DEPOSITS

During the Financial Year 2023-24, your Company has not accepted any deposit within the meaning of
Section 73 and 74 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits)
Rules, 2014

13. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES
The Company being an unlisted public Company, Section 197 of the Act read with rule 5(2) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are not applicable on

the Company.

14. SECRETARIAL STANDARD

During the year 2023-24, the Company has complied with applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the
Institute of the Company Secretaries of India.

15. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE BOARD, COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS

The Companies Act, 2013 stipulate the evaluation of the performance of the Board, its Committees, Individual
Directors and the Chairperson. The Company has formulated a Board Evaluation template for performance
evaluation of the Independent Directors, the Board, its Committees and other individual Directors which
includes criteria for performance evaluation of the Non-Executive Directors and Executive Directors.

The template provides the criteria for assessing the performance of Directors and comprises of various key
areas such as attendance at Board and Committee Meetings, quality of contribution to Board discussions
and decisions, strategic insights or inputs regarding future growth of the Company and its performance,
ability to challenge views in a constructive manner, knowledge acquired regarding the Company’s business/
activities, understanding of industry and global trends, etc.

The evaluation involves self-evaluation by the Board Member and subsequent assessment by the Board of
Directors. A member of the Board will not participate in the discussion of his/her evaluation. The formal Board
evaluation as mandated under the Companies Act has been carried out during the year.



16. STATUTORY AUDITORS AND STATUTORY AUDIT REPORT

At the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 14t August 2024 for the financial year ended 315t March
2023, M/s Raj Gupta & Co.,Chartered Accountants (FRN: 00203N) were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of
the Company for a period of 5 years commencing from conclusion of the 14 Annual General Meeting held on
14" August 2024 until the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be held for the Financial Year ending
31st March, 2028 and that they shall conduct the Statutory Audit for the 5 Financial Years commencing from F.Y.
2023-24 till F.Y. 2027-28.

The Auditors Report on the accounts of the company for the year under consideration is self-explanatoryand
requires no comments. There is no qualification/ reservation/ adverse remark or disclaimer inthe Auditors’ Report.
The Audit Report is annexed with the financial statements of the Company.

17. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR AND SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, M/s Kumar Wadhwa & Company, Company Secretaries were
appointed as Secretarial Auditors for conducting the secretarial audit of the Company for the financial year
2023-24. The Secretarial Audit Report in form MR-3 is annexed herewith as “Annexure-B”. The Secretarial
Auditor has highlighted following points in his report:

i. According to regulation 10 of Foreign Exchange Management (Overseas Investment) Regulations,
2022 Company have Overseas Investment which is required to be reported by the company
through annual performance report to the RBI every year by 31st December. However, the annual
performance report for F.Y. ended 31.03.2023 was not filed till the closure of the financial year
under audit.

Clarification: The filing of Annual Performance Report for F.Y. ended 31.03.2023 was delayed due
to delay in receipt of audited financial statements for F.Y 2022-23 for the foreign subsidiaries. The
Company has five (5) foreign subsidiaries and are operating in different jurisdictions around the
globe. Some of the subsidiary(s) follow calendar year accounting ending on 31st December, which
is different from the Indian accounting / fiscal period i.e., 31t March, 2023. Given the difference in
the accounting period, the Company considered conducting a “Special Purpose Audit”’ for its
subsidiary(s) as at 315t March 2023, however, given involvement of staff at different time zones, the
completion of audit took more time than anticipated. However, the Company has filed the annual
performance report for F.Y. ended 31.03.2023 post closure of the financial year under audit on
04.09.2024.

ii. The Annual General Meeting for the financial year 2022-23 was not held within the prescribed time
as mentioned in Section 96 of the Companies Act, 2013, and Secretarial Standards issued by The
Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

Clarification: The Annual general Meeting of the Company for F.Y. ended March 31, 2023 could
not be held within the stipulated time under law due to delay in completion of audit of the financial
statements for F.Y. ended March 31, 2023. The Company has five (5) foreign subsidiaries and are
operating in different jurisdictions around the globe. Some of the subsidiary(s) follow calendar year
accounting ending on 315t December, which is different from the Indian accounting / fiscal period
i.e., 318t March, 2023. Given the difference in the accounting period, the Company considered
conducting a “Special Purpose Audit” for its subsidiary(s) as at 315t March 2023, however, given
involvement of staff at different time zones, the completion of audit took more time than anticipated.
Further, there was a change in the Statutory Auditors of the Company which resulted in delay of
completion of audit for F.Y. ended 31/03/2023 and signing off financial statements (both standalone
& consolidated).

iii. During the period under review, the Company's board of directors is not duly constituted. A casual
vacancy for the women director arrived on 22.08.2023, The Company has failed to fill the vacancy



within time as prescribed in Rule 3 of Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors)
Rules, 2014. However, post-closure of the financial year under review, the Company appointed Ms.
Deepika Gupta (DIN: 08850031) as a non-executive director w.e.f. May 20, 2024;

Clarification: Post completion of the tenure of Ms. Chitra Gauri Lal as an Independent Woman
Director on August 22, 2023, the Company was required to appoint another women director within
a period of 3 months from the date thereof but despite its intense efforts the Company was not able
to find a candid candidate for the said position. However, post closure of the financial year 2023-
24, the Company appointed Ms. Deepika Gupta (DIN: 08850031) as a non-executive director w.e.f.
May 20, 2024;

18. DISCLOSURE ABOUT COST AUDIT

As per the Cost Audit Orders, Cost Audit is applicable to the Company’s products/ business inrespect of
Electricals or Electronic Machinery (mobile phones, tablets and communication equipment)for financial year
2023-24.

In view of the same and in terms of the provisions of Section 138 and all other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, M/s. MM & Associates,
Cost Accountants were appointed as Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of cost records of your company
for the financial year 2023-24.

Your Board has appointed M/s. MM & Associates, Cost Accountants, as Cost Auditors of the Company for
conducting cost audit for Financial Year 2024-25 also. A resolution seeking approval of the Members for
ratifying the remuneration of Rs. 75,000/- (Rupees Seventy Five Thousand Only) plus applicable taxes,
travel and actual out-of-pocket expenses payable to the Cost Auditors for Financial Year 2024-25 is
provided in the Notice to the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

19. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

The particulars of loans, guarantees and Investments under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have
been disclosed in note no. 6, 7(a), and 7(b) of the standalone financial statements and note no. 6(a), 6(a)(i) and 6(b)
of the consolidated financial statement for the financial year ended 31.03.2024.

20. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

During the year, none of the transactions with related parties came under the purview of Section 188(1) of
the Act. Accordingly, the disclosure of related party transactions as required under Section 134(3)(h) of the
Act in Form AOC-2 is not applicable to the Company for FY 2023-24 and hence, does not form part of this
report.

21. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As a socially responsible Company, LAVA is committed to increasing its Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) impact with an aim of playing a bigger role in sustainable development of our society. In pursuit of
this objective, a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee had been formed by the Company which
oversees the activities relating to activities supporting the social and environmental causes.

The Company has in place a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy pursuant to the provisions of Section
135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Amendment Rules, 2021.

A brief outline of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy of the Company and theinitiatives
undertaken by the Company on CSR activities during the year are set out in Annexure-C of this report in the format
prescribed in the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)Rules, 2014,



CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was constituted by a resolution of the Board dated September
22, 2014. The Committee was last reconstituted on 26t March 2024 and comprised of the following members as
at 318t March 2024:

Sr. No. Name of member Designation
1 Mr. Sunil Raina Chairman

2 Mr. Shailendra Nath Rai Member

3 Mr. Anupam Shrivastava Member

Details of meeting of the members of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee held during the financial year ended
March 31, 2024 are as under:

s Date of Total Number of Directors Attendance
: . associated as on the date of Number of directors % of
No. Meeting .
meeting attended attendance
. 07.07.2023 3 2 66.66%
2. 01.02.2024 3 2 66.66%

22. INSURANCE

All the properties of the Company, including stocks, where necessary, and to the extent required,have been
adequately insured.

23. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls commensurate with nature and size of the
business activity and with reference to the financial statements. The controls comprise of policies and
procedures for ensuring orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to
its policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable financial information.

The internal financial control system is supplemented by internal audits. The Audit Committee of the Board
of Directors reviews the reports of the Internal Auditors at its meeting(s).

24. POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION AND OTHER DETAILS

The Company’s policy on Directors’ appointment and remuneration and other matters is availableat the website
of the Company and which can be accessed using https://www.lavamobiles.com/investor-
relations#corporate-governance

25. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company
which have occurred between the end of the financial year 2023-24 to which the financial statements relates
and the date of this report.

26. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

As required under clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act, Directors, to the best of their knowledge and
belief, state that:

a. In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standardshave been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

b. Appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and have
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and fair



view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and of the profit and loss of the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2024;

¢. Proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d. The annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis;

e. Proper internal financial controls were followed by the Company and such internal financial
controls are adequate and were operating effectively,

f.  Proper systems are devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

27. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY,TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The particulars as prescribed under Section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule8(3) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, with respect to conservation of energy, technologyabsorption and foreign
exchange earnings/outgo are set out in Annexure — “D” forming part of the report.

28. PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY

The Company has in place a Prevention of Sexual Harassment policy in line with the requirementsof the Sexual
Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,2013. An Intemnal
Complaints Committee has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All
employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy.

During the period under consideration, the status of complaints received and cases filed pursuant to the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 is hereunder:

S. No. | Particulars Remarks
1 Number of complaints of sexual harassment received in the year Nil
2 Number of complaints disposed off during the year Nil
3 Number of cases pending for more than 90 days Nil
4 Number of workshops on awareness programs against sexual harassment Nil
conducted during the year
5 Nature of action NA

29. VIGIL MECHANISM POLICY

The Company has formulated and published a Whistle blower policy to provide whistle mechanism for
employees including directors of the company to report the genuine concernsand ensure strict compliance
with the ethical and legal standards across the Company in compliance with provision of section 177 (9) of
the Companies Act, 2013. The same can be accessed at following web link:
https://www.lavamobiles.com/investor-relations#corporate-governance

During the year, no complaint was received under the above mechanism.

30. STATEMENT INDICATING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICY

The Company has in place a Risk Management Policy for identification, assessment, measurement and
reporting of business risks faced by the Company. The Risk Management Committee oversees the Risk
Management framework. Risk Control and Mitigation mechanisms are tested for their effectiveness on
regular intervals.



RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee was constituted by a resolution of the Board dated July 24, 2017 and was
reconstituted from time to time, the last reconstitution being on 26" June 2024 and comprised as under:

Sr. No. Name of member Designation
1 Mr. Shailendra Nath Rai Chairman

2 Mr. Ajay Kumar Singh Member

3 Mr. Sunil Raina Member

4 Mr. Sanjeev Agarwal Member

During the Financial Year 2023-24, no meeting of Risk Management Committee was held.

31. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS / COURTS /
TRIBUNAL IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATION IN FUTURE

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts / Tribunal which wouldimpact the
going concern status of the Company and its future operations. Hence, disclosurepursuant to Rule 8 (5) (vii)
of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not required.

32. EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION

Under the various ESOP Plan, a total of 4,97,27,550 numbers of stock options were outstanding atthe end of the
financial year under consideration. Details of options vested, exercised and cancelled are provided in note
36 to Financial statement and Annexure —E to this report.

33. DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE
TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF

During the period ended March 31, 2024, your Company has not made any one time settlement in respect
any loan taken from Banks or Financial Institutions.

34. DETAILS OF PROCEEDINGS UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

During the period ended March 31, 2024, neither any application is made nor any proceeding is pending under the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

35. LOANS FROM DIRECTOR

Pursuant to the provisions of section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 2(1)(c)(viii) of
(Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014, during the financial year, the Company has not borrowed
any money from its Directors. However, during the year under consideration the Company has repaid an
amount of Rs.25,00,000/- to Mr. Hari Om Rai as tabulated below:

Sr. Name of the Director Date of Borrowing/ Amount (In Rs.)

No. Repayment

1 Hari Om Rai 12-12-2023 25,00,000
Total Repayment* 25,00,000

*.Outstanding balance as on 31st March 2024 is Rs. 2,700,000.

36. REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS

During the year under consideration the Company has paid remuneration and sitting fees to the following



directors as follows:

Sr. Name of Designation Gross Remuneration Sitting Fees
No. Director
1 Hari Om Rai Managing Nil Nil
Director
2 Shailendra Whole time 1,11,93,120 Nil
Nath Rai director
3 Vishal Sehgal Director Nil Nil
4 Sunil Bhalla Director Nil Nil
5 Rahul Kansal Independent Nil 4,10,000
Director
6 Chitra Gouri Independent Nil 2,50,000
Lal Director
7 Vinod Rai Independent Nil 6,00,000
Director
8 Vinod Sharma Independent Nil 4,10,000
Director
9 Jitendra Kumar Independent Nil 1,00,000
Director
10 Sunil Raina Whole time 23,60,693/- Nil
director (06.11.23 to 30.12.23)
1,751,107/-
(28.02.24 to 31.03.24)
11 Sanjeev Whole time 25,60,248/- Nil
Agarwal director (01.02.24 - 31.03.24)
12 Anupam Whole time Nil Nil
Shrivastava director
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Form AOC-1

Annexure — “A”

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint

ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each direct subsidiary presented with amounts in milion)

Sl. . .
No. Particulars Details
P~ * Lava International Lava Technologies Xolo International
1 N f th bsid —_— —_
ame of the subsidiary (HK) Ltd. DMCC. (H.K.) Ltd.
(Console) .
(Based in Hong Kong) (Based in Dubai) (Based in
Hong Kong)
2 The date since when 20/12/2010 20/02/2017 10/02/2015
subsidiary was acquired
Reporting period for the
subsidiary concerned, if
3 different fr,om the holdlng . NA NA NA
company’s reporting period
4 Reporting currency and
Exchange rate as on thelast Converted Converted *Us Converted
date of the relevant Financial *HK inRs. *AED inRs. $ in Rs.
year in the caseof foreign
subsidiaries
5 Share capital 10 57.48 18.37 339.74 0.01 0.83
6 Reserves & surplus 8.62 140.94 0.10 492.72 0.58 48.83
7 Total assets 112.18 1195.24 35.51 1289.31 10.12 844.14
8 Total Liabilities 93.56 996.82 17.04 385.54 9.53 794.48
9 Investments 5.41 57.48 - -
10 Turnover 716.53 7581.35 7717 1740.06 60.27 4,989.81
11 Profit before taxation -1.33 -13.97 -0.87 -19.73 -0.73 -60.32
12 Provision for taxation -- - -
13 Profit after taxation 1.33 -13,97 -0.87 -19.73 -0.73 -60.32
14
Proposed Dividend -
15 Extent of shareholding 100% 100% 100%




Sl

Particulars
No.
Lava
1 Name of the subsidiary %gﬁ
(Based in USA)
. o 14/05/2018
2 The date since when subsidiary
was acquired
Reporting period for the subsidiary NA
concerned, if different from the
holding company’s reporting period
3
Reporting currency and Exchange
4 rate as on.the Igst date .Of the USsD INR
relevant Financial year in the case
of foreign subsidiaries
5 Share capital 0.40 28.79
6 Reserves & surplus 0.11 13.36
7 Total assets 0.52 43.36
8 Total Liabilities 0.01 1.24
9 Investments -
10 Turnover - -
11 Profit before taxation - -
12 Provision for taxation - -
13 Profit after taxation - -
14 Proposed Dividend -
15 % of shareholding 100%




SI. Particulars Details
No. —_
Sojo . .
Name of the Lava Sojo_ Manufacturing S_OWQ
1 subsidiary Enterprise Distribution Services M.—)
Limited Private Limited | Private Limited W—W )d
SDPL (SMSPL)
2 The date since when  [25/07/2016 27/05/2016 02/06/2016 27/05/2016
subsidiary was acquired
Reporting period forthe
subsidiary concerned, if NA NA NA NA
3 different from the
holding company’s
reporting period
Reporting currency and
Exchange rate as on
4 the last date ofthe INR INR. INR INR
relevant Financialyear
in the case of foreign
subsidiaries
5 Share capital 52.50 0.10 22.20 39.60
6 Reserves & surplus -1.25 -14 .45 -1.55 -2.03
7 Total assets 51.46 16.44 32.18 37.73
8 Total Liabilities 0.21 30.79 11.54 0.15
9 Investments 50.43 11.84 0.20
10 Turnover
11 Profit before taxation -0.00 -5.93 -0.09 0.13
12 Provision for taxation 0.00 -1.51 0.00
13 Profit after taxation -0.00 -4.42 -0.09 0.13
14 Proposed Dividend - - - -
15 % of shareholding 99.05% 90% 99.95% 99.97%
Notes:-
1) Reporting period for all the aforesaid entities are 318t March 2024
2) Closing Exchange Rate for balance sheet : HKD 1 = Rs. 10.65 ; AED 1=Rs.22.71; USD 1 = Rs. 83.38;
3) Average Exchange rate for Profit & loss a/c : HKD 1= Rs. 10.58 ; AED 1= Rs. 22.54; USD 1= Rs. 82.79
4) Historical rate for Share capital ; HKD 1= 5.75 ; AED 1= 18.49 ; USD (Xolo) 1 =64.24 ;USD (LLC) 1=71.99 ;

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year




Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies andJoint

Ventures
Name of associates/Joint Ventures MagicTel Solutions Pvt. Ltd.
1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date As at 318t March 2024
2. Date on which the Associate or Joint 1711212012

Venture was associated or acquired

3. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the
company on the year end

- No.l 2500 shares of Rs. 10/- per share
- Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture! Rs. 25,000
- Extend of Holding% ! 25%
5 —
4. Description of how there is significant influence 25% of shareholding is held by the
Company

5. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not

consolidated Not Applicable

6. Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest Rs. 12.69 million (25% is considered in
audited Balance Sheet consolidation of financial statement)

7. Profit for the year

i Considered in Consolidation Rs. (0.18) million

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation Nil

Notes:
1) Amount of investment in joint venture/associate is based on the carrying value of investments inthe standalone
financial statements of venture/investor.

Yamuna Electronics ManufacturingCluster
Private Limited

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date As at 318U March 2024
2. Date on which the Associate or Joint 02/02/2016

Venture was associated or acquired
3. Shares of Associates/Joint Venture held by the

Name of associates/Joint Ventures

company on the year end
- No.l 6,227,939 shares of Rs. 10/- per share
- Amount of Investmentin Associates/Joint Venture ! Rs. 62,279,390
- Extend of Holding%1 45.33% (effective holding)
Through the shareholder agreement of
4. Description of how there is significant influence Yamuna Electronics manufacturing

cluster private limited.

5. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not
consolidated

6. Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest Rs. 47.93 million (45.33% is considered in
audited Balance Sheet consolidation of financial statement)

7. Loss for the year

i Considered in Consolidation Rs. (0.04) million

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation Nil

Effective holding of the Company has been considered for above information.

Amount of investment in joint venture/associate is based on the carrying value of investments in thestandalone financial
statements of venture/investor.



To,

“Annexure B”

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

The Members of

LAVA INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Regd. Off: B-14, House 2, Basement,
Shivlok Commercial Complex, Karampura,
New Delhi- 110015

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence
to good corporate practices by Lava International Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit
was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the
Company has, during the audit period ended on March 31, 2024, complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

» We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records

maintained by Lava International Limited (“The Company”) for the period ended on March 31, 2024
according to the provisions of:

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made there under;

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made there under to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;
According to regulation 10 of Foreign Exchange Management (Overseas Investment)
Regulations, 2022 Company have Overseas Investment which is required to be reported by the
company through annual performance report to the RBI every year by 31st December. However,
the annual performance report for F.Y. ended 31.03.2023 was not filed till the closure of financial
year under audit.

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India

Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) to the extent applicable to the Company: -

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011; Not Applicable as Company is an unlisted Company.

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; Not
Applicable as Company is an unlisted Company.

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018;

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee benefits and Sweat Equity)
Regulations, 2021; Not Applicable as Company is an unlisted Company.

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2021: Not Applicable as Company is an unlisted Company.

f.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act, 2013 and dealing with client; Not Applicable as
Company is an unlisted Company.



g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; Not
Applicable as Company is an unlisted Company.

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; Not
Applicable as Company is an unlisted Company.

i. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with any stock exchange(s); Not Applicable
as Company is an unlisted Company.

j. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing obligations and Disclosures Requirements)
Regulations, 2015; Not Applicable as Company is an unlisted Company.

V. The Memorandum and Articles of Association.

» We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

i)
i)

Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with any stock exchange(s); Not Applicable
as Company is an unlisted Company.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, and Standards mentioned above. However, the Annual General Meeting for the financial year 2022-
23 was not held within the prescribed time as mentioned in Section 96 of the Companies Act, 2013, and
Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

» We further report that the Company has, in my opinion, complied with the applicable provisions

of Companies Act, 2013 as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs and rules made there under
along with the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, with regard to:

Maintenance of various statutory registers and documents and making necessary entries therein;
Closure of the Register of Members.

Forms, returns, documents and resolutions required to be filed with the Registrar of Companies and the
Central Government; Service of documents by the Company on its Members, Auditors and the Registrar
of Companies;

Notice of Board Meetings.

The Meetings of Directors including passing of resolutions by circulation;

The Annual General Meeting for Financial Year 2022-23 was not held within 6 months from the end of
financial year, However Company had conducted its Annual General Meeting for the financial year 2022-
23 on August 14, 2024.

Minutes of proceedings of General Meetings and of the Board;

Approvals of the Members, the Board of Directors, and the government authorities, wherever required;
Appointment and remuneration of Auditors;

Transfers and transmissions of the Company’s shares and issue and dispatch of duplicate certificates of
shares;

Borrowings and registration, modification and satisfaction of charges wherever applicable;

investment of the Company’s funds including investments and loans to others;

Form of Balance Sheet as prescribed under Part |, form of statement of profit and loss as prescribed under
Part Il and General Instructions for preparation of the same as prescribed in Schedule Il to the Act;
Directors’ Report;

Contracts, common seal, registered office and publication of name of the Company; and

Generally, all other applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules made under the Act.

» We further report that:

During the period under review, the Company's board of directors is not duly constituted. A casual
vacancy for the women director arrived on 22.08.2023, The Company has failed to fill the vacancy within
time as prescribed in Rule 3 of Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014.
However, post-closure of the financial year under review, the Company appointed Ms. Deepika Gupta
(DIN: 08850031) as a non-executive director w.e.f. May 20, 2024. There were changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors during the financial year 2023-2024 as per the provision of the



Companies Act, 2013. Details regarding Changes in Board Composition are annexed herein in
Annexure C.

e Adequate notice is given to all Directors to attend the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance or at shorter notice.

e The Company has obtained all necessary approvals under the various provisions of the Act; and
The Directors have complied with the disclosure requirements in respect of their eligibility of
appointment, their being independent and compliance with the Code of Business Conduct & Ethics for
Directors and Management Personnel,

> We further report that
There are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations
and guidelines.

» We further report that

e During the audit period, in respect of certain transactions pertaining to other company/companies
relating to prior periods, the Directorate of Enforcement (ED) has filed a case against the Company and
its former Managing Director which is sub-judice. On the basis of the information available and the legal
opinion obtained by the Company, the prospects of the case being discharged is favorable.

o This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an
integral part of this report.

For Kumar Wadhwa & Company
Company Secretaries

Sd/-
Place: New Delhi Sanjay Kumar
Date:03.09.2024 (Partner)
C.P. NO. 7027

UDIN: F009211F001103238

“ANNEXURE A”
to the Secretarial Audit Report” for the financial year ended 31t March, 2024

To,

The Members of

LAVA INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Regd. Off: B-14, House 2, Basement,
Shivlok Commercial Complex, Karampura,
West Delhi- 110015

Management’s Responsibility

1. Itis the responsibility of management of the Company to maintain secretarial records, devise proper systems
to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and regulations and to ensure that the systems
are adequate and operate effectively.

Auditor’s Responsibility

2. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and procedures followed
by the Company with respect to secretarial compliances.

3. We believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the Company’s management is adequate and

appropriate for us to provide a basis for our opinion.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the management’s representation about the compliance of laws, rules

and regulations and happening of events etc.



Disclaimer

5. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted affairs of the Company.
6. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the

Company.

Place: New Delhi
Date:03.09.2024

“ANNEXURE B”

For Kumar Wadhwa & Company
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Sanjay Kumar

(Partner)

C.P. NO. 7027

UDIN: F009211F001103238

to the Secretarial Audit Report” for the financial year ended 315t March, 2024

(List of other laws applicable to the Company)
1. The Indian Telegraph Act, 1885 (“Telegraph Act”)
2. The Legal Metrology Act, 2009 (“Legal Metrology Act”)

3. Bureau of Indian Standards Act, 2016 (“BIS Act”)

. Consumer Protection Act, 2019 (the “Consumer Protection Act’) and rules made thereunder

. Electronics and Information Technology Goods (Requirements for Compulsory Registration)

Order, 2012 (the “Electronics and IT Goods Order 2012”)

. Production Linked Incentive Scheme for Large Scale Electronics Manufacturing (“PLI

Scheme”)

. Foreign Investment Regulations

. Regulations specific to mobile handsets

(i) International Mobile Equipment Identity and Electronic Serial Number
(i) Panic-button rules and Global Positioning System Facility in all Mobile Phone Handsets
Rules, 2016 (“Panic Button Rules”)

. Laws relating to Intellectual Property

(i) The Trademarks Act, 1999 (“Trademark Act”)

(ii) The Patents Act, 1970 (“Patents Act”)

(iii) The Copyright Act, 1957 (“Copyright Act”)

(iv) Semiconductor Integrated Circuits Layout-Design (SICLD) Act, 2000 (“Semiconductor
Integrated Circuits Act”)

(v) Designs Act, 2000 (“Designs Act”)

10. Environmental Laws

(i) The Environment Protection Act, 1986 (the “Environment Act”)

(ii) The Environment (Protection) Rules, 1986 (the “Environment Rules”)

(iii) The Environment Impact Assessment Notification S.0. 15331, 2006 (the “EIA
Notification”)

(iv) E-Waste Management Rules, 2016 (the “E-Waste Rules”)

(v) Hazardous Wastes (Management, Handling and Transboundary Movement) Rules, 2016
(the “Hazardous Waste Rules”)



11.

12.

(vi) Plastic Waste Management Rules, 2016 (“Plastic Waste Management Rules”)

Laws relating to taxation

(i) Income Tax Act 1961, the Income Tax Rules, 1962, as amended by the Finance Act in
respective years Central Goods and Service Tax Act, 2017, the Central Goods and Service
Tax Rules, 2017, each as amended, and various state-wise legislations made thereunder

(i) The Integrated Goods and Service Tax Act, 2017

(iii) Professional Tax state-wise legislations

(iv) Indian Stamp Act, 1899 and various state-wise legislations made thereunder

(v) Customs Act, 1962 and the various rules issued thereunder

Laws relating to employment

(i) Factories Act, 1948;

(i) Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970;

(iii) Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952;
(iv) Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948;

(v) Minimum Wages Act, 1948;

(vi) Payment of Bonus Act, 1965;

(vii) Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972;

(viii) Payment of Wages Act, 1936;

(ix) Maternity Benefit Act, 1961;
(x) Industrial Disputes Act, 1947;

xi) Employees’ Compensation Act, 1923;

Xl

Place: New Delhi
Date:03.09.2024

“ANNEXURE C”
to the Secretarial Audit Report” for the Financial year ended 31st March, 2024

For Kumar Wadhwa & Company
Company Secretaries

(xi
(xii) Sexual Harassment of Women (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013; and
(xiii) Public Liability Insurance Act, 1991

Sanjay Kumar

(Partner)
C.P. NO. 7027
UDIN: F009211F001103238

List of Changes in the composition of Board of Director during the financial year 2023-24

. . Appointment/ Date of
L e Designation Cessation Appointment/C
essation
1 Mr. Rahul Kansal Independent Director Cessation 22.08.2023
> Mr. Vinod Rai Independent Director Cessation 22.08.2023
3 Mrs. Chitra Gouri Lal Independent Director Cessation 22.08.2023
4 Mr. Jitendra Kumar Independent Director Appointment 01.09.2023




5 Mr. Jitendra Kumar Independent Director Cessation 30.12.2023
Mr. Sunil Raina Additional / Whole Appointment 06.11.2023
6. Time Director
Mr. Sunil Raina Additional / Whole Cessation 30.12.2023
7. Time Director
8 Mr. Sunil Raina Whole Time Director Appointment 28.02.2024
Mr. Sanjeev Agarwal Additional / Whole Appointment 01.02.2024
9. Time Director
Mr. Hari Om Rai Chairman Cum Cessation 28.02.2024
10. Managing Director
11 Mr. Vinod Sharma Independent Director Cessation 19.03.2024
12 Mr. Anupam Shrivastava Independent Director Appointment 26.03.2024

Place: New Delhi
Date:03.09.2024

For Kumar Wadhwa & Company

Company Secretaries

Sd/-
Sanjay Kumar
(Partner)

C.P. NO. 7027

UDIN: F009211F001103238



Annexure - C
1.  Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

Lava Intemational Limited (“Company”) recognizes that its business activities have wide impact on the societies in
which it operates, and therefore an effective practice is required giving due consideration to the interests of its
stakeholders including shareholders, customers, employees, suppliers, business partners, local communities and
other organizations.The company endeavours to make CSR for sustainable development. The Company through its
CSR Committee shall identify the activities/projects in line with Section 135 read with Schedule VIl of the Companies
Act 2013 and the Rules made thereunder Our company is committed for better utilisation of CSR funds so that it can
serve the of public at large.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:
The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was constituted by a resolution of the Board dated September 22,

2014. The Committee was last reconstituted on 26" March 2024 and comprised of the following members as at 31st
March 2024:

Number of Number of meetings
S. No.| Name of Director Designation/ Nature of meetingsof CSR | ofCSR Committee
Directorship Committee held | attended during the
during the year year
1 Mr. Sunil Raina Chairman 2 0
2 Mr. Shailendra Nath  |Member 2 2
Rai
3 Mr. Anupam Member 2 0
Shrivastava

Besides, one meeting each was attended by Mr. Hariom Rai and Mr. Rahul Kansal who were the members of the
committee at the time the meetings were held

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved
by the board are disclosed on the website of the company: https://www.lavamobiles.com/investor-
relations#corporate-governance

4. Provide the details of Inpact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of
rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable: Not
applicable.

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies
(Corporate SocialResponsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial
year, if any: Rs. 237.68 Lakh

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5).: Rs. 5156.4 Lakhs.

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 103.13 Lakhs
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the previous financialyears.: Nil
(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b- 7¢): Rs. 103.13 Lakhs

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:



Amount Unspent (in Rs. Lakh)
1;)tal Amount Total Amount transferred Amount transferred to any fund specified
pentfor the .
Financial Year. to Unspent CSR Account undgr Schedule VIl as per second proviso to
(in Rs. Lakh) as per section 135(5)
section
135(6)
Amount Date of Name of Amount Date of
transfer. the transfer.
Fund
107.90 NA NA NA NA NA
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: Nil
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Location of Amount | Mode Mode of
Item from Loca the spent for | of implementation
Sl Name of the the listof | project. the implem | -Through
No. Project activities area project | entation implementing
in (Yes/ (in - agency.
schedule No). Distr | Lakhs). Direct CSR
VIl to the State. ict. (Yes/No) Name. registratio
Act. . nnumber.
1 to preserve the YE DELHI 107.90 NO [Socio Legal |[CSR000237
archaeological and |Protection of S Research 92
built heritage of  |national and
Narainkoti Temples |heritage, art Education
and to promote the jand culture Foundation

awareness and
appreciation of,
respect for and
commitment to

preservation of such
cultural legacy

through research,

education, publicity

& responsibility.

Amount spent in Administrative Overheads : Nil
(d) Amount spent onImpact Assessment, if applicable: Nil

10.

11.

(e) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+.8e). Rs. 107.90 Lakh

(f) Excess amount for set off, if any: Rs. 242.45 lakh (will be setoff in succeeding years)

(a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Nil

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):Nil

In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created
or acquiredthrough CSR spent in the financial year: Not Applicable

Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as

per section135(5).: Not Applicable



Annexure - “D”

INFORMATION AS PER SECTION 134 (3) (m) READ WITH THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES 2014 AND
FORMING PART OF THE DIRECTOR’S REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024.

FORM A
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:
a) Energy Conservation measures taken:
The operations of the company are of such nature that energy consumption is on a lower side.
However, your company continues to invest in replacement of low energy efficiency systems and
take adequate measures in order to conserve energy.
b) Alternate sources of energy:
The Company is not required to look for alternate source of energy due to its nature of business.
c) Capital investment on energy conservation equipment’s:
NIL
FORM ‘B’

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT

1. RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT (R&D)

The main objectives of R & D (Software & Hardware) unit established by the company include:

The R&D unit of the Company has been set up with an objective to design & develop
hardware and software of affordable flagship smart phones and feature phones and also
import substitution, cost reduction and to become more competitive in domestic and global
market.

The R& D center has been established to enable development of local eco-system of mobile
manufacturing in India which is in line with Govt. of India vision for developing this industry
and thereby generating huge employment opportunities in the country.

a. Specific Areas in which Research and Development (R&D) is being carried out by the
Company

The company has established state of the art R&D center at Noida Sector 64 in order to
design & develop Feature phone and Smartphones, the R&D Center has accorded by
DSIR. Lava R&D Center has end to end capabilities for Industrial design, Mechanical
design and Hardware and Software design.

Currently from Design Center 100% Feature phones has been designed, schematized,
developed and manufactured to meet the requirements of domestic as well as
globalmarket. We have built up capabilities to deliver 5G phones and successfully delivered
Smart phones from design center which deliver better UX experience and durability level.

Developed ability to design device drivers in areas of MIPI, 12C, Linux Imaging interface
and tuning and aide end to end development of camera hardware in India.

b. Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts —
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Customer Satisfaction
Cost reduction
Technology edge
Better product

enhancing Make in India by building phone manufacturing eco-system and developing
state of art technology in terms of Hardware and software for same.

c. Future Plan of action

Project Deliveries and to develop and build software solutions which enables the customers to engage with right
content and services and also build solutions for better customer experience and features.

d. Expenditure on R&D*

FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23
Expenditure Amount (in Rs million.) Amount (in Rs million.)
Amount Charged to Statement of Profit & Loss 188.30 155.88
Amount capitalized
(i) Property, plant & equipment 3.27 11.89
TOTAL 191.57 167.77
Total R & D Expenditure as a 0.81% 0.71%

% of Total Turnover

Above figures are shown on standalone basis.

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION AND INNOVATION

a. Efforts made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation

The company is having in-house technical department which keep on updating the companywith
the latest technology available in market related to mobile industry. The company is using latest
technology in its products and keep on updating its products in terms of quality and technology.
The company also arranges sessions on regular basis for its employees and impart technical
knowledge and training to keep them abreast with the latest technologies in the market.

b. Benefits Derived as a result of the above efforts.

We are able to deliver quality products in the hands of the customers in terms of new features in the
handsets we keep on updating the technology in our products.

¢. Information about Imported Technology

| Technology Imported: N.A.

Il Year of Import: N.A.

I Has Technology been fully absorbed: N.A.

IV | If notfully absorbed, areas where this has not taken place, N.A.
reasons therefore and future plans of action.




3)

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Activates relating to exports, Initiative taken to increase Export, Development of new export markets
for products, Export Plans:

The Company had exported its material, considering the increasing demand of mobile handsets all
over the world. The company is planning to export its products in the Asian and African Countries
in the forthcoming financial year.

Total Foreign Exchange used and earned

FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23
Amount (in Rs Amount (in Rs
million.) million.)
Earnings FOB value of exports 518.87 415.72
CIF value ofimports 13,112.10 12,363.40
Out go
Expenditure in Foreign Currency 180.53 140.49




EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION

Annexure-E

Sr.
No.

Particulars

Lava Employee Stock
Option Plan 2020 - | (“ESOP
202041”)

Lava Employee Stock
Option Plan 2020 - I
(“ESOP 2020-11”)

Lava Employee
Stock Option Plan
2015 (“ESOP 2015”)

Total

Number of Options granted
during FY 2023-24

Number of Options vested during
FY 2023-24

22,83,862

22,83,862

Number of
Options Settled/exereised during
FY 2023-24

Number of shares arising as a
result of exercise of options

Number of options forfeited /
lapsed during FY 23-24

The Exercise Price (weighted
average for the grant made
during the year)

Variation of the terms of option

Money realized by exercise of
options

Total no. of options in force as at
31.03.2024

91,35,447

2,04,44,744

2,01,47,358

4,97,27,550

10

Employee wise details (name of
employee, designation, number
of options granted during the year
(2023-24), exercise price) of
options granted to

(a) Key Managerial Personnel;

(b) Any other employee who
receives a grant in any one year
of option amounting to 5% or
more of options granted during
that year; and

Nil

(c) Identified employees who
were granted option, during any
one year, equal to or exceeding

1% of the issued capital
(excluding outstanding warrants
and conversions) of the company
at the time of grant
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the members of Lava International Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Lava International
Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the standalone balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, the
standalone statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the standalone

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the staridalone
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the stand: financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAT's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Emphasis of Matier Paragraph-

With reference to Note-49 to the Financial Statements of Lava International Limited for the year
ended 31" March, 2024 - The Company has acquired the China Bird Centro America (CBCA) in
September 2021 by way of a share swap deal and also entered into certain agreements between the
company, CBCA and CBCA's sharcholders (i.e, Clipper Global S.A. having 100% Shares of
CBCA), Under the Acquisition deal, the company issued 5% of its equity shares to the sharcholdy
of CBCA and Sharcholders of CBCA has transferred 100% of CBCA shares to the com : -

The board of the company has been apprised of the current development of the non « ch I “éf:'_? |
CBCA management and advise the company’s management to enforce the agreement R t" mdu =)

z -
] U

X
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during the acquisition of CBCA and take legal course of action to protect its interest. Our opinion is
not modified in this matter.

Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the Directors” Report and the related annexures but does not include the standalone
financial statements and our report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone [inancial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India.

This ['l:SPﬂnElblIll.jf also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irrepularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstalement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to conlinue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
Process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements | ~ LQI = J

Our objectives are o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone ["nanmal stal:emeptﬁ
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a puarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material

1 |
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misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

¢ (Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the gﬂlng concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial stalements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in
the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any ngl'llﬁﬂ-ﬂ.l'll deﬂt;lem:ms
in internal control that we identify during our audit. s 4

'|L i

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have ﬂumphedr with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate ~with-them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act and on the
basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and
according to the information and explanations given to us, we give in Annexure A, a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforcsaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(€) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the
standalone financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure B. Our report expresses an unmodified
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial
controls with reference to the standalone financial statements;

(g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2024 has been
paid / provided by the Company to its directors is in accordance with the provisions of
Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with
the requirements of Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

@) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its finapcial position in
ils standalone financial statements — Refer Note 31 to the standalone/Jfinangial
statements; I

() The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foresceable losses, if any and to the extent ascertainable, on
long-term contracts including derivative contracts; and
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{iiiy There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company:

(ivy (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the note 46 to the standalone financial statement, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (gither from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the note 47 to the Standalone Financial Statement, no funds have been
received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(¢) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement;
and

(v) The Company has not declared and paid dividend during the vear.

(vi) The Company uses SAP-ECC 6.0 EHP 8 (SUITE ON HANA) as the Enterprise
Resource Planming (ERP) and accounting software. SAP -ECC 6.0 EHP 8 ensures an
audit trail, providing standard functionality and logging in all changed data in the
system. This functionality and audit trail feature in SAP-ECC 6.0 EHP § has been
operational throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded through the
application at the Company. At the Company, accounting documents are used to record
all business transactions — posted documents are stored in SAP-ECC 6.0 EHP 8 for
every transaction and a financial document once posted cannot be deleted or changed
for data points impacting financials.

(vii) The SAP-ECC 6.0 EHP 8 environment at the Company is appropriately governed and
only authorized users can make postings in SAP-ECC 6.0 EHP 8, while interacting with
the system through the application layer. Normal/regular users are not granted nor have
direct SAP-DB (database) or super user level access which would allow them to make
any changes to financial documents directly which have already been posted through
the application. To operate the SAP-ECC 6.0 EHP 8 -application and the SAP-DB
(database), the system necessarily requires a set of super-users to have DB (database)=—__
level accesses. These super-users are obligated to perform system related tasks. The
super-user are not allowed to carry out any direct changes/edits to financial transactio
in the SAP-DB (database), which if carried out is ill-legal. In the event of
unauthorized change by a super user specifically, these can be detected through an /' _

T =
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investigative approach and/or using services provided by SAP as part of their financial
data quality check service, which validates the consistency of financials based on the
request of the client. :

For Raj Gupta and Company
Chartered Accountants _
Firm Registration No. 000203N

Partner 2210
Membership No. 553645

UDIN: 2 4565 3( 45 B K(PKA3 <0

Place: Noida
Date: 4™ September, 2024
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report
[Referred to in paragraph 1 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements® section of
our report of even date]

(1) (@) (A) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of property, plant, and equipment.

(B) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant,
and  equipment by which all the items of property, plant and equipment of respective
locations are verified at least once in every three years. In our opinion, this periodicity of
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its property, plant, and equipment. In accordance with the programme, the
Company has physically verified property. plant, and equipment during the year.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not hold
any immovable property. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3 (i) (¢) of the Order
is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given' to us, the Company has not
revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or
intangible assets or both during the year.

(¢) According to information and explanations given to us and audit procedures performed
by us, there are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding
any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and rules made thereunder,

(ii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the inventory, except goods-
in-transit, has been physically verified at reasonable intervals by the management during
the year. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for
each class of inventory were noticed on such verification between the physical inventory
and the book records.

(b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees,
in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets during the vyear.
According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the quarterly returns or statements filed by
the Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of
account of the Company.

(iii) (a) On the basis of examination of records of the Company and information and explanation
given to us, during the year the Company has not provided any investment, security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to mmpﬂﬂics
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships, or any other parties except guarantl!es given o
other parties in respect of certain purchases on credit terms. \ \ i‘{ |
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and audit procedures
performed by us, we are of the opinion that the investments made are not prejudicial to
the interest of the Company.

(c) Based on the records examined by us and information and explanation given to us, the
Company has not given any loans secured or unsecured, to any companies, firms, limited
liability partnerships or other parties hence the reporting requirement of Clause 3 (iii)(c).
(d), (e), (f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans or provide any guarantees or securities to parties
covered under Section 185 of the Act. Further, provisions of Sections 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 in respect of loans, investments, guarantees and security have been complied with
by the Company.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
from the public. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for the products of the Company. We have broadly
reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost
Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended. specified by the Central Government under
sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the
prescribed cost records have been made and maintained. We have, however, not made a
detailed examination of the cost records with a view to dctcrnunt: whether they are accurate
or complete,

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given 1o us and on the basis of our
examination of records of the Company, the amounts deducted / acerued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services tax,
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Cess, and other malerial
statutory dues have generally been regular in depositing during the year by the Company
with the appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanations given to
us and on the basis of our examination of records of the Company, there were no
undisputed statutory dues payable in respect of Sales tax, Service tax, Duty of Customs,
Duty of Excise and Value Added Tax.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of records of the Company, there were no arrears of outstanding statutory
dues in respect of Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employee’s State Insurance,
Income-tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, values Added tax,
Cess and other material statutory dues on the behalf of the financial year for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

{b) Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been
deposited as on March 31, 2024 with the appropriate authorities on namunl Gf' an}f

dispute are as follows: § o

Name of ‘Nature of | Amount Amount Period to Forum where
Statute the dues of Dispute | not paid which the dispute is
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(in Rs, (in Rs. amount pending
millions) millions) relates
Income Tax | Income 1.24 1.24 2015-16 Income Tax
Act, 1961 Tax Appellate
Tribunal
Income Tax | Income 25.40 2035 2016-17 The
Act, 1961 Tax Commissioner
of Income Tax
(Appeals)
Income Tax | Income 46.11 45.11 2019-20 The
Act, 1961 Tax Commissioner
of Income Tax
(Appeals)
Income Tax | Income 8.94 .94 2020-21 The
Act, 1961 Tax Commissioner
of Income Tax
(Appeals)
Income Tax | Income 11.56 11.56 2021-22 The
Act, 1961 Tax Commissioner
of Income Tax
== | |(Appeals)
Bihar VAT | Sales Tax 57.00 31.89 2009-17 Hon'ble Bihar
Act Commercial
Tax, Tribunal,
. Patna
Bihar VAT sales Tax 1.45 1.45 2013-14 Assistant
Act Commissioner,
Bihar
Commercial
Tax
Chandipgarh | Sales Tax 1.08 0.76 2009-15 Pending before
VAT Act P&C High
Court
Chhattisgarh | Sales Tax 0.43 0.37 2016-17 Additional
VAT Act Commissioner
Appeals
Karnataka Sales Tax | 5.58 5.58 2013-14 Pending before
VAT Act A Tribunal
Karnataka Sales Tax | 0.06 0.04 2012-13 Pending before
VAT Act Dept.
Kerala VAT | Sales Tax | 3.53 237 2009-12 The Deputy
Act Commissioner
(Appeal)
Emakulam
Maharashtra | Sales Tax | 23.77 20.84 2012-17 Pending belore
VAT Act Tribunal
Punjab VAT | Sales Tax 12.59 9.44 2009-13 Pending before
Act P&C High
Court _t
Rajasthan Sales Tax 15.85 9.18 2009-13 Pending before |
VAT Act Supreme Court |
Seemandhra | Sales Tax 17.90 13.43 2014-15 Pending before
VAT Act and 2015- | Hyderabad




1839, Sector 22-B Chandigarh-160022

Ra.i G u pta & CO » Mob. - 98156-43637

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

E-mail: -

carajpuptaco@gmail.com Mab. - 78892-79571
16(Jun'l4 | High Court
to Dec'l5)

Tamil Nadu | Sales Tax 1.51 1.34 2011-14 Commercial
VAT Act Tax
Department,
Tamil Nadu
Telangana Sales Tax | 283.70 212.78 Feb'14 to High Court
VAT Act Mar'l5 Judicature at
and 2015- | Hyderabad
17
Customs Social 2371 22.15 Feb'18 — Pending before
Act Welfare Jul'19 CESTAT
Duty

(viii} According to the information provided and explanations given to us, and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed
any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax
assessment under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year and accordingly
reporting under clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and audit procedures
performed by us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been
declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other lender.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, the term loans have been applied for the purpose for which
the loans were obtained.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on an
overall examination of the Balance Sheet of the Company, we report that funds raised on
short-term basis have not been utilized for long- term purposes as at the Balance Sheet
date.

{e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination
of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken
any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and audit procedures
performed by us, we report that the Company has not raised any loans during the year on
the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures, or associate companies as
defined under the Companies Act, 2013.

(x) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised -

any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including :i::hi
instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause J{x][a] of
Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(xi) (a) According to the information and explanations given by the management and based upon
the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
financial statements, we report that no fraud by the Company or any fraud on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section
(12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, no whistle blower complaints were received by
the Company during the year.

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly, the reporting under
Clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, for all transactions
with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based
on our examination, the Company has an internal audit’ system commensurate with the
size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the Internal Audit reports of the Company issued till date for the
period under audit.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into
any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with them during the year
and hence, the provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required
to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.

(¢} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India, Accordingly, the reporting under Clauses 3(xvi)(c) of the
Order is not applicable.

(d) As represented by the management, the Group does not have any Core Investment
Company as part of the Group as per the definition of Group contained in the Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 and hence the reporting under
Clause 3 (xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable. ﬁlf
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(xvii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. the Company
has not incurred cash losses in the current {inancial year as well as in the immediately
preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the company during the year.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios disclosed in note 38 to the Standalone Ind AS Financials Statements, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of Balance Sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the Balance Sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the Balance Sheet
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, there is no
unspent amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant to
any project. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) and (b) of the Order are not
applicable. '

For Raj Gupta and Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regisiration No. 000203N

Membership No. 553645

UDIN: 245536 4S R KCPkAZICOT]

Place: Noida
Date: 4" September, 2024
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report
[Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under
Clause (i) of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Lava
International Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAT”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
compleieness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act,

Auditors’ Respousibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting (“the Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the
Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to standalone financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements. assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to
standalone financial statements. Foi—8 o
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements
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A company’s internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control with reference to
standalone financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the
standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to
standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference
to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the eriteria for
internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For Raj Gupta and Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000203N

{ Gauray de |
Partmer "

Membeérship No. 553645
UDIN: 2.4 56 36 YSR IKCP KA 3507

Place: Noida
Date: 4" September, 2024



Lava Internntional Limited

Standalone balance sheet as at 31 March 2024
AN anrosints in dndicn Rupees arillion walexs aiherwiie siated)

Particulars Nale Np, Asat M Asar 31
March 2024 March 2023
I. Asseis
Non-cuiren! assets
“orperty, plart tnd equipment 3 474.82 568.05
Capital work-in-progress 3 200 .69 191.99
-ninngihle assers 4 6.59 14.00
Right of use assel 5 82,14 116,89
Financial Assels
Investment in subsidigries and associate b 4,256,535 4.256.55
Other financinl asse T(H 35.33 10339
Deferred 1ax ussets (net) 23 (e} 360,16 0745
Other non-current asscts 9 (a) 32.00 208.03
5,449.30 5.760.38
Current assels
Inventories 8 3.839.26 4,394.99
Financial assets
Invesmonis Tib) 3.06 28.73
Trade receivables 7 (c) 2.751.87 254225
Cash and cash cquivalents 7 (d) 441.87 771.09
Other bank balances T{g) 843.09 914,95
Other financinl assets T () 27338 35133
Other current assets 9 (b) 2,900.45 2,541.22
. 11,052.98 11.544.56
TOTAL ASSETS __16,502.28 17.310.94
11. Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 1] 2,705,063 270563
Instruments entirely equity in nnture 1o 3342 3142
Onher equity
Securities premium 5,690.34 5,690.34
Share basad paymient reserve 38116 kil B
Retnined eamings 484,90 76510
Other reserve (7.69) 17.31
Total Equity 9,287.76 9,583.94
Lisbilities
Non-current 'inbilitics
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 11 (=) 13277 229.82
Lease linbiliti: Il (d) 6675 109.47
Provisions 12 {a) 61.94 5934
26146 J98.63




Lava International Limited
Standalone balance sheet a5 a1 31 March 2024

(Al amountys in Indian Rupees million unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note Mo, As ot 31 As ot 31
March 2024 March 2023
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Bomowings 11 (b 991,00 1.815.08
Lense liabilities 11(e) 42.70 38.40
Trade payables
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 11 (¢) 22993 132.17
- total outstending dues other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises 11 (e} 327476 3.286.79
Other financial linkilitics 11{f) 1.637.76 1.512.46
Onier current liabilities 13 462.18 301,52
Provisions 12 (b} 164.25 133,79
Current tax liabilities (net) 14 15048 108,16
6,953,006 728,37
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 16,502.28 17,310,94

Material accounting policies

2.0

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of these standalone financial staterrents.

As per our report of even date s attached

For Raj Gupta and Company
Chartered Accountants

Pamm;'-
Membership No. 553645

WOIN 2 24553 £Y S BKCP K A350)
Place: Noida
Date: September dily, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Lava International Limited
CIN: U32201DL2009PLC1 88920

Shailendra Math Rai
Whole-Time Director
(DN =00908:4 1 7

.

Sunil Bhalla
Director
{DIN-00980030)

antfﬁgi
Chief Financinl Officer

Place: Noida
Date: September 4th, 2024

Sunil Raina

Who

Cau
SSI;:LJ'A al

Time Direcior

(DIN-DY302069)

a—

Vishal Schgal
Director
(DIN-03127049)

Whole-Time Direct
(DIN-O7110183)

Company Secretary
(M. No.- ABI459)




Lava International Limited

Standalone statement of profit and loss for the period ended 31 March 2024

EAN amionnis in dndian Rupees million unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended
No. 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Income
Revenue from operations i5 2329545 22,056.74
Other income i6 208.71 273.08
Total income (1) 23.504.16 22.329.52
Expenses
Cost of raw malerial and components consumed 7 | 7.858.79 16,913.71
Purchase ol trded goods 31249 73953
Changes in inventories of finished goods, spares and 18 3764 ((1.49)
stock in tride
Employee benefiis expense 17 1.607.11 1, 482,68
Oither expenses H 2.230.53 2,138.52
Total expense (1) 212.385.32 21,271,958
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and 1118.84 1,055.87
amortisation (EBITDA) (D-(11)
Depreciation and amortisation expense a1 22757 226.61
Finance costs 22 34524 36641
Profit before tax 54603 462,85
= Current tax 169.96 118.05
- Tax charge/{credil} relating to earlier years .06 {16.98)
- Deferred 1ax expense/{incone) {52.77) g.48
Income tax expense 23 (n} 11728 109.55
Profit for the year 428.78 353.30
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income not (o be reclassified
to profit and loss in subsequent periods :
- Re-measurement (gninshlosses of defined benefit plan 23 018 {171
- Income tax relating 1o this item 0.08 {0.43)
Other comprehensive (income)loss lor the year .23 (2.14)
Total comprehensive income for (he year 428.55 355.44
Earnings per equity share (in rupecs) 24
Basic .79 0,65
Diluted 0.73 0.60
r

Materinl accounting policies

The accompanying notes {orms an integral pant of these stondalone financial stater




Lava International Limited
Standalone statement of profit and loss for the period ended 31 March 2024
(AN ameunts in Indion Rupees million undess otherwise siaed)

Farticulars Nl For the year ended For the vear ended
No. 3 March 2024 31 March 2023

As per our repart of even date as attached

For Raj Gupta and Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chanered A.i:mununu Lava Internathonal Limited

Firm’ s ation Mo 000203N CIN: U32201 DL2009PLC 188920

= Gz gk

Gnu v Jind;l. Shailendra Nath Ral
Parner. “\ - Whole-Time Director Whnla—Tim Director
Membership No. 553645 (DIN-00908417) (DIM-09302069)

vy

o

Whole-Time Director
(DIN-O7110183)

Sunil Bhalla Vishal Srhgnf/r
Direcior Drirector
(DIN-00980040) ' (DIN-03127049)

o5"

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

UDIN 2 24553645 Bk CPKA3SOT (M. No.- A61459)

Place: Noida Place: Noida
Date: September 4th, 2024 ate; September 4th, 2024

L]




Lava International Limited
Standalone statement of changes in equity for the period ended 31 March 2024
FAL amonnts in Indian Rupees million unless otherwise stated)

b,

Equity share capital

Halance as at 01 April 2023

Changes in equity share capital due to

Restated balance at 01

Changes in equity share capital

Balanee as at 3

prior period errors April 2023 during the venr March 2024
270563 Nil 2705.63 il 2705.63
Changes in equity share capital due to | Restated balance at 01 Changes in equity share eapital Balance as at 31
Blance sy 92 Apil W22 prior period errors April 2022 during the year March 2023
2T05.63 il 2705.63 il 270563
Instruments entirely equity in nature
Changes in instruments entirely equity | Restated balance at 01 Changes in instrumenis entirely Balance as at 31
Balance 2« at 01 April 2023 in nature due to prior period errors April 2023 equity in nature doring the vear March 2024
3342 Nil 33.42 il 3142
'h i ;
Balance as at 01 April 2022 C : aAnges in _.En.._:.u.:.m EE equity | Restated balance nt 01 Changes in instruments entirely Balance ss at 31
in nature due to prior period errors April 2022 equity in nature during the year March 2023
1342 Nil 33.42 il 3342




Lava International Limited
Standalone statement of changes in equity for the period ended 31 March 2024
(AUl amounts in Indign Rupees million unless otherwise stated)

.

Other equity

ltems of Other

Reserves and Surplus Comprehensive
Income
Partutsrs Securities Share based Debentures FVTOCI - equity L
preminm payment reserve | Redemption Reserve huﬂ__m__.ﬂ_ investment reserve
| refer note (i)] |refler note (ii)] | refer note (1id)) e | refer note (iv)]

Asat 31 March 2022 5,690.34 355.41 25.00] TO43.16 (7.69) 13,106.22
Provision for expected credit loss (refer noie 7(c)) & ) Il 5 (6,633.50) gl (6,633.50)
Tee)y®
Total profir for the vear - - 33330 153.30|
Other comprehensive income for the vear - - 214 214
Total comprehensive income for the vear = = = (6,278.06) (6,2 7R.06)
Share bised payment expeiise - 16.83 = - - 16.83
Cash seftled [or share based oplions - (0.101 - - = (0.10)
As at 31 March 2023 5.690.34 37214 25.00 765,10 (7.6%)| 6,844.89
Provision for expected credit loss (refer note 7(c)) & s + + (733.75) = (733.75)
Ten*
Total profit for the year - - 42855 428.55
Ciher comprebensive income for the vear 2 = - . -
Total comprehensive income for the vear - - - (305,20} - (305.20)
Share based payment expense 902 - - 9.02
Drebentures redemption reserve - - (25,00} 25.00 -
Cash sentled (or share based options - - - . - =
As at 31 March 2024 5,600,234 A81.16 - 484,910

/AN
\ 5

=




Lava International Limited
Standalone statement of changes in equity for the period ended 31 March 2024
EAN ameoenits by Indian Rupees million waless otherwise stoafed)

*To comply with the requirement of ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments, the Company has created Expected credit loss (iCL) of Rs. 733.75 million during the current financial vear
(31 March 2013: 6.633.50 million). As it was impracticable 10 ascertain the ECL for each of respective carlier financial vear; therefore. in comptiance with the requirements of para 44
of Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, has been adjusted to the retained carnings,

Note:
(i) Securities premium : Securitics premium is used 10 record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in sceoreance with the provisinns of the Companies Act, 2013,

(i) Share based payment reserve : The fair value of the options granted to émployees under the company’s employee stock option plan is recognised in the share options outstanding
account during the vesting period of options,

(iif) Dehenture redemption reserve: The Company had reversed debenture redemption reserve as debenture has been paid in current financial year in compliance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013,

(iv) FVYTOCT equity investment reserve : The Company had elected to recognise changes in the fiir value of investments in equity instruments of Abhriva Pte Ltd in other comprehensive
mecame. The changes are accumulated within the FYTOCT equity investment rescrve.

Material acoounting policies (refer note 2.1)

I'he sccompanying notes forms an integral part of these standalone financial statements.
As per our repart of oven date as attached

For Raj Gupta and Company For and on behalf of the Baard of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Lava International Limited

Firm's Registration No.: 000203N CIN: U32201 DL2009PLC 188920

n y ; [] i
/ e Capes poneed
uray Jindal - 7 Shailendra Nath Rai Sunil Raina Sanjeey Aga
ko Whole-Time Director Time Director Whole-Time Dirzctor
Membership e 553643 (DIN-00908417) (DIN-09302069) (DIN-O7110183)
g
AVV- V . Vﬂ% h -
“ K\

Sunil Bhalla Vishal Sehgal Rajesh i Ritesh Singh
Director Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

(DIN-GO9RO040) (DIN-D3127049) (M. Mo.- A61459)

UDIN & 24553 pusBKePICA3S)
Place: Noida Place: Noida
Diate: September 4th, 2024 Dme: Seprember 4th, 2024
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Lava International Limited
Standalone eash fow statement for the period ended 31 March 2024
AN amounts in Indian Rupees willion wiless otherwive staned)

Particulars For the year For the vear
ended 3 March  ended 31 March
2024 2023
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tas 546.0% 462.85
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax (o net cash flows :
Depreciation/amortization 221,57 226.61
(Profit) loss on sale of property, plant and equipment {0.65) {(1.95)
Linrealized foreign exchange (gain)/ loss 0.14 (65.60)
Met (gain)loss on sale of mutual fund investments 0.22 (0.30)
Fair value (gain)loss on derivative financial instroment at FVTPL {1.83) 1.96
Provision for Share based payment Expenses 002 16.83
Provision for Inventories phsolescence (69.54) (20.25)
Provision for trade receivables and advances 4.15 {0200
Amarttzation of prepaid security deposit 0.97 0.97
Interest expense 228.09 255.84
Interest income {93.30) (74,23)
Operating profit before working capital chanpes 830.87 B(12.53
Movements in working capital:
Increase’ (Decreasze) in trade payables and other liabilities 414,01 56.72
Inereuse! (Decrease) in provisions 33,06 (10.73)
(Increase) Decrease in trade receivables {426.09) 90.87
{Increase) Decrease in inventories 62527 121.68)
(Increase) Decrease in other assols (716.31) (294.03)
Cash generated from operations THROLKI 623.68
Income taxes paid (net of relunds) {116.63) (255.46)
Net cash Mow from / (used) in operating activities (A) 664,18 JoR.22
Cash Nows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment including capital work in progress and {103.02) (130.66)
intangibles
Froceeds from snle of property. plant and equipment (including intangibles) 0.65 316
Purchase of mutual fund investments {63.00) (53.50)
Sale af mutual fund investments §8.92 25.00
Inviestment in bank deposits (1,929.09) (2,859.60)
Maturity of bank deposits 2,066.27 2.995.00
Iriterest received | 23,69 4B.63
Net eash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B) 18442 28.11
Cash Now Trom financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings (non-curment) B0 127.53
Payment of borrowings (non-current) [457.45) (114.02)
Proceeds’ (repaymem) from borawings (current) (nel) [544.2K) {94.72)
Payment of principal portion of lease Habilities (38.42) 133.80)
Interest paid on lease liability (16.30) i18.68)
Interest paid on borrowings {201.59) (215.88)
Net eash from / (used in) finnncing activitles (C) (L177.83) (349.57)
Nelincrease in cash and cash equivalents (A + B ) (329.22) 40.7h
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 77009 72433
Cash and cnsh equivalents al the end of the year 441.87 _—14.0%
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Lava International Limited
Standalone cash Now statement for the period ended 31 March 2024
(Al amowts in Indian Rupees million unless othemuvise stated)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31 March  ended 31 March
2024 2023

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 232 516
Balances with banks:
On current accounts 140.40 23.37
Deposits with ariginal maturity of less than three months 299.15 742.56
Total cash and cash equivalents [refer note 7 (d)] 441.87 771.09

Change in Liability arising from Financing Activities

Particulars Ist April 2023 Cash Flow Forclgn Exchange | i March 2024
movemenis/others
Borrowing-Mon Current 631.05 (376.45) - 254.20
{ineluding currem
maturities)
Bon'm\riw; ~Current 1.413.85 [ 544.28) - 869.57
1,044.90 (921.13) - 1,123.77
P Foreign Exchange
riiculurs Ist April 2022 Cash Flow 31st March 2023
movéments/others
Borrowing-Non Current 617.55 13.50 - 63]1.08
{including curremt
maturitiex)
Barrowing -Current 1,508.57 {94.72) 1.413.85
2,126.12 (81.22) - 2,044.90

Material accounting policies (refer note 2.1}
The accompanying notes forms an integral pan of these standalone financial statements,
The schedules referred to above and notes on accounts form an Integral pant of the standalone cash flow statement.

The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the Indirect method setout in Ind AS-7 'Statement of Cash Flow’.
Cash flow from operating activities include Rs. 10.79 millions (3181 March 2023 : Rs. 10.03 millions) being expenses lowards
Corporate social responsibility.
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Lava International Limited
Standalone cash flow statement for the period ended 31 March 2024
AN amowents in Indian Rupecs mitlion unless otherwise stared)

Particulars For the year For the yvear
ended 31 March  ended 31 March
2024 2023

As per our repont of even date as attached

For and on behall of the Board of Directors of’
Lava International Limited
CIN: L3220 DL2O0SPLC 1 88920

(Fertlcle—
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Lava International Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(AN amounts b Indian Rupees million unless otherwise stated)

Corporate information

Lava Intermational Limited (the *Company”) is engaged in trading and manufacturing of mobile phones, storage
devices and other wireless telecommunication devices. The Company is a public company domiciled in India and
is incorporuted under the provisions of Companies Act applicable in India as on 27* March, 2009. The registered
office of the Company is located in Kammpura, Delhi and the principal place of business is Noida, Uttar Pradesh,
The Company has an in-house research and development center and manufacturing facilities iin Noida,

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 3 1% March 2024 were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors in their meeting held on 4* September 2024,

Statement of compliance, going concern assumpiions, use of estimates and judgements
a. Statement of compliance

The standalone financial sintements of the Company have been prepared in nccordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind-AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended thereafier
notified under section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the *Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

These financial stalements are presented in Indian rupees, and all amounts have been rounded-off'to the nearest
millions uplo two places of decimal, unless otherwise indicated.

b. Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepled in India. The financial statements have been prepuced on the historical cost basis except for
the following items;

= Investiments in equity instruments of other entities (at fair value through other comprehensive income)
- Investment in mutunl funds (at fair value through profit or loss)
Derivative financial instruments (at fair value through profit or loss)
= Plan assets under defined benefit plans (at fair value through profit or loss)
- Employee share based payments (at fair value through profit or loss)

c. Use of estimates snd judgements

The preparation of flinancial statements in conformity with generally accepied accounting principles requires
management to make judgments, estimates and ussumplions that affect the spplication of accounting policies and
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the
date of the finoncial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying
mysumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision 1o aceounting estimates are recognized prospectively
in curreni and future periods. Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the
most significant effects on the amounts recognized in the financial stitements is included in the following notes:

Estimates

Useful lives of depreciable/amortizable assets — Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/smortizable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties
in these estimates relate (o technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of assels. Carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment and imangible assets are disclosed in Note 3 and Note 4 respectively.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) - Management” ssumate of the DBO is based on a number af underlying

assumiptions such as standard vates of inflzior, mortali,, discount rate and anticipation of [oure salary

increases, Varation i these assumptions may impact the DBO amount and the annual drﬁ;uﬁla?;tgﬂ-i, il
&

expenses. Camrying amount of defined benefit oblipations are disclosed in Note 28 (ot T
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Lavi International Limited
Notes to the Standalone Finuncial Statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024
(Al amonnty in Indlan Rupees million unlesy otherwise stated)

Provisions for warranties — A provision |s estimated for expected warranty in respect of products sold during the
year on the basis of a technical evaluation and past experience regarding failure trends of products and costs of
rectification or replacement. The carrying amount of provision is disclosed in Note |12,

Judgments

Contingent liabilities — At cach balance sheer date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal
aspects, the Company nssesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities.
However, the actual future outcome may be different from this judgement.

Impairment of financial assets — At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed over
expected life, the management assesses the expected credil loss on outstanding financial assets,

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment
of asséts requires assessment of several extemal and intemnal factors which could result in deterioration of
recoverable amount of the assets,

2.1 Material accounting policies information
(#) Current vs Non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An
assel |s treaved as current when it is:

»  Expected to be realized or intended 10 be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

*  Held primarily for the purpose of trading '

= [Expected to be realized within twelve months afier the reporting period, or

«  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified as non-
current.

A liability is current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cyele

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

It is due to be seftled within twelve manths after the reporing period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the scttlement of the liability for at least twelve months afier the
reponting period

Current labilities include current portion of non-current financial lisbilities, The Company classifies all cther
linbilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and linbilities.
Operating eycle
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and

cash equivalents. The Company has determined its operating cyele as 12 months for the purpose of classification
of its nssets and linbilitics as current and non-current,

{b) Functional and Presentation Currency
4 i & '\b




Lava International Limited
Notes te the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(AN oty in Mdion Ripeees mrillion wnless otherwise staped)

The Financial Statements have been presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company s funclional
currency. All Financial information presented in INR has been rounded off to the nearest millions as per the
requirements of Schedule 111 of “the Act™, unless otherwise stated.

(e} Property, plant and equipment

f. Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
ifany. Costs directly attributable to acquisition are capitalized until the property, plant and equipment are ready
for use, ns intended by the management,

ii. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent costs are capitalised on the carrying amount or recognised ns o sepurate asset, as appropriate, only
when future economic benefits associated with the item are probable to flow to the Company and cost of the item
can be measured reliably. All repair and maintenance are charged 1o statement of profit and loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of the nsset afier its use is included in the cost of
the respective asset if the recogmition criteria for a provision are mel.

The pain or loss arising on the disposal or retirerent of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss on the date of disposal or retirement.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date
is classified as capital advances under the non-current assets and the cost of assets nol put to use before such date
are disclosed under "Capital wark in progress”.

fil. Depreciation

Depreciation on property. plant and equipment is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of the assets as below:-

Assels Useful Lives As per Schedule 11
Office Equipment 5 Years 5 Years
Furmiture and fixtures® 5 ¥Years 10 Years
Demonstration Fixtures 2 Years 2 ¥enrs
Vehicles® 5 Years 10 Years
Computer and Components 3 Years 3 Years
Plant and Machinery®

Jigs | Years | Years

Other Plant and Machinery 5,15 Years 15,25 Years
Electricn! Installations 10 ¥ears 10 Years

*Based on technical evaluation, the managermnent believes that the useful lives as given above best represent the
period over which the management expects to use these assets, Hence the useful life of these assets are different
from useful life as prescribed under Part C of Schedule 11 of the Companies Act 2013,

Leasehold Improvements are amortized over the useful life or 10 years whichever is loss.

The residual values, useful life and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

The Cor any reassess and review the carrying value of the assets at each reporting date. Incase carryingvalvg ~.

iy highet Yhan the recoverable amount or the benefits arising from the assets then carryi i Nalle Ten
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Lava International Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024
AN amosinis by Pnddian Rugees oollion wiless othervise stated)

impaired/depreciated 10 the extent of recoverable amount of benefit 1o be received in fiture.

(d) Intangible assets

i. Recognition and initial measurement

Inangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
assets are carried ot cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally
generated infangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is
reflected in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

ii. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only i it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Company.

fii. Amortization

The useful lives of intangible assets is assessed as finite as stated helow and the assets are amontised over their
useful Tives and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that an intangible nsset may be impaired.

Asseis Useful Lives
Computer software (over license period) 1-5 Years
Internally generated software 5 Years

The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at cach financial year end. Changes
in expected useful life or expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates, The amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless
such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset,

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the nel
disposal proceeds and the carrving amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss
when the assel is derecopnized.

Research and development eosis

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure incurred on an individual project is
recognized as an intangible assel when the Company can demonstrate all the following:

- Thetechnical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale
- lts intention 1o complete the asset
Its ability to use or sell the nsset
= How the asset will generate future economic benefils,
= The availability of adequate resources to complete the development and to use or sell the assel
The ability 1o measure reliably the expenditure atributable to the intangible asset during development.

Following the initial recognition of the development expenditure as an assel, the cost model is applied requiring
the nssel 1o be caried a1 cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulnted impairment losses.
Amortization of the asset begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortized
on a straight line basis over the period of expected future benefit from the related project. ic., the estimated
useful fife of one 1o five years, Amaortization is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Dutring the period
of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually,
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Lava International Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
LAl stmmionnts in Indian Rupees million wnless otherwise stated)

The Company adopted Ind AS 116 using the Modified retrospective method of adoption, with the date of initial
application on 1" April 2019. The Company has recognized a lease Hability on initinl application (i.e, 1" April,
2019} at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate ot the date of initial application and right-of-use asset at an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by
the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognized in the balance sheet
immediately before the date of initial application.

The Company, as a lessee, recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease linbility for its leasing arrangements, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asser.

The comtract conveys the right 1o control the use of an identified asset, if it involves the use of an identified asset
and the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset and has right to direct the
use of the identified nssel. The cost of the right-of-use asset shall comprise of the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payiments made at or before the commencement date
plus any mitial divect costs incurred, The right-of-use sssets is subsequently measured sl cost less any
accumulaied depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any re-measurement of the
lease liability, The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date
aver the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset (Refer note 37).

The Company measures the lease liability af the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease,
if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses an incremental
borrowing rate.

The Company also elected to use the recognition exemptions for lease contracts that, ot the commencement date,
have & lense term of 12 months or less and do not contain o purchase option (short-term leases), and lease
contracts for which the underlying asset is of bow value (low-vilue assets).

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from Ind AS 17. Lessors will continue to classify
leases as either operating or finance leases using similar principles s in Ind AS 17. Therefore, Ind AS 116 does
not have an impact for leases where the Company is the lessor,

(N Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting dale, whether there is an indication that an sssel may be impaired, If
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the
asset's recoverable amount. An assel's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individunl nsset, unless the nsset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the
carrying amount of an assel exceeds its recoverable amount, the nssel is considered im paired und s written down
to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value USiNg & pre-lan
discount rate that reflects current marke! assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. In determining lair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. [ no such
transactions can be identified, an approprinte valuation model is used.

The Company bases its impairment caleulution on defailed budpeis and forecast caleulations. These budgets and
forecast caleulations generally cover a period of five vears. For longer perinds, a long-term growth rate is
caleulated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth vear. To estimate cash flow projections beyond
peniods covered by the mast recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the
budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an inereasing rate can be justified. In
any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products. indusiries, or
country or countriesmrwhich the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used. o
Impairment losses, inclyding impaiment on inventories, are recognized in the statement of profit andd6ss Lo s
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Lava International Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(AN amonenrs in Indion Rupeey million unless otherwise stated)

(g} Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise 1o o financial asset of one entity and a fnancial liability or
equity instrument of another entiey,

Financial assets
Recognition and initial measurement

All Financial Assets are initially recognised at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets, which are not at fislr value through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair
value on initial recognition.

Classification and subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financinl assets are classified in four categories:

- Financial assets at amortised cost

- Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH)

- Financial assets, derivatives and equity mstruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
- Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financinl assets at amortised cost

A “financial assets” is measured ot the amortised cost if both the following conditions sre met;
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is 1o hold assets for collecting contractual cash
fows, and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding,

This category is most applicable to the Company. Afler initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective Tnterest Rate (“EIR™) method. Amortised cost is
caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amartisation is included in finanee income in the statement of profit and loss, The losses
arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, This category genemlly applies to
trade and other receivables.

Financial assets at FYTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial instrument, which does not meet the criteria for
calegorization as al amortized cost or as FVTOC!, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition. the Company may elect 1o desipnate a fmancial asset, which otherwise meets amortized cost or
FVTOCI eriterin, as at FVTPL. However, such election is considered only if doing so reduces or eliminates a
measuremnent or recognition inconsistency (referred 1o pe *aceounting mismuteh’).

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured st fair value with all changes recognized in
the statement of profit and loss. This category is applicable 1o investments in mutual funds.

Financial assets at FVTOC|
A “financial assets’ is classified as at the FVTOCH if both of the following criteria are met:

a)  The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets. and

b ﬁ1:_hnﬁ'aaairuc1ﬁnll cish Nows represent SPP
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Lava International Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(AN amomanty b fnclian Rigpees million unless otfiervise siated)

Financial assets included within the FVTOC] category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at
fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI), However, the
Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the
statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset. cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OC1
is rechassified from the equity to statement of profit and loss (P&L). Interest earned whilst bolding FVTOCI
financial asset is reported as interest income using the EIR method,

Equity Investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for
trading are clossified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable
election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value, The Company makes
such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is
imevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as al FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OC1. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to
statement of profil and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative
gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL catepory are measured at fair value. All changes in fair value
including dividend are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition
A financial asset is de-recognized when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the nsset have expired, or

- The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the assel or has assumed an obligation
1o pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through'
arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset,

When the Company has transferred its rights 1o recéive cash flows from an asset or has entered inlo a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When
it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred contral
of the asset, the Company continues 1o recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing
invalvement. In that case, the Company also recognises un associnted linbility. The transferred asset and the
associated Tiability are measured on o basis thit reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of » guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of considerntion that the Company could be
required lo repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applics expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

0. Financial assets are measured ut amortized cost ¢.g.. loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and
bank balance
b, Loan commitments which are nol measured as st FYTPL P
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Lava International Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
LA amowinis biv fralfan Rupees mifllion unfess otherise siated)

The Company follows *simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables.
The application of simplilied approach does not require the Company (o track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs ot each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines thar
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If eredit risk has not
increased significantly, 12-month expected credit loss (ECL) is used 1o provide for impairment loss. However,
if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer o significant increase in eredit risk since initial recognition, then
the entity reverts (o recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL,

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulling from all possible default events over the expected life of u
financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which resulis from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due 10 the Company in asccordnnce with the
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original
EIR.

The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment Joss allowance on porfolio of its trade
recejvables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the
trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates, At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analyzed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal} recognized during the period is recognized as income’ expense in
the statement of profit and loss. For the financinl assets measured as at amortized cost, contractual revenue
receivables, ECL is presented as an allowance, i, as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the
balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the
Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

Financial labilities

Imitial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings. net of directly
altributable transaction cosls.

The Company’s financial lisbilities include trude and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafls, financial gusrantee contracts und derivative finincial instruments,

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial Habilities depends on their elassification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fiuir value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and linancial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as ar fair value through profit or loss, Financial liabilities are
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category
also includes derivative financial nstruments entered into by the Company that sre not desighated as hedging
mnstruments in hedpe relationships as defined by Ind AS 109,

Ginns or losses on liabilities held for rading are recognised in the stmtement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are desigriated as such

al the initial date ot recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as

FVTPL, fisir yalue gains/ losses attributable to chinges in own credit risk are recognized in OCI, These-gaind «
loss are not subsgquently transferred 1o statement of profit and loss, However, the Company may iransfer the
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Lava International Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{ellf crerenits dne frilicon Ruepees milllon pedess otherwive siaed)

cumufative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrow ings are subsequently measured st amortised cost using
the EIR. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the EIR amortisation process,

Amortised cost is caleulated by 1aking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amontisation is included in finance costs in the statement of profit and
loss.

Financial guarantee contracis

Fmancial guaraniee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require & payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make & payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a financial instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised intially as a
lability ot fiir value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guaraniee,
Subsequently, the liability is measured o the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per
impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative smortisation.

De-recognition

A financial Tinbility is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of 4 new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Reclassification of financial asseis

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition, Alter initial
recognition. no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial linhilities,
For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclussification is made only if there is a change in the business
model for managing those assets. If the Company reclassifies finuncial assets, it applies the reclassification
prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period
following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses
{including impairment gains or losses) or interest,

Offserting financial instruments

Financial asset and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there
is & legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basls or
realise the asset and settle the Hability simultaneously.

ih) Derivative fnancial instrument

The Company uses derivative financial instruments i.e.. forward currency contracts to hedge its foreign currency
risks, Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised it fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered info and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets
when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to statement of profit and loss.
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Lava Intermational Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al samomniey it Indian Rupees million wmless otherwise stated)

(iy Fair value measurement

The Conipany measure its financial instruments such as derivative at fair vilue a1 each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction 1o sell the asset or transfer the linbility takes place either:

= Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
= Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a linbility is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or lishility. assuming that market participants sct in their sconomic best interes!.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability 1o generate
economic benefits by using the usset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses viluation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sulficient data
are available 1o measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

Al assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are calegorised
within the fair value hicrarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole: .

Level I- Quated (Unadjusted) marked prices in the active markets for identical assets or linbilities.

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant 1o the fair value measurement
is divectly or indirectly observable.

Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial siatements on s recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-nssessing cateporisation (based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

At cach reporting date, the manngement analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are
required to be re-measured or re-assessed us per the Company’s secounting policies. For this analysis, the
management or its expen verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in
the valuation computation to contracts and other relevunt documents.

(i) Inventorics
Invemtories are valued it the lower of cost or net realizable value.
Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

- Raw materials and spares: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and ¢ondition. Cost is determined on weiphted average basis.

= Finished goods and work in progress; cost includes cost of direct materinls and labour W |
of manufacturing overheads hased on the normal operating capacity, but excluding bk
Cost is dgterntined on weighted averape basis. .
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- Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in first out basis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinury course of business. less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(k) Revenue recognition

Ind AS 115 — “Revenue from Contracts with Customers" has been notified by MCA with effect from 1 April,
2018, vide its notification dated 28% March, 2018 which supersedes Ind AS 18 - “Revenue” and related
Appendices,

We account for revenue in accordance with Ind AS 115 "Revenue from Contraets with customers” using the
modified retrospective method.

The Company has recognised revenue in accordance with Ind AS 115 by applying the following 5 steps:
i.  ldentify the contracts with the customers,
i, ldentify the separate performance abligations,
iii. Determine the transaction price of the contract,
iv. Allocate the transaction price to each of the separate performance obligations, and
v. Recognize the revenue as each performance obligation is satislied,

Sale of Goods

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration entitled in exchanpe for those goods or services.

Revenue mainly comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods in the
ardinary course of the Company's activitics Revenue is shown net of GST, retums, sales incentives and
discounis,

The Company has concluded that the Company is principal in all of its revenue arrangements since the Company
is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as the Company has pricing latitude and is also exposed
to inventory and eredit risks.

The Company accounts for volume discount for pricing incentives 1o customers as a reduction of revenue based
on estimate of applicable discount/incentives,

Sale of Services

Revenue from sales of services are from installation of third party mobile applications in the handset and is
recognized by reference to the stage of completion, net of GST. Stage of completion is mensured by reference to
services performed to date as a percentage of totul services 1o be performed.

Interest

For all financial assets mensured either at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income,
interest income is recorded using the EIR.

EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash pavments or receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorier period, where appropriate, 1o the gross carrying amount of the finaneial asset or
to the amortized cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate. the Company estimates
the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider
the expected credit losses,

Dividend lncome

4 (e

Dividend Income isTecognized when the Company’s right 1 receive the amount has been esta blishedTatio,
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Incentive Income

The Company has recognized incentive income in form of Merchant export incentive income (MEIS), Duty
drawbick income based on export made,

Disaggregation of Revenue

See Note 29 (Segment Reporting) to Standalone Financial Statements for our disaggregated revenues,

Trade Receivables

A recervable represents the Company s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional.

(I Forcign currencies

(1) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which il operates ie. the “functional currency™. These fimancial
statements are présented in Indisn rupees, which s also the presentation currency of the Company.

(i) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing at the
date of transaction. Exchange differences urising on settlement of transactions, are recognised as income
or expense in the year in which they arise.

At the balance sheet date, all monetary items denominated in foreign currency, are reported at the exchange rates
prevailing at the balance sheet date and the resultant gain or loss is tecognised in the statement of profit and loss.
Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported
using the exchange rate at the dite of the transaction,

Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign eurrency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.c.,
translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCT or statement of profit and loss,
are also recognised m OCI or statement of profit and |oss, respectively).

(i) Income laves

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation suthorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the smount pre those that are enacted or

substantively enacted, m the reporting date in Indin.

Current tax assets and current tax Nabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right 1o set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to reallze the asset or settle the linbility on a net basis or simultancously,

Current income tax relating 10 items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised either in ather
comprehensive inCome or in equity, Current tax items are recognised in correlation o the underly ing transaction

either in OCWor directly in equity, Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returms with
respect o s.i!,hiliuns in which applicable tax regulstions are subject 1o interpretation and mnhli%ﬂd i
% |] LS

where lppnﬁﬁ:tﬁ. I ( -
Sy r : '|-'_l
. :L '.¢ £ { \ ;..- @ -_E'-'I
5 - \ )

1




Lava International Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(A amipaenity b Tnclicen Ruepees million sealess otherwise siaied)

Deferred Income Tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assels and habilities and their carrving amounts in the financial statements as at reporting date.
Deferred tax is measured hased on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

= When the deferred tax linbility arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability ina
transaction that is not » business combination and, at the time of the transaction, nffects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss,

In respect of txable temporary differences ussociated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interesis in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses, Deferred tax assets ane recognised to the extent thal it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

- When the deferred tax asset relating 1o the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not & business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss,

- In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures. deferred rax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be availuble
against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assels i$ reviewed at cach reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred fax asset to
be utilised, Unrecognised deferred tax nssets are re-nssessed at ench reporting date and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset (o be recovered.
Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised either in other
comprehensive income or in equity. Deferred ts items are recognised in correlation 1o the underly ing transaction
either in OCT or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred 1x liabilities are offser, i a legally enforceable right exists to set-aff current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred taxes relate to the same taxahle entity
ind the same taxation authority,

{n) Emplovee benefiis

The Company’s emplayes benefits mainly include wages, salaries, bonuses, defined contribution plans, defined
benefits plans, compensated absences, defermed compensation and share-based payments. The emplovee benefits
are recognized in 1he year in which the associnted services are rendered by the Company emplovees. Short-term

employee benefits are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss at undiscounted amotints duiring the period m
which the reluted services are rendered.

Defined Contribution plans

The i:untl'j,_’a_‘.lulil'lni,fu defined contribution plans are recognized in profit or loss as and when the mﬁﬂf :MH__
rendered by Emplﬁ?qf.s. The Company has no further obligations under these plans beyond /S periodic™, - |
'R ( Jg J
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contributions.
Defined benefits plans

In accordance with the local laws und regulations, all the employees in India are entitled for the Giratuity plan.
The said plan requires a lump-sum payment 1o eligible employees (meeting the required vesting service
condition) at retirement or termination of employment. based on a pre-defined formula

TheCompany provides for the liability towands the said plans on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out as
at the reporting date, by an independent qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

The obligation towards the said benefits is recognised in the Balance Sheet, at the present value of the defined
benefits obligations. The present value of the said obligation Is determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows, using interest rates of government bonds.

The interest expenses are calculated by applying the above mentioned discount rute to defined benefits
obligations. The interest expenses on the defined henefits obligations are recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss. However, the related re-measurements of the defined benefits obligations are recognized directly in
the other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. The said re-measurements comprise of
actuarial gains and losses (arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions). Re-
measurements are not re-classified (o the Statement of Profit and Loss in any of the subsequent periods.

Other short-term employee benefits

The Company provides for the linbility towards the compensated absences benefits on the basis of actuarial
valuation carried out as at the reporting date, by an independent qualified actuary using the projected-unit-credit
method. The refated re-measurements are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which
they arise.

Share based payments

Employees (including senior executives) of the Company may also receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled
lrunsactions),

Eguity-seiiled transactions
The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value ot the date when the grant is made using
Black Scholes Option Pricing Model,

That cost is recognised, topether with a corresponding increase in share-based payment reserves in equity, over
the period in which the service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions a1 each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Company's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The statement of profit and loss expense or credit for a period represents the movement in
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognised in emplovee benefits
expense.

Service conditions are not tsken into account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the
likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the C ompany’s best estimale of the number of equity
instriiments that will ultimately vest,

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because service conditions have not been met,

Where an sward is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the
award is expensed immedintely through profit or lass

Lol
B

7 | ﬁ( |
4 _ {4/



Lava International Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024
FAN camrosennis (o Indllan Bupecs mbilion unless otherlse staied)

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflectad as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted
earnings per share.

(o) Provisions and Contingenit Liabilitics
Provisions

General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of o past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required 1o settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating 10 a provision
is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due 1o the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Warranty provisions

Provisions for warranty-related costs are recognised when the product is sold or service provided to the customer.
Imitial recognition is based on historical experience. The initial estimate of warranty-related costs is revised
annually,

Decommissioning liability

The Company records a provision for decommissioning costs of @ leased facility. Decommissioning costs are
provided at the present value of expecied cosis to settle the obligation using estimated cash Nows snd are
recognised as part of the cost of the particular asset. The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that
reflects the risks specific to the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is expensed as incurred
und recognised in the statement of profit and loss as a finance cost The estimated future costs of
decommissioning are reviewed annually and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in the estimated future costs or in
the discount rate applied are added to or deducted from the cost of the asset.

Contingencies

A contingent lisbility is a possible obligation thal arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-oceurrence of one or more uncertuin future events beyond the cantrol of the Company or
a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that
cannot be recognized becnuse it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize o contingent
ligbility but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

{p) Earnings per share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the year atiributable 1o equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the vear.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit ar loss attributable 10 equity holders of the Company
(after adjusting the comesponding income/charge for dilutive potential equity shares) by the weighted average
number of equity shares owtstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that
would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares inta equity shares,

(g Operating segment

Operating segments are reported in @ manner consistent with the intemal reporting provided 1o the Chiel
Operating Decision Maker (CODM). Only those business activities are identified as operating segment for which
the operiting results are regularly reviewed by the CODM to make decisions about resource allocation and
performance measurement,
P i e .

The Company prepares its segment information in con formity with the accounting policies adopted fus-preparing
and presenting the Ginancial statements of the Company a< a whole. {.i‘x ) 2
. 2 k E!
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ir) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs to the extent directly attributable to the acquisition‘canstruction of assets that necessarily take
substantinl period of time (o get ready for their intended use are cupitalised along with the respective property,
plant and equipment up to the date such assel is ready for use. Other borrowing costs are charged to the statement
of profit and loss,

{$) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet and for the purpose of ststement of cash flows comprise cash al
hanks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject
to un insignificant risk of changes in value. These do not include bank bulances earmarked/restricted for specific

purposes.

(1} Equity investments (in subsidiarics, associntes and joint venture)

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses,
if any in separate financial stalements. Where an indication of impairment exists, the earrying amount of the
mvestment is assessed and writien down immediately 10 its recoverable amount, On disposal of investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint venture, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the Camying amounis
are recoghized in the statement of profit and loss.

(u) Measurement of Earnings before Interest, tax, deprecintion and amortization (EBITDA)

Ind AS compliant Schedule 111 allows line itemis, sub-line items and sub-totals tp be presented as an addition or
substitution on the face of the financial statements when such presentation is relevant 1o an understanding of the
Company's financial position /performance.

Accordingly, the Company has elected to present eamings before net finance cost, tax, depreciation and
amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the sustement of profit and loss. The Company
measures EBITDA on the basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations, In its measurement, the Company
does not include depreciation and amortization expense, finance costs, and tax expense.

(v} Exceptional items

Exceptional items refer to items of income or expense within the Statement of Profit and Loss from ordinary
activities which are non-recurring and are of such size, nature or incidence that their separate disclosure is
considered necessary to explain the performance of the Company.

(w) Recent Accounting Promouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") notifics new standards or amendments to the existing standards under

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules s issued from time ta time. For the year ended March 31,2024,
MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable 1o the Company

| ) '
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3 Property, plant & equipment

. Plant and  Furniture Offies —— Demonstration Leasehold Electrical Capital work-
EREEERINLS machinery and fixtures  equipment Carmputons Vihuichs fixtures improvements  installations . in-prrogress”
Gross Block
As 8t Ist April 2022 911.78 36.79 74.20 167,78 17.46 118.11 84,35 .50 1,721.17 183.24

Additions 135.78 - 213 iL.w 306 - 1.13 .06 17395 1081
Disposals £ Capitalized 511 029 0. 76 7.49 - - 15.65 1.0
Other adjustments - - - - - - - - - .
As ol 31 March 2023 104245 36.50 T6.27 191.18 20.52 12311 28548 L86 1.881.57 191.99
Additions 69.12 - 30 13.18 .53 - - - 92.03 @70
Disposals / Capitalized 1L.Os 0.59 LT 5.47 - 4 - - T.20 -
Cither sdjustments - - - - - - - - - -
As at 31 March 2024 LI110.52 5.9 79.38 199.049 27.05 128.11 Jas.48 0,86 1, 966,40 201.69
Accomulated Depreciation
As at Ist April 2022 431.07 36.64 TL2 149.26 12.54 128.05 31212 0,29 114118 .
Charge for the year 137.85 012 2.08 14.5] 1.65 .06 20,51 0.0 185,86 -
Disposals ( Capitalizcd 510 029 (.64 749 - - - - 13.52 -
Other ndjustments . - - - - - - - -
Asat 31 March 2023 563.82 36.47 72.65 156.28 14.19 12811 J41.63 0.37 1.313.52 -
Charge [or the year 142.07 02 161 20.20 224 - 19.03 .09 185.26 =
Disposals / Capituli zed 1.05 059 0.09 5.47 - - - - T.20
Other adjustments = - - - - - - - -
As at 31 March 2024 T84 35.90 74.17 171.01 16,43 128.11 36l 66 .46 1,491.58
Net Block

— y— =——
Asat 31 March 2024 405.68 0.01 521 28.08 10.62 - 24.82 040 474.82 201.69
A at 31 March 2023 ATR.63 003 L62 3510 6.33 - 43.85 0.49 S68.05 191.99

*Capital work-in-progress includes plant and machinery,

Nofte : Certain property, plant and m.q.wﬁ:_ are hypothecated as collateral against borrowings, the details of which have been described in note 11.
. | =3
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Ageing of Capital work-in-progress; -

Particulars

Amount in Capital work-in-progress for a period of

Projects which have exceeded their original budpet

Less than 1 | 1-2 yenrs 2.3 years Maore than 3 venrs Total
year
As ut 31 March 2024
Projects in progress .70 10.81 18118 - 201.69
Projects temporarily suspended - . - - -
Capital work-in-progress 9.70 10.81 181.18 - 10 1.69
Amount
Projects which have exceeded their origingl tmeling 191.99
Projects which have exceeded their original budget :
Particulars Amount in Capital work-in-progress for a period of
Lens than I | 1 -2 venrs 2-} years More than 3 vears Total
yenr
Asat 31 March 2023
Projects in progress 10.81 181.1% - - 191.99
Projects lemporasily suspended - - - - -
Capital work-in-progress 10.81 141.18 - - 191.99 |
Amoant
Projects which have exceeded their original timefine 151.18

{Thix spece his been intentionally feft blanki
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4 Intangible assets

“h

Computer softwares Internall
Purticulans nI;il livenses generated mﬂa;:re Foteg
Giross Block
As at Tst April 2022 21356 125.65 349.21
Additions 0,54 - 9,54
Disposnls 0,02 - .02
(Mher adjustments - - -
Asat 31 March 2023 133.08 125.65 J58.73
Additions 013 - 13
Dispesnis - -
Other adjustments - = E
As at M March 2024 23321 125,65 AS8.86
Accumulated Amortisstion
As at 1st April 2022 110.67 125,65 336.32
Chorge for the viear 842 - 842
Disposals .02 - 0,402
Other ndjustments C - z
As at 31 March 2023 219.07 125.65 34,72
Charge for the veur 155 - 755
Disposals - - -
Other adjustiments - - -
Agat 31 March 2024 126.62 125.65 I52.17
Net Block
As at 31 Mareh 2024 6.59 - 6.59
As at 31 March 2023 14.01 - 14.01
Right of use asset
Particulars Wareh
OfMice building Factory building &HII‘; :“ Vehicle Total
Gross Block
As al 1st April 2022 6281 159.15 .69 - 124.65
Additions - - - 19.08 19.08
D sposials = . . - .
As at 31 March 2023 61Kl 159.15 2.69 19.08 243.73
Additions 5 = = - -
Disposnls s . - —
Asat 31 March 2024 62.81 159.15 2.69 19.08 243,73
Accumulated Depreciation
As at 15t April 2022 27.87 65.46 .18 - 94.51
Charge for the vear 9.30 2182 .40} g1 3233
Disposals - - - - -
As at 31 March 2023 3717 87.28 1.58 nyl 126.84
Charge for the year EeL 21.82 139 3.25 34.75
Disposals . - - - -
Asat 31 March 2024 A6 A6 109,10 1.87 4.06 161.59
Net Block atiogs,
As at 31 March 2024 16.35 50.05 0,72 15.02 /BN
As at 31 March 2023 25.64 71.87 111 18.27 = 116,89 '} 3
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f Investment in subsidinries and associnte As il 3 Mareh 2024 As i M March 2023
Mo of units Amouni No of units Amouni

Unsproted equity imvestments fully paid-up
Investments in equity Instruments of subsidiaries (al cost)
Equity share of 1 HKD each fully paid up of Lava

International (H.K.) Limited 100, 0103, 0y 57.48 10,000,000 57.4%
Equity share of | HED each fully paid up of Xolo

International (HLK. } Limited [ 0D, (0 .83 100,000 i3
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up of Lava

Enterprises Limited 5,200,000 52,00 3,200,000 3200
Equity Share of 1000 LISD each fully paid up of China

Bird Centroamerica, §.A, 15000 3.716.14 15000  3.7016.14
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up of Sojo

Manufacturing Services Private Limited 2,219,000 22.19 2,219,000 2219
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up of Sojo

Manufacturing Services (A.P.) Private Limited 3,959,000 39.59 3.959 000 39.59
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up of Sajo

Distribution Private Limited 2,000 0.0a 9,000 0.09
Equity shares of 1000 AED each fully paid up of Lava

Technologies DMCC 18,250 339.41 1&.350 13941
Equity shares of 0.0001 USD each fully paid up of Lava

Technologies L.L.C. 4,000,000,000 2879 4,000,000,000 28.79

Investments in equity instruments of associate (al cosi)
Equity share of Rs. 10 of MagicTel Solutions Private

Limited 2500 043 2500 0.03
4,256.55 4.256.55

7  Financial assets

7 (a) Investments (non-current) (unguoted) Az at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Mo of Units Amouni MNo ol Units Amaount

Investments in equity instruments of other entities
(at fair value through other comprehensive income)
Equity Share of 0.001 SGD each fully paid up of Abhriva

Pre. Lid.* 63,830 - 63,830
—- —-
Agpregate amount of quoted investment - .

Agerepate amount of unguoted investment . &

*As at 31 March 2024, the Company has fair valued the investment at Nil (31 March 2023 - Nil) amount as there is no
future economic benefit expected from the investment.

6 o (This space has been intentionally left blank) ol )r_"
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7 (b) Investments (current) As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 Mareh 2023
No of Linits Amcumi Nov of Lnits Amiount

Investment in Muteal funds (Quaoted )at Tair value
through profit or loss)

LIC MF Dwernight Fund-Regular Flan Growth - - 17,387 20.11
Union Carporate Bond Fund Regular Plan - Growth 299,975 306 390,960 5.4
3.06 15,15
e — 1
Investment in Mutual funds (Unguoted)(at fair value
through profit or loss)
Canara Robeco MF - Regular Plan Growth - - 344,798 358
- 3.58
1.06 28.73
e ep—— e
Aggregate book value of quoted investment L.06 15.18
Aggregate market value of quoted investment J.he 25.15
Ageregite book value of unquoted investment - 3.58
Aggregate market value of unquoted investment - 358
fThis space has been intentionally left blank)
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Lava International Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2024
(AN aimenints in Indian Rupees million anless otlerwise sireed)

T (e} Trade receivables

Asat M1

As at 31

March 2024  March 2623

Unsecured
- Considered good 907763 8,047
= Receivables from refoted partics, considered good (refer note 30) 3915 B4R.42
= Considered doubtful .77 3199
2,953,506 9.527.47
Liss
= Provision Tor dowbtiul dels (36,77 (3.9
- Allvwance for credil loss (ECL) {7,164.92) (6,953,23)
1,751.87 2,542.25
Ageing of trade receivables: -
Duistanding for following periods lram due date
afl paviient =
Farcienjurs Nt Due. Less than | & months (o 1-2vears -3 vears Maore than 3 Wit}
6 monthy I vear Nedrs
As at 31 March 20124
Undispuled trode receivables - 28.64 14.76 419,73 1, (k4572 L5921 6, 78873 991679
considered good
Undisputed trade receivables - credil - = - . - -
inpaired
Disputed trade receivables - - - . - . - -
considered good
Disputed wade receivablics = credit . L e 1.4] 6.74 1.k 2646 36.77
impaired
Total trade receivables 28.04 15.03 52114 1.052.46 1,521.18 GR15.19 9.951.56
Less: Provision for doubiful debis ' {3677
Lets: Allownnee lor eredin hosi (7, 064,92)
Net trade receivahles 2,751.47
Owistanding for following perlods from due date
. af payment
R sk Less than | 6 months 1-2vears -3 yenrs | More than 3 Towt
Gmonths | 1 vear yEArs
As 5t 31 March 2023
Undisputed trude receivables - 10118 LRO38 917,50 1,558.04 1,720.57 00851 GATS 4R
considercd good
Undisputed trade receivables « eredit * - E = - - =
impainod
Disputed trade receivables - . - - - - . -
considered good
Prisputed trade recenables = credit - a.11 07 119 044 26,08 ilee
impaired
alal trade recelvakbiles 10118 1 HO.44 91797 1,559.23 1,734.00 5.034.59 151747
Less: Provision for doubiful debis (3199
Less: Allowance for credit loss 16,953.23)
MNel trade receivables 2,542,238

For terms and conditions relating to trade recelvablis {reler note 27}

To comply with the requirement of Ind A5 109 - Financial Insiruments, the Company has created total ECL of Rs. 7.164:92 million (31
Murch 2023: Rs. 6,953 23 million). As it was impracticable to nscertain the ECL Jor ench of respective enrlier financial vear, therefore, Rs.
21 1.69 million in compliance with the requirements of par 44 of Ind AS 8 - Accounting Palicies. Changes in Accounting Estimatcs and
Emors, has boen adjugted during the yoar 1o the retaned eamings




Lava International Limited
Notes to standalone linancial statements for the period ended 31 March 2024
AN amennis i lndicn Rupees midlion snless otberise seaied)

T{d) Cash nnd cash equivalents Ax at 31 As at 31
March 2024 March 1023
Cash on hand 232 ile
Balances with banks:
O current accounts 140,40 1137
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months # | Refer footnote to note 7(1)) 299,15 42,56
441.87 TTL.0%

B Shor-term deposits are made for varving periods of between one diy and three months, depending on the mmedinle cush
requirements of the Company, and cam interest ot the respective shost-ierm deposit rates

T{e) Other bank balnnces As at 31 Asat 31
March 2024  March 2023
Deposits with bank lor origingl muurty of mere than thiee months bul less than 843.09 914.95
twelve months (Refer footnode 1o note (1)
R43.00 914,95
e T
TN Oiber financial asser (Non-current) Asat M1 As i 31

March 2024  March 2023

Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise

Security deposits
- Considered good 3529 ile2
= Considered] doubifi)| 4.92 4.92
] 4021 36,54
Less: Provision for doubtful deposits 14.92) {4.92)
3529 362
Bank deposits with remmaining muturity of more than twelve months ¥ 004 65.36
Interest ncerued on bank depasits 0.02 .41
3535 103.3%
Note:
# Includes margin money deposits under lien (refer npote Tid), note 7(e} and, note T(N):-
- against Jetter of credit facility, bank gusrantees und other margin 71777 1.317.28
- against amount pald under protest (excluding interest accrued) (reler note 31(HNeK) I00.00 300.00
T (g) Other Mnuncial nasets {current) Asat M Asat 3l

March 2024 March 2023

Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise

Security deposils (A) 201 17.48
Interest wocrued on bank deposits () 148 65 173.92
Derivative asset () 054 3
Others receivablis
- Comsidered good® L1618 159.93
- Considered doubiful** $22.06 T13.27
638.24 §73.20
Lass: Allowance for oredit lnss (ECL) {522.06) (713.27)
(L H] 116.18 159.93
Tomml(A+B+C+D) 1'}'1_33 a51.33
. 'I ::._";_,.-" '\.II."I =
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Lava Internntional Limited
Notes to stundalone financinl statements for the period ended 31 March 2024
(AN amonery in fndiar Rupees miflion anlfess oifseraise saed)

* Includes other receivables from related parties amounting o Bs %594 milllron (31 March 2023 - Bs 142,48 million) {refer note 30
for details ),

*=To comply with the requirement of Ind AS 109 - Financial Instraments, the company his created ECL of Rs. 522.06 millon
during the current financial year, As it was impracticable to ascertain the ECL far each of respective carlier financial vear, thercfore,
Rs, 522,06 million in compliance with the requirements of parn 44 of Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors, has been adjusied 10 the retained camings during the cuerent financial yeor.

8 Inventories As at 31 Asat 31
(Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value) _ March 2024 March 2023
Roaw mmerials and components (refer note 1 & 2 befow) 266417 284349
Finished goods (refer note 2 below) R 50 1.242.30
Traded goods {refer note 2 below ) 0.96 0.68
Spares (reler nate 1 helow) EINRic] 308,02

3,839.26 4.394.99

Mote | including stock in transit
- Raw materials and components 4830 299.74

Note 2 The nhave inventory is nel of -
i) Write down of Inventory from cost 1o nel reulisable value

Finiched poods 389 2568
Traded goods 0.01 .02
Spares 1.84 4.13
i) Write down of inveniory for obsolescence

Finished goods ’ 17.92 13,69
Traded goods 002 0,01
Spares 57.12 13243
Ruw materials and compuanents .66 2.

9 (u) Other non-cirrenl assels Asat 31 Asat 3l

March 2024  March 2023

Unsecured, considered good. unless otherwise stated

Capital advances 3200 3211
Prepaid expenses - 175,94
3200 208.05
2 (b) Other current nssels Asat 3 Asat 3l

March 2024 March 2023

Unsecured, cansidered good, unless otherwise stated

Prepuidd expenses {A) 348,84 590.60
Balance with statutory/ govemment suthorities (refernote 31 (B) (B 54629 B09.27
& )
Advances Lo vendors
- Considered good 1.37232 1.137.56
= Advances o related parties, considered good (refer note 30) Joo7 .69
= Considered doubtiful 9.76 9.76
1,692.15 LT
Less: Provision loe doubtlul advances (9.76) (9.76)
(C) 1.682.39 1.161.25
(Mhers iy 322.93 180,10
Toll{A+B+C+D) 290045 2.541.22
. ) fa BN
il fef .
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Lava International Limited
Notes to standalone financial statemenis for the perlod ended 31 March 2024
(AN armouts in fndian Rupees million wnless otherwise vioted

I Equity share capital and instruments entively equity in nature As af 31 As at 31 March
March 2024 2023
Authorized share capital
TR L0000 equity shares of Re. 5 each 3910.00 31,000,104
{31 March 2023 : 752,000,000 eguity sheres of Rs. 5 each)
LO0.000 (31 March 2023 100,000) Compulsory Conventihle 1.0t 1.00
Preference Shure (CCPS) of Rs 10 each
S00.000 (31 March 2023 S00,000) Compulsory Convertible 50000 (L0
Preference Shares (CCPS) of Rs. 100 cuch
3.961.00 396100
lssued. subscribed and fully paid-ap share capital
541,126,216 equity shares of Ra. § cach 2.705.63 2.705.63
(31 March 2023 : 541,126,216 equity shares of Rs. 5 each)
100000 (31 March 2023 = 100,000) Compilsary Convertible 1.0 1,00
Preference Shures { COPS) of Rs. 10/ euch,
324,172 (31 March 2023 : 324,172) Compulsory Conventible 3242 1242
Preference Shares (CCPS) of Re. 100 each
Total lssued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 1,739.08 2,739.05

(a)  Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
{i}  Equity shares

Amaiini Mo of Shares
As at 31 As at 31 Asat 31 As ut 31 March
March 2024  March 2023 March 2024 2023
At the beginming of the year 2, 705,63 2,708 63 S41,126 216 541,126,216
|ssued during the vear - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 2,705.63 3,7056)  S41,126,216 541126216

(i)  Instruments entively equity in nature -Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (COPS)

Amount No of Shares
Asm M As at 3 Asat 3 As at 3] March
March 2024 March 2023 March 2024 2023
At the beginning of the vear 3342 3142 424,172 424,172
Converted 10 equity and other equity : G . _
Owistanding at the end of the year LEN F Ai42 424,172 424,172

(b} Terms/ rights nttached to equity shares

The Company has only one cliss of equity shares having o par value of RS, § per share (31 March 2023: Rs, § per share).
Each holder of equity shares is entitied 1o one vole per share and dividends in proportion 1o their shareholding. n the
event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitied 10 receive residual asseis of the
Company afier distribution of all preferentinl umounts, The distribution will be in peaportion 1o the number of equity
shares held by the shareholders:

Terms! rights attached to compulsory convertible prefevence shares (CCPS)

i During financial year 2017-18, the Company hag issued 500,000 CCPS of Rs.100 cach, The preference ahares shall
collectively be entitled to dividend of 0.0001% of the pggrepate face value of the preference shares. As per the torms of
Subseription and Sharcholders Agreement, the preference sharcs miy be converted, at any time ut the discretion of the
CCPS holder, into fixed number of equity shares, further, if any of the preference shares hisve not been converted into
equity shures within 19 vears snd 11 months, remaining preference sharcs shall be nutomatically and compulsorily
converled imo eguity shares upon the expiry of such period.

Pursuant © approval of board of directors of the company in the meeting held on 9th Aug. 2021, the Company hiss
converied its 175,828 CCPS into 1,528,834 Equity Shures of Rs. 10 cach at the premium of Rs. 1.5 per Share,

. . -"A'I[l."r \
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Lava International Limited
Notes 1o standalone financial datements for the period ended 31 March 2024
FAN arcnirets i Indian Rupees million unless othervise stated

ii.

i)

i)

During financial year 2017-18, the Company kad issued 100,000 CCPS of Rs, 10 ¢ach for o consideration of Rs, 520,00
million. The CCPS chall carry o eoupon of (L0 % und shall Be non-cumulative in nature. which i+ to be declared at the
diseretion of the sharchalder of the Company. The preference shares may be canverted into the equity shares al any (ime
at the discretion of the CCPS holder, subject to the terms of the ugreement. If uny of the preference shires have not been
converted o eguity shares within 10 vears from the slhment date, then such remaining prelerence shares shall be
compulsorily converted imo equity shares wpon the expiry of such period,

In response of the exercise the option available, the Company has o fssue 368832 equity shares against 100,000
CoPs,
Number of bonus shares issued during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date:

Mo of Shares
As at 31 March As ai 31 Asat 31 As nt 31 As at 31 March
2024 March 2023 March 2022 March 2021 2020
Equity shares allotied during the - - 236,618,862 - .

year os Tully paid bomus shares

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:
Equity Shares of Rs. 5 each fully paid (31 March 2023 : Rs § each fully paid)

Mo af Shares Percentage sharchold

Nume of Sharcholders Asat 3l Asatd Asart 31 Asat 3 March

March 2024  March 2023 March 2024 2023
Axcis Capital Limited® 145,021, 160 . 26.80%% 0.00%
Hari Om Rai 82630240 140,658,304 15.2T% 25.99%
Sunil Bhalla 62,123,163 GRATR203 1145% 1R.1%%
Yiush Investments 0,693, 140 60693140 11,.22% IT.22%
Vishal Sehpal 16,989 083 71,244,123 6. 54% 13.54%
Shailendro Nath Rai 26,412,742 40,914,794 4, B8% T.50%
Shibani Sehgal 29,042 880 29,042 880 33 537%

*The shereholding disclosed in this fnmneial sttement us an 31032024 B hased on mformation recelved from the
Registrar and Transter agent. Sojo Inforel Private Limited has jssusd NCD4 in Mirch 2021 and Axis Capitml Limbed
was underwriter for issuance of such NCD. The company and Sojo Infinel Private Limited are having common
promoters namely Mr. Hari Om Ral, Mr. Sunil Bhalls, Mr. Vishal Sehgal, Mr. Shailendra Nath Rui. The promoters of
the company have informed the Maoagement that purt of their equity shares of the Company have been pledged for
issuance of NCDs These pledged shares of the Company were held as on 31.03.2024 in the name of Axis capital limited
as per the terms and conditions of issuance of NCDs and other related documents. The promoters are In discussion with
the Axis Capital Limited 1o reinstute erstwhile beneficiary position by settlement of their Hability towards NCDs,

Instruments entirely equity in mature -Compulsory Convertible Prefereace Shares (CCPS)

No of Shares Percentage sharcholding

Name of Shareholders Asat 31 Asat 31 Asat 31 As at 31 March

March 2024 March 2023 March 2024 2023
LINIC Memoey Technology (Hong Kong) Limited 324,172 324172 100,008 HLO0%
Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS)
of Rs. 100/ cach
Bennet! Colemun And Company Limited 100,000 100,000 100.00% 100.00%
Compulsory Convertible Preference Shures (COPS) N
of Rs. 10/~ cach Aﬁ“—'a{}



Lava International Limited
Nates to standalone lnancial staterments for the perfod ended 31 March 2024
1Al amionris (s fncdion Rupees milfion wiless aterwise stated

(e)  Shareholdings of Promoters
Equity Share leld by promoters as of 31st March 2024

X 2 % of total % Change
h &
Promoters Name Mo of Shares Shares by the year
Hari Onny Rai 82,650,240 15231 <10 T2%
Sumil Bhalla 62,125,161 11,480 -0, Tl
Vishal Sehpal 16,980,081 G849 4,707
Shailendrn Nath Rai 26412,782 4, 8R% =2 68%
Total 208,175,268 384T
Equity Share held by promoters as of 31st March 2023
Y of total % Change
Promoters Name Mo af Shares Shares during the yesr
Hari O Rai 140,658,304 25.99% -T.33%
Suni! Bhalla 98,378,203 K. 1 B% =2 K1%
Vishal Sehgal 73244123 13.54% -2.80%%
Shailendra Nath Ral 40,914,798 7.36% -1,12%
Total 353,195,428 65,27

i Shares reserved for issue under options :
For details of shares resetved lor issue under the employee stock option (ESOP) plan of the Company (refer note 36),

[} ] Financial liabilithes .

1{a) Borrowings (Non-curreni) Asat 31 As at 31 March
March 2024 N3
Secured (refer note 1 below)
Term loan from banks .44 286
Term loan from vther parties 12633 226.96
132.77 12982
Current maturities of non current borrowings [refer note 11(b)) 12143 40023

Note | Security disclosure for the outstanding current borrowings are as follows:

(i) Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) had been issued during the earfier vear amounting to Rs. 250 million. The
amount outstanding against the said loan is Rs, NI million (31 March 2023: Rs, 250,00 miilion) which carries interest ¢ )
12.41% p.o and repaid on 25th Seplember 2023, The loan was seoured by fiest and exclusive charge by pledige of certain
shares of the Company held by the promoters. Further, the loan has been personally guarinteed by certain direciors of
the Company

(i1} Car Joan had been obtained from HDFC bank amounting to Rs. 2.32 million during the earlier veur and the amount
outstanding agnins the snid loan is Re. 1,07 million (31 Morch 2023: Ra. 1.53 million) which carries inerest @l 7.50%
p-a. and repayable in 60 equal monthly instalments starting from O7th May 2021, The loan is scheduled to be repaid by
07th April 2026, The loan is secured against the vehicle funded out of aforessid loan.

(iii) Car loan has been obtained from HDFC bank amounting to Rs. 253 million and the ameunt outstanding against the
said loan is Ra. 1.79 million (31 March 2023: 2.24 million) which carries interest @ 7.70% pua, and repaysble in 60
equal moathly instalments starting from 05th August 2022, The loan is scheduled to be repaid by 05th July 2027. The
loan 18 secured against the vehicle funded out of afpresgid loan.

iv) Car loan has been obtnined from HDFC bank smounting o Bs. 2,10 million and the amount outstanding against the
said loan is Rs. 1,89 million (31 March 2023: Nil million) which carries interest i 8.80% pua. and repayauble in 60 equal
monthly instalments starting from 05th September 2023, The loan is scheduled 1o be repaid by 05th August 2028 The .

lonn is seatired a,gzai_ly__lq_l!w vehicle funded out of aloresaid loan. J/.-r"—“\.::.:\
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Lava Intevnational Limited
Notes to standalone financial statemenis for the period ended 31 March 2024
iAN amsunis in fedian Rupees million woless gtherwise sised)

v Clar loun ki been obtained from Indian bank amountling to Re. 3.96 million and the smount outstanding aginst the
suid loan is Bs. 3.72 million (31 March 2023: nil) which carries imercst @ 8.65% p.a. and repayable in 80 cqual monthly
instalments starting from 07th December 2023, The loan 15 sehediled 16 be repald by 07th November 2028 The loan is
secured against the vehicle funded out of aforesaid loan,

(vil Term loan from Bajaj Finance Lid, had been obtained amounting 1o Rs. 330 million during the carfier vear and the
amount outsianding against the said loan is Re. 18530 million {311 March 2023: Re. 267.65 million} which carries
interest @ 11,35% pan (31 March 2023; 11,00% poa.) and repayabile in §1 equal monthly instalments starting from (5th
April 2022 1o 05th June 2026. The loan is secured by exclusive charge over plant and machinery funded under the term
lozn with minimum Fixed Assets Coverage Ratlo (FACR) of 1.33x and second pari-passu charge on overall current
sty (current and luture) of the Company, Furlher, the loan has been personnlly puaranteed by certoin directors of' the
Company.

(vii) Term loan from Oxyzo Financial Services Private L, had been obtained during the ealier year amounting to Rs. 20
millian and the amount outstanding agnins! the suid Town is Rs, nil million (31 March 2023; 5.46 million) which carrics
interest @ 12.25% pa. and repayable in 24 equal monthly instalments, The loan repaid on 05th September 2023, The
loan was secured by personal guaraniee by director of the Company,

iviii) Term loan from Oxyzo Financial Services Private Lid, had been obtained during the current year amounting to Rs.
75 million and the amount outstanding against the suid loan is Rs, 60,43 million (31 March 2023: Nil) which carries
interest @ 12.5% p. and repayable in 24 equal monthly instalments. The lobn to be repaid on monthly EMI ending on

05 Dctober 2025,

{1x) Term |oan from Tata Capital Finoncial Services Lid. has been obtiined amounting to Rs. 125 million and the amount
outstanding against the snid loan s Bs. oil million (31 Morch 2023: 104,17 miltion ) which carries interest @ 11.10%
pe and repayable in 24 equul monthly instalmems.The loan was repaid in full during the current fnancial yeor. The
loan was secured by guarantee equivalent to the 50% of the facility amount and personal puarantee hy certain directors

of the Compuny.
Note 11: Satisfaction of charges i
There are no charges or sutisfuction which are el 10 be registered with the Registrar of Companics beyond the statulory
period,
11(b) Borrowings (current) Asat 3 As at M March
March 2024 2023
Cash credit / overdrafi facility from banks (repayuble on demand)® TI.57 TA3.R2
Buyer's eredit® - 139.03
Waorking capitnl demand Joan** 155.00 53100
Current maturities of non current borrowings [refier note 11{a)] 121.43 401.23
991.00 1.815.08

*Secured by way of hypothecation on first pari- pessu charge hasis, on overall current assets of the Company (current
and futwre) and collaternl securities/personnl guarsntees of promoter directors and refative of promoter direclors The
said loan is further secured:

{1) by way of a first charge on parl-passu basis, of existing and future movable fixed assets of the Company excluding
sofiware and machineries/ assets ereated by way of term louns from other banks and fnancial institutions,

(2) by way of a second charge on pari-passu basis, of such existing and future movable fixed assets of the borrower such
muchineries/ other nssets which are created by way of term bouns from other bonks and financial instintions. The cash
eredit is repayvable on demand and carries interest @ 10.35% p.a. 1o 11.30% p.a. (31 March 2023: 10.30% poa. to 11.55%
p.a.). Buyer's credit carries interest NAL(31 March 2023: 4 SOFR +0.50% p.a. 10 SOFR +1% p.a.)

**Working capital demand loan from of Rs. nil million (31 March 2023: Re. 406 million) is secured Secured by way of

personal gusrantee of promoters of the company, This ficility ts repavable on demand and carries interest ranging from

9.25% pa. 10 9.30% pa, (31 March 2023: 8.83% o 9.20% p.o. ) Working capital demand loan of Rs. 125 million (31

March 2023: Rs. 125 million) is secured by way of pumrantee equivatent 10 the 100% (31 March 2023: 50%) of the

Tucility smovnt gnd personal pusrantee by certaln directors of the Company and repiyable on demand and carrles Inferest

@11.35 % (31 March 2023: 11.10% p.o.). Working capital demand loan of Rs. 30 million (31 March 2023: nil million) s
secured similar to cash credit facilities as mentioned above and repayable on demand and carries interest @ 1 I.!G'lqpf—“ O\

(31 Muarch 2023: Nil). \ ‘{r?/
,g (¢ )
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Lava International Limited
Notes to standalone fnancial statements for the period ended 31 March 2024
AN ermieneniy i Do Hrpees millfon unfers otberwlse stated)

MNote 1:

In respect of working capital loans, quarterly returns or statemenis of current assets filed by the conpany with banks are
in agroement with ihe books ol accounls,

11{¢} Trade payables Asat 31 Asat 31 March

March 2024 2023
Micro and small enterprises (refer note 32) 229.93 13247
Chiber that micro and small enterprises 3.0 44 3.2%9.13
Piyable to related pantics (refer note 30) 21032 27,66
3.504.69 3,418,965
Ageing of trade payables: -
Particulars fiess thaa 1 1-2 yeurs 23 vears Meet then 3 Tatal
venr vears
As ut 31 March 2024
Cutstanding dues 1o micro and smuoll
enierprises 329.53 - - . 12993
Others 2,831.37 816 081 153.37 299311
Disputed - dues to miceo and small
enlerprises . . - . :
Dispuied « Cribers = . - - E
Trade pavables 3,130 B.l6 .41 15337 322304
Peowvision for Expenses M08
Total Trade payables J.54.69
Particulirs vamtheml | sayesss | 2ayeus | Morsthen3 Totat
il VRS
Al at 3 March 2023
Crutstanding dues 10 micro and small
entesprises 13217 - - - 13217
Others 3,108.52 10,04 103 (.58 311719
Disputed - dues 1o micro and small
ieigiiea . . . . =
Disputed - Chers . . . ' .
Trade payahles 3,237.69 .04 105 .58 3,249.36
Pravision for Expenses 169.60
Tutal Trude pavables J 418,96
11{d) Lease liabilities (Non-curreni) Asat 31 As st 3 March
March 2024 2023
Lease Liahilities (refer note 37) 66,75 10947
.75 109.47

1{e) Lease linbilithes | current)

March 2024 2023
Lewse Liabilities (refer note 37) 42.70 38.40
— 42,70 38.40

Asatdl Asat 3l March




Loava International Limited
Niles to standalone financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2024
(AN amerisnis dn Jadian Rupees million wunfess orherwise srated

11 (0 Dther Gnancial Habilities (current)

Pavahle for capital purchases
Securliy depositg

Inter company deposit

Interest aecried on borrowings
Empliyee pavables

Derivative lability

12 (a) Provisions {Non-current)

Provision for employee benefits
Provision lor gratwity (refer note 28)
her provisions

Provision for decommissioning fiabilities #

As at 3 As at 3 March

March 2024 2023
- LXT
1.495.65 | 460,31

IR -

n 08
18.34 43.51
- 1.29
1,637.76 1.512.46

Asat 3l Agar3l March

Murch 2024 023
59.88 57.28
2.06 2.06
61.94 59.34

# Under lease agreements entered by the Company, it has w Incur restoration cost for restaring lease premises to the
original condition al the lime of expiry of lease period. The timing of the outflows is expected 10 be in next 3 vears. The

impeet-of discounting bs not considered being immaterial and henee ignored,

12 (b} Provisions (Curreni)

Provisien for employee henefits
Provision for gratuiey (refer note 28)
Prowiston [or compensated absences

Other provisions
Provision lor warmntics®

Asat 3l Asat 3 March

March 2024 2023
1627 25.67
17.10 20.59
3337 46.20
130,88 37.53
130088 8753
164.25 133,79

* The Company provides warranty on its products by giving an undertaking to repair/replace items to the customers.
which fails to perform satisfactorily during the warranty period. Provision made represents the amount of the expected
cost of meeting such obligations of repairreplacement. The timing of the outflows is expected 1o be in next 12 months

(31 March 2023 : 12 months).

Provision for warranties

At the beginning of the year

Arising during the year

Less: Utilized / revirsed during the year
At the end of the year

Provision for decommissloning liabilities
Af the beginming of the vear

Less; Reversed during the year
At the end of the year

As at 31 Asat 31 March

Muarch 2024 2023
B7.53 101,56
186.49 B6.92
(143.14) (100.95)
13088 B7.53
Asat 31 As at 3 March
March 2024 2023
206 206
206 .06




Lava International Limited

Motes (o standalone financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2024
LAl exmenants in Indian Rupees million wnless otherwise stated)

13 Oriher carrent liabilities

Advance from custimers
Tax deductible ot solrce
Other statutoey labilities

14 Curreot tox lnbilities (net)

"rowisdon for Income tax*

As ot 31 As at 31 March

March 2024 1023
334.50 23617
20.74 o
T4 14.64
462.18 301.52

As at 31 As at M Mirch

Murch 2024 1023
150.48 108. 16
150,48 108.16
—_——

*Net of advance tax and TDS receivable amounting to Rs. 387159 million (31 March 2023: Rs. 3,734.19 miltion)

(This space has beerr intentionally left blank)
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Lava International Limited

Notes to standalone financinl statements for ibe period ended 31 March 2024

(Al amsonnits in Indian Rupees million unless otherwise siated)

15

7

Revenue from operations

Sule of products (refer note 30)
Sale of services
Other operating revenues

- Serap sale

- Export incentives

Other income

Interest income on financial ssset at amorntised cost

Interest income on fixed deposits with banks

Mt gain on sale of mutual fund investments

Fair value gain on derivative financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss

Fareign exchange differences (net)

Profit on sale of propenty, plant and equipment

Miseellaneous meome

Cost of raw material and components consumed

Inventory materials at the beginning of the yesr
Purchase during the vear
Less: Inventory materials at the end of the vear

Changes in inventories of finished goods, spares and stock in
trade

Inventories at the end of the year
Traded goods

Spares for handsets

Finished goods

Inventories af the beginning of the year
Traded goods

Spares for handsets

Finished goods

Far the year ended

For the vear ended

3 March 2024 31 March 2023
23,2568 .61 22,000,068
14.44 47.16
.22 4.97
318 393
23,295.45 22.056.74
For the year ended  For the vear ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1.27 1.13
9203 73.10
(0.22) 0.30
1.83 .
10734 176.69
0.65 1.95
S8l 19.91
208,71 273.08
For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
284349 2,802,085
17.679.46 16,955.15
2.664.17) (2,843.49)
17.858.79 16,913,771
For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
.96 0.68
J04.64 308.02
B69.50 1,242.80
1.175.09 1,551.50
068 6.57
308.02 477.05
1,242.80 1,067.39
1,551.50 1,551.1
376.41 (0.49)
Anatios
e S



Lava Internationsl Limited
Notes (o standalone financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2024
(Al aniownts in Indian Rupees million unless otherwise siared)

19 Employee benefits expense For the vear ended  For the vear ended
31 Murch 2024 31 March 2023
Salory, wages and bonus (refer note 30) 125219 1,168.43
Contribution to provident and other finds (refer note 28) 64.04 57.27
Gratuity expense (refer note 28) 2070 18.90
Share based payment expense (refer note 36) 9.02 16.83
Stafl welfire, recruitment and training Jal.lb 22125
1.607.11 1,482.68
Eess
20 Other expenses For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Power and fuel 49,97 46.02
Rent 4997 52.1%8
Rates and taxes 232 1253
Insurance 15.37 1434
Repair and maintenance - others 107.73 78.78
Advertisement and markeling expenses 65257 468,75
Sales pramaotion and scheme expenses 566,78 80532
Freight and cortage 196.24 247.79
Outsourced solary cost 6046 30.65
Travelling and convevance 107.42 99.76
Communication costs 01 7.95
Warranty expenses 186.49 86.92
Legal and professional fees 173.45 156.13
Payment to auditor (refer detalls below) 2.50 2.50
Danation 0.07 118
Corporate social responsibility expense (refer note 33) l0.79 10.03
Fair value loss on derivative financlal instrument at fair value
through profit or loss - 1.96
Miscellaneous expenses 39.69 15.73
2.13.53 2,138,582
Payment to auditor For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
As-auditor:
- Audit fee 2.50 2.50
Relmbursement of expenses - -
.50 .50
21 Deprecintion and amortisation expense For the vear ended  For the year ended
3 March 2024 31 March 2023
Depreciation expense
- on Property, Plant & Equipmem 18526 185.86
= on ROLU Asset 34.76 3233
Amortisation expense on [ntangible Assets 7.55 B.42
s 22757 226.61
\:. ~al
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Lava International Limited
Notes to standalone Gnancial statements for the period ended 31 Muarch 2024
(AN amounts in Indion Rupees mitlion unless otienvise stated)

12 Finance costs For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Interest on
=Term loan 120.949 137.20
~Cash credit 78.74 7980
=Seeurity deposits 347 g4l
-Incame tax 12.11 20,16
-om Lease Liability (refer note 37) 1630 18.68
Bank charges 113.68 102,16
345.24 3oh.41

{This space has been intentionally left blanki
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23

Income tax expense

{a) The major components of income tax expense for the yenar etded are as Tollows:

ib)

=)

For the year ended  For the year onded
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current income tax:
Currenl incoime tox charge | 65946 118.05
Adjustments In respeet of income tax of previous sear 0.0 (16.98)
Deferred tax :
Relating 1o origination and reversal of temporary differences (32.77) AR
Taotal tax expense on profit of the vear (a) 117.2%8 109.55
Other comprehensive income
Delerred tx related 1w jlems recognised in other comprehensive income during
in the year:
= Re-mepsurement losses of deflined benefit plan 003 (1.43)
Total tax expense on other comprehensive income of the vear (b) 0.0 (0.43)
Total tax expense on total comprehensive income of the year {a) + (h) 11730 10912
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplicd by India’s domestic tax rate
For the year ended  For the vear ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Profit before tny 346.03 46285
Applicable tax rate 25.107% 25.17%
Expected tax evpense (A) 137.44 1650
Expenses nol considered in determining wxable pralli . {3.64) 25.00
Income not considered in determining taxalble profit {1.32) (377
Tax pertnining 1o carfier vears (.0 {16, %8)
Others 115.28) 11200
Total adjustments (B) (20.19) (6.95)
Actual tax expense [(C= A+R) 117.25 109.55
Tax expense recognised in statement of profit snd loss 117.25 109.55
Effective Tax Rate 21.47% 2367%
Deferred tax assels (net)
Deferred tax relates to the following: For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Deferred tax sasets on account of;
Property, plant and equipment (99.95) {93.99)
Provision for emplovee benefits (23.47) i26.06)
Allowance for credit loss (ECL) & provision far doubtful sdvinees (272.94) (271.76)
Provision for obsolescence Inventories ( 19.06) { 1080y
Provision far warranty {32.53) -
Others - 4,66
Deferred tax related to other comprehensive income of the vear:
Re-measurement losses of defined benefit plan 341 336
Change in falr value of FVTOCI equity instruments (2.31) 12.31)
Deferved tax liability on account of:
Tux to be paid on custom duty receivable in future vears {refer note 14) H7.04 B9.45
Nt deferred tax linbility/ (asset) including other comprehensive income of
the year (360.16) Ew:'ﬂ 0
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Notes to standalone financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2024
Ll amosndy in Indion Bupees nilfion siless orherwise sigiedd)

Movement in deferred tax asseis for the vear ended 31 Varech 2024
Asut M Hecognised in other Recognbsed in prafit As at M March 2024

March 2023 comprehensive and Josy
ideame

Property, plam and equipment (93.99) . 15.9%) (99,95
Provision for employee benefits {26, 06) . .59 (23.47)
Allowance for eredit los (ECL) & (271,761 . (118} {272.94)
preovisian for doubiful advances
Provision for obsolescence inventoriss (T0:80) - (%.36) {19.06)
Tax to be pald on custom duty £9 44 - (2 34) 87.09
receivahle in Tuture venrs (refer note
34
Provision for warranty - (312.93) (32.93)
thers 4, filh . {4 fifhy .
Deferred tax related to other
comprehensive income of the year:
Re-measurerment losses of defined 1,34 0,08 . 34
benefit plan
Chunge in falr value of FVTOCT eguity (2.31) - - (231}
InstrEmens
Total {307.45) .08 (52.77) (360.16)

Movement in deferred lax assels for the year ended 31 March 2023

As ni 31 Recognised in other  Hecognised in profit As at 31 March 2023

March 2022 comprehensive and loss
income

Property, plant anid equipment (82.67) - < (10.32) (93.99)
Provision for emplovee benefis (23.23) - (0LE3) (26.06)
Allowance Tor credit loss (ECL) & (274.45) . 260 (271.76)
provision for doubtful advances

Provision for obsolescence Inventonies {14.00) - 3.0 i 1680}
Tax 1o be paid on custom duty T9.38 - 10,07 B9.45
receivable in future yoars (refer note
34)

Others - - 466 4.66
Deferred tax related to other
comprehensive income of the vear:

Re-measurement losses of defined 179 {03} - 136
benefit plan

Change in falr value of FVTOCI (231) - - (2.31)
equily instruments
Tetal (315.49) {0.43) 847 (307.45)

e > .___{ﬁix kpaee hay been infentionally feff blank)
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24 Earnings per share (EPS)
The computation of eamings per share §s b8 follows;

MNominadl value of egulty shares (INR)
Profit sitributable w equity sharcholders Tor computing basic and dilutive EPS
A

Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating basic EPS
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the vear for
computing Basic EPS (3)

Dilutive effect of ghare based payments on weighied average number ol equity
shares oustanding during the vear ()

Dilutive effect of compulsory convertible preference shares on weighted
avarage number of equity shares ouistanding during the year (13)

Weighted avemge number of equity shares outstanding during the vear for
computing Diluted EPS(E = C + D)

Basic enrning per share (A/B)

Diluted earning per share (AJE)

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
5 5

428.7% J53.30
541,128,216 M1LI26216
955614 30,955,604
16,643,640 | 6643640

5BR.725470 JBR.TISATO

079 065

073 .60

During the previous & current financial year, 1,201,872 number of options issued for shire based payment were excluded

(ﬂ
._..l'
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Lava International Limited

Notes to standnlone financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2024
{AN arncsents va dndian Bupees milfion wnless otherwise siated)

1% Fair value measurement

a) The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories are o under!

Motes 3 March 2024 31 March 2023
FvreL | pvroct ATMeRied | e Fumox il
Cost Cost
Assets
Non-current assets
Financial assets
Other Nnancial assel T} - - 3535 - 103.39
- = 35,35 - 103.39
Current assels
Finuncin] assels
Investments T 306 - - 28.73 -
Trade receivables Tich - - ATF51.87 - 254225
Cush and cash equivalents Tid - - 187 - 7709
Other bank balonces T(el B . B304 - 914,95
Perivalive asset Tig) 054 - - - -
Oihers financial pssels T (g = | = 27284 - 351.13
3.60 | . 4.309.67 28.73 4,579.62
Linhilities
Mon-curreni linhilities
Financial labilities
Bomowings 11 (a) . - 132.77 . 229.82
Lease liabilities 11 (dy . - iy, 75 . 10947
- - 199.52 - 339.29
Current liabilities
Financinl labilities
Bormowings 11 {by) - = | LA - 1.815.08
Lease Habilithes 14e - . 42,70 - 840
Trade payables 1 feh 32 - - 3.504.69 - 341896
Derivative Habilities 11if) - . - 1.29 .
Other financial liabilities 1N - - |, 63776 - 1.511.17
- - 6,176,015 1.29 6,783.61

The fair values of trade receivibles, cash and cash equivalents, other current financial asset, trade payables and other current

Fmancial labilities are considered 1o be sume s their corrying values due to their short term nature,

The carrying amounts of other items carried wt amortised cost ure reasonable approximation of their fair values on respective

reporting date.

For financial assets and fiabilities that are measured ut fiir value, the curying amounts are equal 1o the fair values,

[ & .| (Thix space has bear infentionally fefi blank)
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15 b) Fair value hierarchy and valuation techniques used (o determine fnir values:

To provide an indication about the relinbility of inpuis used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its
financial instrument into three levels preseribed under the accouning standard. The following table provides the fair vilue
measurement hisrarchy of the company’s assets and habilities.

Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and Habilities are as :

Fair value measurement using

Quoted prices in Significant Significanit Total

AL 3] March 2024 active markets  observable inputs  unobservable inputs "
{Level 1) iLevel 2) {Level 3)
Assets measured at FYTPL
Derivative assets - (.54 . 0.54
Investmenis in matual funds 3.06 . - 3.046
Assets measured at FYTOCI
Investment i equity instruments® - 5 ~ 2!
Liability measured at FVTPL
Derivative liabilities - - - 0.00
Fair value measurement using

Quoted prices in Significant Significant Total

At 31 March 2023 active markets  observable inputs  unobservable inputs
 {Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Assets measured at FVTPL
Investment in mutual funds 28.73 - - 28.73
Assets measured st FVTOCI
Investment in equity instruments® - . . s
Liability measured at FVTPL
Derivative liabilities - 1.29 - 1.29

* Investment in Abhriya Pre. Ltd. has been valued at zero value ie. at fair value and it has been shown in other reserve
amounting 1o Rs 7.69 million in Reserve and surplus.

- There were no transfers between the Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the vears presented.
- There is no change in the valuation technique during the year.

Valuntion technigues used to derive Level 1 fair values

Derivative asset/liability representing future foreign exchange contracts have been fair valued using future exchange rates
that are quoted in the active market,

The fair values of investments in mutual fund units is based on the net asset value ('NAV") as sinted by the issuers of these
mutual fund units in the published statements as ut Balance Sheet date. NAV represents the price at which the issuer will
issue further units of mutual fund and the price ot which issuers will redeem such unite from the investors.

Valuation techniques used to derive Level 2 fair values
Derivative asset/liability representing forward foreign exchange contracts have been fair valued using dealer/counter party
quotes ul balance sheet date,

Valuation technigues used to derive Level 3 fair values atin
Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market dita, A one percent change in @ymhm%
inputs usedsin fair valuation of Level 3 ussets does not have a significant impaet in its value. Lef

'?:!'u. ’%/E
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Notes to standalone fnancianl statements for the period ended 31 March 2024
(Al amounts in fndian Rugpees million unless otherwise statec

26 Capital munagement

The Company’s objectives while managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and 1o provide
sdequate retwrns for its sharcholders and benefits for other stakeholders. The Company's policy is penerally 1o optimise
borrowings at an operating company level within an acoeptable level of debt. The Company's policy is to borrow using a
mixture of long-term and short-term debis together with cash generated 1o meet anticipated funding requirernents.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is ealculsted as underlying net debt divided by total capital plus
underiying net debt. The Company™s policy is to keep the gearing ratio below 40%, The Company measires its underlying
net debt as total debt reduced by cash and cash equivalents. The Company mionitors compliance with its debt covenants. The
Company has complied with all debt covenants at all reponting dates.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March, 2024

and 31 March. 2023,

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Borrowings 1,123. 77 2,044.90
Less: Cash and cach equivalents (441.87) (771.09)
Net debt (a) 681.90 1.273.81
Equity 9,287.76 9.583.94
Total capital (b) 9.287.76 9,583.94
Capital and net debt (a) + (b} = (¢) 9.969.66 10,857.75
Gearing ratio (%) (n) / {c) 6.84% 11.73%
4 AN S {This space has hoen intentionally left blank)
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27 Financial risk management ohjectives and policies
The Company’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and overdrafis, and trade pavahles. The
main purpose of these financial liabilities is to raise {inance for the Company’s operations. The Company has various
finunciul assets such as trade recelvables, cash and cash equivalents, and short-term deposits, which arise directly from its
operations. The Company also halds mutual fund investments and enters into derivative transactions.

The main risks arising from the Company's financial instruments are price risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk, foreign
currency risk, and credit risk,

The Board of Directors review and agree policies for managing each of these risks which are summarised below,

Price risk

The Company is mainly exposed 10 the price risk due to its investment in equity instruments and mutual funds. The price
risk arises due to uncertainties about the future market values of these investments. In order to manage its price risk arising
from investments in mutual funds, the Company diversifies its portfolio in accardance with the limits set by the risk
management policies. The Company does nol have significant investment in mutual funds,

Set out below is the impact of & | % movement in the NAV of mutual funds on the Company's profit before tax:

Particulars 3 March 2024 31 March 2023
Eifect on profit before tax:

NAV increase by 100 bps 0.03 0.29
NAV decrease by 100 bps (0.03) (0.29)
Interest rate risk

The Company’s exposure 1o the risk of changes in market intérest rates relates primarily to the Company’s borrowings with
floating interest rates. The Company’s policy is to manige its interest cost using a4 mix of fixed, floating rate bomrowings.
The following table provides a breakdown of the Company’s fixed and flouting rute borrowings:

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Fixed rate borrowings 68.91 259.23
Floating rate borrowings 1,054.86 1,785.67
Total 1,123%.77 2.044.90

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity 1o a reasonably possible change in interest rates, being a 0.5% increase or
decrease in inferest rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Company’s profit before tax due to the impact on
Aoating rate borrowings,

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Effect on profit before tax:

PLR*- decrease by 50 bps 5.27 8.93
PLR*- increase by 50 bps i5.270) (8.93)

*Prime Lending Rate ('PLRs") set by individual Indian banks in respect of their loans,

Credit rsk

The Company is also exposed to credit risk from trade recelvables, term deposits, liquid investments and other financial
instruments.

(i) Customer credit risk is managed by the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating o customer cradit
risk management. All customers are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored
on an on-going basis. The Company is exposed to credit risk in the event of non-payment by customers. An impairment
analysis is performed at each reporting date by grouping the receivables in homogeneous group. Trade receivables are non-
interest bearing and nre generally on original credit terms of uplo 180 days depending upon category and nature of
customers. Credit term may v be extended based on management judgement and credit worthiness of the uusmmwg’"—l::;&

1
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The management regularly follows up to recover the owtstanding amount and evaluates recoveries at the end of every
reporting period. To comply with the requirement of Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments. the company has created total
expected eredit loss (ECL) as on 31 March 2024 of Rs, 7,164.92 million. (31 March 2023: Rs. 6,953.24 million). As it was
impragticable 10 ascertain the ECL for each of respective carlier financial year, therefore, Rs. 211.69 million in complionce
with the requirements of para 44 of Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies. Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, has been
adjusted 1o the retained eamings.

(i) The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents, other bink balinces, term deposits, etc, is considered nepligible, since the
counterparties are reputable bunks with high quality external credit ratings.

Ageing based on original credit terms but after allowance for credit loss as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
0-180 days 43.40 281.56
180-365 days 519.73 917.80
| year plus 2,188.74 1,342.89
Total 2,751.87 2,542.25

The Company has provisions of Rs. 36.77 million (31 March 2023 : Rs. 31.99 million) for doubtful debts. None of those
trade debtors past due or impuired have had their terms renegotiated. The maximum exposure 1o credit risk at the reparting
date is the fiir value of each class of debilors presented in the linancial statements.

The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect 1o trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in
several jurisdictions and operate in largely independent markets,

Liquidity risk

The Company monitor their risk of shortage of funds using cash flow forecasting models. These models consider the
maturity of their financial investments, committed funding and projected cash flows from operations.

The Company’s objective is to provide financial resources to meet its business objectives in a timely, cost effective and
reliable manner, A balance between continuity of funding and flexibility is maintained through the use of bank borrowings.
The Company also monitors compliance with its debt covenants. The maturity profile of the Company s financial liabilities
based on contractual undiscounted payments is given in the table below:

<lyr 1-5 vrs =5 yrs Total
Az at 31 Mareh 2024
Borrowings (including interest accrued) 004.77 13277 - 1,127.54
Lease lisbilities 42,70 66,75 - 109,44
Trade payables 3.504,69 - - 3,504.69
Derivative liability - . . =
Other financial Hability 1,633,99 - - 1,633.99
Total 6.176,15 199.52 - 6,375.66

<lyr 1-5 yr >5 yry Total
As at 31 March 2023
Borrowings (including interest accrued) 182116 22982 = 2.050,98
Lcase linbilities 840 10947 - 147.87
Trade payahles 341896 B - 341896
Derivative linbility 1.29 - - 1.29
Other financial linbility 1,505.09 - - 1,505.09

Total 6, 78490 339.29 - 7,124.19
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(AN s in bndian Rupees svllion unless otherwise stated)

Foreign currency risk

The Company has significant purchases from outside India. The Company has transactional currency expasures arising from
sales or purchases in currencies other than the functional eurrency, Accordingly, the Company's financial state of alfairs can
be affected significantly by movements in the US dollar exchange rates. The Company enters into derivative transactions,
primarily in the nature of forward contracts on impart payables. The purpose is to manage currency risks arising from the
Company's operations.

The carrying amounts of the Company’'s financial assets and liabilities denominated in different carrencies are as follows:

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

As at

’ Financial nssets | Financial lHabilities| Financial asseis | Finaneinl lahilities
Amount in United States Dollar (USD) 17.74 20.74 37.76 19.86
Exchange Rate §3.38 8338 B82.18 8218
Amount in Indian Rupees (INR) 1.479.39 1.729.05 3.102.97 1,632.13

The Company’s exposure 1o foreign currency arises in part where 0 Company holds financial assets, net of expected credit
foss and lisbilities denominated in a currency different from the functional currency of that entity with USD being the major
non-functional currency of the Company's main operating subsidiaries, Set out below is the impact of a 10% movement in
the US dollar on profit befare tax arising as a result of the revaluation of the Company’s foreign currency financial assets and
unhedged liabilities :

Az at 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Effect of 10% strengthening of INR against USD an profit before 1ax: 2497 (147.08)
Effect of 10% weakening of INR against USD on profit before tax: (24.97) 147.08

The Company enters into forward contracts to mitigate the risk arising from fluctuations in foreign exchange rites to cover
foreign cumency payments. The Company has token forwards contract of the following amount to hedge against currency
risk against movement in INRAS dollar. The contract as on year end are as follows :

31 March 2023
B43.51

31 March 2024
121.57

As nt
Amount in INR

o {This space fhas heen intentionally Ieft blank) P
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28 Post-employmient benefits plan

Defined Contribution Plan

The Company has recognised Rs. 64.04 millions (31 March 2023 : Rs, 7,27 millions) related 1o employer's contribution 1o
provident fund and employees’ state insurance fund as an expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Defined Benefit Plan

The Company has partially funded defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of
service gets a gratuity on departare at |5 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service or part thereofl in

cxcess of 6 months.

The following table summarizes the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss for

gratuity plan and amounts recognized in the balance sheet in respeet of same,
Statement of profit and los

Net employee benefit expense recognized in the employee cost

Current service cost

Interest cost on benefit obligation
Intorest on plan nssets

Net benefit expense

Bulance sheet
Benefit asset/liability

Present value of defined benefit obligation
MNet asset/(linbility) recognised in balance sheet

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit oblipation are as follows:

Opening defined benefit obligation
Current service cost

Imierest cost

Interest on plan assets

Total amount recognised in profit & loss

Re-measurement (gainsVlosses of defined benefit plan :

= Due 1o changes in financial assumptions

= Due 10 experience adjustment

-Excess of interest on plan assets over actual return

Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income

Benefits paid
Contribution to fund made during the year

Closing defined benefit abligntion

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity benefits are ns below:

Discount rate
Employee tumover
Salary Escalation Rate
Meoriality Rates

.

-

P
F

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1410 13.68

6.94 5.22

(0.34) -

20.70 18.90

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
(76.16) (82.95)

(76.16) (82.95)

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
82.95 75.95

14.10 13.68

6.94 5.22

(0.34) -

20.70 18.90

0.38 (2.96)

(0.53) 125

0.33 -

0.18 (1.71)

(17.66) {10.19)

(10.01) :

76.16 82.95

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
saaton> 7.0% 7.1%
o “\"ﬁ 30.0% 30.0%
3| 1% 7.0%
i]eﬂ.zulz-uuh [AL2012-14U



Lava International Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the period ended 3 March 2024
(AN amounts in Indian Rupees millton wnless otherwise stated)

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, senicrity, promotion and
other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 4.96 vears (31 March 2023:

478 years)

Amounts for the current and previous four vears are s follows:

Particulars A1 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Coratuity
Defined benefit obligation T0.16 2405 15.95 66.07 56.29
Experience adjustments on
liabilities gain / (loss) (.33 (1.25) (0.93) {0.55) 1.38
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assurmption is as shown below:

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Projected benefit obligation on current assumptions T6.16 8295
Delta effect of +1 % change in discount rate (229) {2.16)
Dielta effect of -1 %6 change in discount rue 244 230
Delta effiect of =1 % change in salary escalation rate 265 2.51
Delin effect of -1 % Change in salary esealation rite {2.54) (2.40)
Dicltn effect of +10 % chanpe in rate of employee tumover (.86 (0.80)
Delta effect of =10 % change in rate of employee tumover 0.93 D85

29 Segment information

Ind AS 108 establishes standards for the way the companies report information about operating segments and related
disclosures about products and services, peographic arcas, and major customers. The Company's operations relate to sales of
mobile handsets in India through the distributor and retailers network. The Chiel Operating Decision Maker (CODM)
evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates resources based on analysis of various performance indicators pertaining
to business as a single segment. Accordingly, for the purpose of entity wide disclosures, only geographical information has
heen presented. Business segment of the Company is primarily sale of mobile handsets,

Geographical information on revenues are collated based on individual customers invoiced or in relation to which revenue is
otherwise recognized.

Geographical information.
The following tables present geographical information regarding the Company's revenue:
For the vear For the year
Particulars ended 31 Murch ended 31 March
2024 2023

India 22.777.60 21,641.90
Outside [ndia 217.85 414.84
Total 1320545 22,056.74

Revenue from two customer for the year ended 31 March 2024 is Rs. 5,291.27 million which represents more than 10% of the
total revenue of the Company. (31 March 2023: revenue from one customer was Rs. 4,533,535 million which represents more
than 10% of the wtal revenue of the Company),

The Company does not have any non-current issets, as defined in Ind AS 108, which is located outside Indin. “atic

§ ”"| (Thix space hay heun Intentionally left blank) A @ 2]
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Lava Internntional Limited
Motes to standalone financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2024
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees mitlion wnlesy otherwise stared)

30 Related party disclosures

In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 24 on * Related Party Disclosures” the names of related parties whose control
exist and/or with whom transactions have taken place during the year and description of the refationship, as identified and

centified by the management are as below!

(i) List of parties where control exist

Sr. Couniry of Nature of Relationship
Na. Ratxied Raity Incorporation 31 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023
1 t;‘:t:dlnumntmml Gl Hong Kong Wholly owned subsidiary Whaolly owned subsidiary
2 [Xolo Inemational (LK) Heyong kong  [Wholly owned subsidiary Wholly owned subsidiary
3 _|Lava Technologies L.L.C. LISA Whally owned subsidiary Wholly owned subsidiary
4 |Lava Technologies DMCC UAE Whollv owned subsidiary Wholly owned subsidiary
5 |China Bird Centroamerica S.A, [Panama Wholly owned subsidiary Wholly owned subsidiary
. Subsidinry Subsidinry
& [tavaEnturprises Limited e (Owned 99.05% shares) (Owned 99.05% shares)
P Sojo Distribution Private India Subsidiary Subsidiary
Limited J{(Crwmed 90.00% shares) (Ownod 90.00% shires)
3 Sojo Manufacturing Services India Subsidiary Subsidinry
(A.P.) Private Limited (Owned 99,97% shares) [(Owned 99 97%; shares)
g [Seio Manufacturing Services lndia Subsidiary Subsidiary
Private Limited {Owned 99,95% shares) {Owned 99.95% shares)
Subsidlary Subsidiary
10 |Pr Lava Mobile Indonesin Indonesia (95% pwned by LAVA (95% owned by LAVA
Intemational (H.K.) Limited) Imemnational (H.K.) Limited)
2 Subsidiary Subsidiary
1 :]‘;E_‘““”““'““’“ e T T (wholly owned by LAVA (wholly owned by LAVA
Imtermnationnl (H.K.) Limiled) International (H K. ) Limited)
i Subsidiary Subsidiary
12 :*;;?;";’;"&E"*‘” Sei Lanka (wholly owned by LAVA cwholly owned by LAVA
5 2 International (H . K.) Limited) Imtermational (H.K.) Limited)
: . Subsidiary Subsidiary
13 lﬁzpzh.:,ﬂh“: Mexjoo SOERL, Mexico (99.00% shares owned by LAVA  [(99.00% shares owned by LAVA
o International (H.K.) Limited) Intemational (H.K.} Limited}
Lava Imemational (M ar) Sy S
L3 s YARTALY y anmar (99.00% shares owned by LAVA  [(99.00% shares owned by LAVA
- Intemational (H.J.) Limited) International (H K.) Limited)
. ] Subsidiary Subsidiary
15 ::1::?{::;"“' ety Nepal (wholly owned by LAVA (wholly owned by LAVA
Intermationil {(H.K.} Limited) International {(H.K.) Limited)
Lava International Sunlary lsakcinry
6 ! Hangladesh (99.99% shares owned by LAVA  [(99,99% shares owned by LAVA
(Bangladesh) Limited 1
. International (H.K.) Limited) International (H.K.) Limited)
F Subsidiary Subsidiary
17 ;‘:b::" Consumet Products, o umi (wholly owned by China Bird  J(wholly owned by China Bird
o =S, Cenlroamerica S.A.) Centroamerica S.A.)
A T Subsidiary Subsidiary 2= 0
I8 [Ching Bird Hong Knng,'_l;rd ¥ [Hong Kong (wholly owned by China Bird (wholly ot il
| ﬁ, Cuntronmerica 8.4, Centrongy
i




Lavy International Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2024
(AN amounts In Indian Rupees million unless otherwise stared)

* Lava |H-{I:I'Ilaliﬂl'lﬁ|.i i)

o

15 bé UAE echse 1o exist w.e.f. 06th December, 2023, (It has been incorrectly disclosiNgdy
woed | 2th June 2023 in the previous linancial statement ie for the period ending 3 st March 2023

Sr. sclintod Pasiy Country of Nature of Relationship
No. “ Incorporation 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Subsidiary Subsidiary
19 |China Bird Guatemala, S AL #  |Guatemala (99%% owned by China Bird (99% owned by China Bird
Centronmerica 5.A.) Centroamerica 5.A. )
y : aalk Subsidiary Subsidiary
20 a;r;i:a: :m;.;&gl :;"3 > Méxica (995 owned by China Bird 119% owned by China Bird
I R Centroamerica 5,A.} Centroamerica 5.A.)
Subsidinry Subsidiary
21 |Bmobile America S. De RL#  [Panamé {wholly owned by Mobile (whaolly owned by Maobile
Consumer Products, 5.4.) Consumer Products, S.A)
Subsidiary Subsidiary
22 |Sms De Guatemala. SA#  [Panamd [twholly owned by China Bird ~ |(wholly owned by China Bird
Centroamerica S.A ) Centroamerica S.A.)
Subsidiary Subsidiary
23 |Momemtum HK, LTD.# Hong Kong (whally owned by Mobile (whally owned by Mobile
Consumer Products, S.A,) Consumer Products, S.A.)
Subsidiary Subsidiary
24 |Bmobile Europat! Espafin 1(wlmlt}- owned by China Bird (wholly owned by China Bird
Centroamerica S.A.) Centroamerica S.A.)
B Telecomunicaciones Bbsicimry HEHELE
3 | tmtin SA £ 4 1Cu1nmbi. (wholly owned by China Bird ~ |twholly awned by China Bird
S Centroamerica S.A.) Centropmerica S.A.)
i Subsidiary Subsidiary
26 f;;‘:“f:::::;“s:ﬁc; Ecusdor (wholly owned by Ching Bird {wholly owned by China Bird
I Centroumerica S.A.) Centroamerica 5.A.)
Poder Ecuatoriano De Suhsidiary Subsidiary
27 |Manufactur Y Desarroll Ecuador {wholly owned by Maobile 1tw1‘ml!y owned by Mobile
Poecumade, S. A0 Consumer Products, 5.A.) Consumer Products, S.A.)
i Subsidiary Subsidiary
28 :I’:““‘“”“"“‘m"’ e T |(wholly owned by China Bird ~ |(wholly owned by China Rird
o Cemtrommerica S.A.) Centroumerica S.A.)
Subsidiary Subsidinry
29 JAzumL SAH Panams (wholly owned by Mabile (wholly owned by Mobile
Consumer Products, 5.A.) Cuonsuiner Products, S A.)
g [A2umi, S.A. Agencia En Chile Subsidiary Subsidinry
Chile# (wholly owned by Azumi, S.A.)  |(wholly owned by Azumi, 5.A.)
) . Subsidiary Subsidiary
31 |Azmi Hong Kong Lid# Hovig Fong In{wlmlly ;)“'ntd by Azami, S:A) l_wimllya;f\'ncd by Azumi, $.A.)
: o i Subsidiary Subsidiary
32 | Azuml Mobilo Africal Sy At (wholly owned by Azumi, S.A.)  liwholly owned by Azumi, S.A)
. I Subsidia Subsidiary
I [Ami USA, Corpd i (wholly {?vrmd by Azumi, S.A)  |(wholly owned by Azumi, S.A.)
P : Subsidiary Subsidiary
34| Neooney, SAH it {wholly owned by Azumi, S.A)  |iwholly :wncd by Azumi, 5.A.)
. A B Subsidiary Subsidlary
23" [Nexdewion, S0 DECHF [MEki6) (wholly owned by Azumi, S.A)  liwholly owned by Azumi. $.A.)
Yamunma Flectronics Joint vemure of Subsidiaries Joint vemture of Subsidiaries
3o |Manufaciuring Cluster Private |india
Limited (YEMCPL)
37 h’!“ﬁic'l‘el Solutions Private ndia Asspciate Associate
Limited = /
38 |Lava EmploveeWellare Trust |India Controlled trust Controlled truffts




Lava International Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2024
(AN amoums in Indian Rupees million unless otherwise stuted)

# As of the date of this financial statement. the management of CBCA has not provided the updated related party information
for the current financial year. In the absence of informntion, the refated party information have been disclosed as considered in
the financinl statements as of 315t March 2023.

(ii) Others (with whom transactions have taken place during the year)

mfluenced by key management
personnel or their relatives

Sr. Country of Nature of Relationship
No. s Incorporation 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
I |Sojo Infotel Private Limited  |India Enterprises owned or significantly|Enterprises owned or significantly

influenced by key management
personnel or their relatives

Limited

(iii) Key Manngement Personnel ;

influenced by key management
personnel or their relatives

2 |Ottomate Intemational Private |India Enterprises owned or significantly|Enterprises owned or significantly

Limited influenced by key management|influenced by key management
personnel or their relatives personnel or their relatives

3 |Am Express Worldwide India Enterprises owned or significantly| Enterprises owned or significantly

Logistics (Partnership Firm) influenced by key management|influenced by key management
1pﬂrmnncl or their relatives personnel or their relatives

4 |Arprive Solutions Private India Enterprises owned or significantly|Enterprises owned or significantly

influenced by key management
|personnel or their relatives

Mr. Hari Om Rai - Chairman & Managing director (upto 28th February 2024)
Mr. Shailendra Nath Rai - Whole time director
Mr. Vishal Sehgal - Non Executive director
Mr. Sunil Bhalla - Non Executive director

Mr. Vinod Rai -Independent director (upio 22nd August 2023)

Mr. Rahul Kansal - Independent directer (upto 22nd August 2023)

Mr. Asitava Bose - Chiel Financial Officer (upto 18th July 2022)

Mr. Vinod Sharmii <Independent director (w.e.f 23rd August 2021 to 19th march 2024)
Mr. Jitendra Kumar - Independent director (w.e.f 0 1st September 2023 to 30th December 2023)
Mr. Naveen Kumar - Company Secretary (w.e.f | 2th Junuary 2022 to 3 15t August 2023)

Mr. Sunil Raina - President & Business Head (w.e.f 18th May 2021)

Mr. Sanjeev Agarwal - Chiel Manufacturing Officer (w.e.f 18th May 2021)
Mr. Mugdh Rajit - Senlor Vice President - Head Marketing, (w.c.f 18th May 2021 1o 29th September 2023)

Mr.

Sourabh Raghuvanshi -Vice President - Sales & Supply Chain (w.¢.f 18th May 2021)

Mr. Nirav Girishbhai Raval - Chiel Financial Officer (w.e.f 18th July 2022 to 3rd December 2022
Mr. Asitava Bose - Chief Financial Officer (w.e.1. 3rd December 2022 upto 29th June 2024)
Ms. Preeti - Company Secretary (w.e.L D15t September 2023 upto Sth July 2024)
Mr. Sunil Raina - Whole Time Director (w.e.f, 06th November 2023 to 30th December 2023)
Mr. Sanjeev Agarwal - Whole Time Director (w.e.f 01st February 2024)
Mr. Sunll Raina - Whole Time Director (w.e.f. 28th February 2024)
Mr. Anupam Shrivastava-Independent director (w.e.f from 26th March 2024)
Mr. Ajay Kumar Singh- Independent directar (w.e.f from 16th April 2024)
Ms. Deepika Gupla- Non Executive director (w. e from 20th May 2024)
Mr. Rajesh Sethi-Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f fraim 4th September 2024)
Mr. Ritesh Singh-Company Secretary (w.e.l from 4th September 2024)

€ -
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Lava International Limited

Notes to standalone finnncial statements for the period ended 31 Murch 2024

iAl arvowrnis i Indian Rupees million wufess othervize stated)

Subsidinries
sy 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
A Transactions during the vear
Expori Sales to related parties
{China Bird Centroamerica S.A. - 65.00
Lava Technologies DMCC -
Sale of Services to related parties
Sajo Distribution Private Limited 0.14 0.14
Purchase from related parties®
Lava Intermational (HL.K.,) Limited 040,93 324 82
XOLO International (Hk) Lid. 205,17 31.83
Expenses incurred on behalf of related parties
Sojo Manufacturing Services (AF) Private Lid 0.10 0.09
Sojo Manufacturing Services Private Limited 0.03 0.02
Sojo Distribution Private Limited - 0,02
Lova Enterprise Limited 003
Payment made to related parties
Lava Infemational (H.K.) Limited 651.44 29461
XOLO Imernational (Hk) Lid, 205.17 23,25
Advance given to related parties
Lava Enterprise Limited . 0.10
Sojo Manufacturing Services (AP) Private Lid 54.00 0.10
Sojo Manufacturing Services Private Limited - a.10
Sojo Distribution Private Limited 330 360
Lava Imemational (H.K.) Limited 5041 -
Amount received from related parties
Lava Intemational (H.K.} Limited - 18.48
Sajo Manufacturing Services (AP) Privaie Lid 26.69 28.00
XOLO International (Hk) Ltd, . 0.13
Sojo Distribution Private Limited 14.50
China Bird Centroamerica 5.A. 23.62 46.08
Lava Technologies DMCC - .
B, Amount due to / from related parties
Other receivables
Lava Intemational (H.K.) Limited . 32.63
Saojo Distribulion Private Limited 0.04 004
Sojo Manufacturing Services (AP) Private Lid 0.25 0.25
Sajo Manufacturing Services Private Lid - 10.38
Lava Technologies DMCC 31.33 30.87
Trade receivable
Lava Technologies DMCC 348.86 341,83
XOLO International (Hk) Lid, 48487 477.58
China Bird Centroamerica S.A. i85 24.60
Sojo Distribution Private Limited 0.57 0.42
Trade pavable
Lava Intemational (H.K.) Limited 210,07 -
Advance to vendor
Sojo Distribution Private Limited 26.46 <
Sojo Manufacturing .Sc_r'd'tm Private Ltd - f,_L o014
Lava Enterprise Limited / i 0.18 &/ & ‘,\\-.:Q.II
i | = |
N /_Jj""-:.-"Ill
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Lasa International Limited

Notes to stundalone finnncinl stntements for the period ended 31 March 2024

(Al amaunis in fndiae Rupees mitfion undvss othervive staed)

Particulars Subiidiaries

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Sojo Manufscturing Services (AP) Private Lid = .
Trade pavable
Sojo Manufacturing Services (AP) Private Lid 0.25 27.66

*During the current financial year, guarantees issued in respect of certain purchase on credit terms,

Particulars

Joint Yenture

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

A. Transactions during the vear

Expenses incarred on behalfl of related parties

Yamuna Electronics Manufacturing Cluster Private Limited
Advance given to related parties

Yamuna Electronics Manufacturing Cluster Private Limited
Advance to vendor

Yamuni Electronics Manufacturing Cluster Private Limited

0n.03

0.24

Particulars

Parties in which Key Management Personnel of the
Company are interested

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

A. Transactions during the year
Equity Shares issued to related parties
Sojo Inforel Pyt Limited

Sales to related parties

Ottomate Intemational Private Limited
Services taken

Am Express Worldwide Logistics
Expenses incurred on behall of velated parties
Sojo Infotel Pvi Limited

Payment made to related parties

Am Express Worldwide Logistics
Amount received from related parties
Ottomate International Private Limited
Advance Given

Sajo Infotel Pyt Limited

Arpriue Solutions Private Limited
Advance received from related pariies
Sojo Infotel Pvi Limited

B. Amount due 1o / rom related parties
Other receivables

Sajo Infotel Pyt Limited

Advance to Vendor

Sajo Infiotel Pyt Limited

Arpriue Solutions Private Limited
Trade receivable -

Ottomate International Private Limiled.

231

70,55

265.19
18.00

0.04

265.19
18.00

4.00

3.08

0.98

f 1!




Lava International Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2024

(Al amovnts i fndian Rupees miflion uniess otherwive siated

Particulars

Controlled Truost

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

As Transactions during the year

Expenses incurred on behalf of related parties
Lava Employee Welfare Trust

Advance given to related parties

Lava Employee Wellare Trusi

B. Amount due from related parties

Other recelvables

Lava Emplovee Welfare Trust

0.04 .07

B (110

68.32 6827

Remuneration of Key Management Personnel

Particulars

3 March 2024 31 March 2023
Short-term emplovee benefits 64.25 62.34
Post-employment benefits 3.16 4,63

All transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent 1o those that prevail in anm’s length ransactions, Owtstanding
balances at the year-end are unsecured and their settlement occurs in cash. For the year ended 31 March 2024 and vear ended 31
March 2023, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties.

{(This space kas been intentionally left Blank)
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Lava Internationsl Limited
Notes to standnlone finnncinl statementy for the period ended 31 Mareh 2024
(AL amrowants in Inalian Rupees milfion unless otheruise siie)

M

Commitments and contingencies

iA) Capitnl and other commitments

(B)

()
(i

(i)

(i)

Particutars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Estimuted amount of contracts to be executed on capital aceount 2t 16 -
[net of capital advances amounting 1o Rs. Nil (31 March 2023: Rs, Nil
million ) and not provided for] (refer note 9(a))

Contingent liabilities

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Bank guarantees 548.03 672.25
Sales tax and custorn matters [refer note (a)] (amount paid under protest 44817 448.17
Rs. 158.43 million) (31 March 2023: Rs. 158.43 million)

Goods nnd service tnx matters [refer note (b)] (amount paid under protest 1,531.50 044 54

Rs. 45.00 million) (31 March 2023: Rs. 45 million)

Incoime tax matters {(amount paid under protest Rs. 6,05 million) (31 March 9324 9,41
2023: Rs. 6.05 million)

2,620.95 2.161.37

Sales tax and custom

The Hon'ble Supreme Court of India vide its order dated 17 December 2014 in the case of State of Punjab Vs Nokia India
Py, Limited, has held that the mobile charger contained in the mobile phone retail pack is an independent part and shall be
separately charged to VAT at the rate as applicable o the chargers, The appellant has already approached the Hon'ble
Supreme Court in a review petition challenging the judgment. In view of this judgment, the VAT Authorities of various
states have raised demands along with interest and penalties agerepating to Rs. 110.06 million (31 March 2023: Rs, 110,06
million) The Company has filed appeal against these demands. Amount paid under protest against demands amounting to
Rs. 39.75 million (31 March 2023: Rs. 39.75 million) have been disclosed under balance with statutory/government
authorities in other assets,

Based on the legal assessment, management believes that the possibility of materializing sales tax demands is low.
Accordingly, no provision is made in the financial statements {or such demands,

Sales tax demands received of Rs 30.70 million (31 March 2023 : Rs, 30.70 million) (amount paid under protest of Rs. 6,19
million (31 March 2023 : Rs. 6.19 million)} (out of which Rs. 1.86 million (31 March 2023 : Rs. 1.86 million) is pending for
refund from department us the cases had been disposed off in favor of the company) from various sales tux authorities for
which the management believes that the possibility of materializing the demand is remote,

Sales tax demands received of Rs 283.70 million (31 March 2023 © Rs. 283.70 million) (amount paid under protest of Rs
70.93 milkion (31 March 2023; 70,93 million) classifying mobile phone under residuary entry under schedule- V, whereas as
per lawyer's opinion product is well covered in specific entry 39 under schedule -V for which management also believes
that the possibility of materlalizing the sales mx demand is low. Accordingly, no provision is made in the financial
statements for such demands, _ealio;

(&) 0



Lava International Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2024
(el amounts in Indicn Bupees million unless atherwise stated)

(v} As per Custom Dept, "Camera Module for mobile phone™ is neither similar nor identical with "Digital Still image video

iv)

b}

(0

(i)

(1)

camerns” and thus the items “Camera Module for mobile phone” is totally diftferent from “Digital still image video cameras,
hence availed exemprion is not eligible to compuny

According to the Company, the company have rightly claimed exemption from the payment of Social Welfare Surcharge
vide notification No 1172018 CT under SR No 30 dated 02.02.2018 which exempls “Digital Still Image video cameras”
falling under the Heading 8525 B020, considering camern module & digital still image video cameras serving the same
purpose which is capturing the image and stored in data bank. Therefore, the Company have done no mistake by claiming
exemption under above said notification, The period in which the Company had claimed this exemption is 2nd Feb 2018 10
318t Jul 2019. Total amount involved is Re. 23.71 million (31 March 2023: 23.71 million). Against the order pussed by
Commissioner, the Company have filed an appeal before the CESTAT Delhi & deposited Rs, |56 million (31 March 2023
1.56 million) of above amount for filing the appeal as prescribed under law, As per the consultant, the Company have a
good case lo argue and justify the claim,

Search was conducted by Directorate of Revenue Intelligence (DRI) at company’s premises on February 09, 2022, During
investigation, questions were raised on interpretation issue for classification on imported display assembly. To avoid
unnecessary business interruption, the company had decided to make a deposit of Rs. 40 million under protest. The
Company has not received any show cause notice or demand from the Department, The management is ol the opinion that
the Company is in compliance of law and the Company has strong chances of success against any dispute/demand and no
liability will arise.

Goods and Service tax

During the review of trunsactions of certain third parties, the Directorute Ceneral of Goods and Service Tax (DGGI)
kaushambi, UP, has identified certain saleé and purchase transactions which was -executed by the Company with those
parties. Based on that, the Department has issued a show cause nofice dated July 30, 2022 1o the Company for the reversal
of Input Tax Credit of Rs. 928.15 million (315t March 2023: Rs. 920 million) {amount paid under protest of Rs. 20 million
(315t March 2023: Rs, 20 million) related to earlier years. The Company has filed Interim reply on June 21, 2023 before the
aforementioned adjucating authority. Management has obtained a legal opinion from the lawyers and based on such
assessment, the Company does nol expect any financial exposure and believe that il has a strong case and accordingly, no
such reversal of Input Tax Credit will be required, Accordingly, no penmalty, if any, will also be leviable as per the
assessment of the management.

Further, out of transactions of certain third parties under review of DGGI, show cause notice has been issued by GST
department, Delhi of Rs. 602.69 million on dated December 11, 2023 and Rs. 341,85 million (out of Rs. 371.14 million) on
dated September 23, 2023 along with penalty in refation to certain transactions with few parties. The Company has filed the
reply against the show cause notices and conclusion pending for completion, As matter pending before DGGI and GST
department, Delhi are for the same transactions, hence, it should be assessed by the single authority. Management has
obtained a legal opinion from the lawyers and based on such assessment, the Company does not expect any financial
exposure and believe that it has a strong case and accordingly, no such veversal of Input Tax Credit will be required.
Accordingly, no penalty, if any, will also be leviable as per the assessment of the management.

During the review of transactions of certain third partics, the Directorate General of Goods and Service Tax (DGGI) -
Gurugram. has identified certain sale and purchase transactions which was executed by the Company with those parties.
Based on that, the Depariment has issued a premiliary show cause notice dated Jun 12, 2024 for the reversal of Input Tax
Credit along with penalty for Rs. 364,37 million (315t March 2023: R, nil million) (smount paid under protest of Rs, 25
million (31st March 2023: Rs. 25 million)) related (o earlier years, The Company is in process of filling the reply against
intimation. Management has obtained a legal opinion from the lawyers and based on such assessment. the Company does
not expect any financial exposure and believe that it has a strong case and accordingly, no such reversal/penalty will be
required.
GST Tax denm&ren:wud of Rs. 9.69 million (31 March 2023: il million) (amount paid under protest of Rs. (31
March 2023 nil muﬁ,m;. on account of difterent demands received agains GST Audits for various states un@’m
of q’fGST for different paras ralsed by GST Department. Replies have been filed ngainst cach demand . Jan| I
the wiew the company is not anticipating any liability against these demands. (=] ‘éj/
\ _ rd ll.l.a.-:..“‘ll 5
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Lava International Limited
Notes to standalone financial statemments for the period ended 31 March 2024
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees million wnless atherwise staredh

(c)
(i)

(ii)

Oihbers

The Company has filed & civil suit against Telefonakticbolaget LM Ericsson ['Ericsson’) before the Hon'ble District Court,
Gautarm Budh Nagor in the month of January 2015 in relation to alleged standard essential Patents of Ericsson. M/s
Telefonakticholaget LM Ericsson ("Ericsson’) filed a counter suit alleging infringement of it's alleged patents against the
Company in the month of March 2015. Since then, both the suits have been transferred/clubbed before the Hon'ble Delhi
High Court and are pending final adjudication,

Hon'ble High Court, Delhi vide its order dated June 22, 2016 has passed an interim order wherein the Company was
injuncted from manufacturing, importing, selling its devices, subject to the condition of deposit of Rs. 300 million (as
modified in appeal) with the Registrar General of Delhi High Court, The Compuany hus complied with the suid order and
deposited a sum of Rs. 300 million, as a result of which, the operation of Interim Order was stayed till the final disposal of
the main suit. The single benich of the Delhi high court has passed the order duted 28,03.2024 allowing the suit of Ericsson
by awarding Rs, 2,440 million as damages towards infringement of patents as claimed by Ericsson. Subsequently, the
Company has challenged the order dtd 28.03.2024 in appeal before the division bench of Dethi High court on 07.05.2024,
the grounds of appeal includes dumages on account of expired patents, miscalculation of damages/interest, patents are in
nature of algorithm hence not patentable and claimable and other legal grounds. Further, in response to the appeal filed by
the company, the Count had directed both the parties to settle the issue/dispute in accordance with the settlement agreement
executed between the Ericsson and some other party for which the count has fixed the date of hearing on 18th July 2024.
Basced on legal advise and management’s assessment thereof, the Company does not expect any financinl exposure upon
final setilement and accordingly no provision has been made in the financial statement of the Company.

On July 1. 2017, Research and Collaboration Agreement (*RCA') was executed between the Company, Mintellectuals LLP
and Nokia Technologies as a confirming party, Under the RCA, the parties were to explore and work towards the possibility
of technical and research collaborations between Mintellectuals Nokia and the Company,

The Company made payments to Mintellectuals LLP under the RCA, with a view 1o receive the Research and Collaboration
deliverables envisaged under the Agreement. The parties also agreed not to challenge/nssert any legal rights in relation to
Technically Necessary Patents, if any, used/practiced during the term of this agreement. The payments in question were
being made by the Company in licu of the executory consideration/promise/obligation of MintellectualsNokia to enable
and assist research and collaboration in terms of the RCA and no technically necessary patents were used/practiced.

Consequently, the Company declared the RCA 1o be frustrated as there was no consideration in its favour and consequently
stopped making payments to Mintellectuals. As a result of this dispute, Mintellectuals initiated arbitration proceedings for
recovery of amounts for the 4th and Sth quarter under the RCA, which was denied by the Company along with seeking
refund of the amounts paid for the first three quarters under the RCA (“First Arbitration™), In relation to the First
Arbitration, an award dated July 15, 2020 had been passed holding the Company liable to pay approximately Rs. 240
million. The Company has challenged the award of the First Arbitration before the Hon'ble High Count of Delhi, which is
admitted and pending final adjudication. Without prejudice 1o it's challenge to the award, the Company has already paid Rs.
271.03 millions (including TDS net of GST) and submitted bank gusrantee of Rs 119,50 millions with the Registrar
General, Delhi High Coun. Basis the Company’s management assessment and supported by independent legal opinion from
the legal counsel of the Company, subject 1o the pending challenge, the entire amount paid by the Company under this
agreement to Mintellectunls is fully recoverable on legal grounds in favour of the Company.

Mintellectuals had initinted another arbitration proceeding to claim amount allegedly due to it for the 6th quarter onwards
("Second Arbitration™), which is pending at the arbitral tribunal and no amount have been adjudicated as yet on the claims
raised by Mintellectuals. Without prejudice 1o the same, the company has deposited the post-dated cheques amounting to
Rs, 226.22 millions as a security with the concerned arbitral tribunal, Management has taken legal opinion from the lawyers
and as per management’s assessment, company has strong case before arbitral tribunal on the ground presented by the
company. -
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Notes to standulone fionncind stutements Tor the period ended 31 Mareh 2024
Al amounis in fslicn Rupoes mittion unless otherwise siatedi

(iii) On November 29, 2017, Share Subscription & Sharcholder Agreement (‘SSSHA') was executed between the Company,

(iv)

iv)

Sponsors of the Company and UNIC Memory Technology (HK) Lid, (*TUNIC). There were cenain dispute between the
panties for which arbitration proceeding was initiated.

During the arbitration, settlement was amived between the parties on the busis of which Consent Award dited September 9,
2021 {“the Consent™), was passed by the arbitral tribunal,

In terms of the Consent Award LINIC has approached Delhi High Court which is pending adjudication. The Company has
evaluated the case and does not foresee any additional liability towards UNIC,

The Dolby had claimed ownership of a portfolio of 7 patents, these patents cover standardized technology for Advanced
Audio Coding (AAC) and Unified Speech and Audio Coding (USAC). The Dalby assert that the Company has been in
discussions for the lawful use of these patents since 2018 but has delayed coneluding an agreement, characterizing them as
an unwilling licensee. Accordingly, Dolby had filed a suit on 30 April 2024 against the Company before the Delhi High
Court wherein Company have asked (0 appear and file its reply on (04.07,2024, Based on legal advise and management's
assessment thereof, the Company does not expect any financial exposure and accordingly no provision has been made in the
financial statement of the Company.

The Company has undertaken export obligations of Rs. 138,34 million (31 March 2023 : 164.29 million) pending against
the issuange of Import Licenses for the Impon of Capital Goods.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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32 Details of dues to micro and small enterprises ax defined ynder the MSMED Act, 2006

On the basis of confirmation obtained from suppliers who have registered themselves under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprise Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 20067 and based on the information available with the Company. dues

disclosed as per the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 at the year end are below:

5. |Particulars 3 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
M.
1 The principal smount remaining unpaid to uny supplier as at the end of each 339.03 3217
accounting year,
5 | The interest due thereon remaining unpaid 1o any supplier as a1 the end of ench 263 119
© |accounting vear. = .
The amount of intérest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 along with the
3 |amounts of the payment made 10 the supplier beyond the appointed day during| Nil Nil
each accounting vear,
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
4 |payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) Nil Nil
but without adding the interest specified under this Act.
5 The amount of inerest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of each 382 1.19
gecounting year; and i '
The amount of further interest remaining due and pavable even in the
6 |succeeding years, umil such date when the interest dues as above are actually Wil il
paid 1o the small emerprise,

33 Details of Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility as per section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 and rules

thereon:-
5. |Particulars 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
No.
I |Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the yvear 10,79 10.03
2 |Amount spent in cash during the vear on; 10.79 10.03
n) |Construction sequisition of any nssel - -
b)  [Safeguarding environmental sustainability - -
€) |Promotion of education - i0,03
d) |Uplifiment of Rural Poor Youth - -
) |Upliftment of Sports and Cultural Activities = =
f) |Protection of national heritage, art and culture 10,79 -
3 |Shortfall at the end of the year - -
4 |Reason for Shortfall WA NA
5 |Contribution to trust controlled by the company Nil Nil
6 [Movement in Provision made il il

(This space has been intentianally left biank)
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34 Import of mobile phones only attracts Special Duty of Customs in lieu of Excise (CVD) which is equivalent (o excise duty
applicable on like goods as il munufaciured or produced in Indin. Accordingly, mobile phones manufactured in India are
subject 1o excise duty at the rate of 13.5% (including NCCD of %) if Cenvat Credit on inputs and capital goods is availed
(rate of duty was 7.21% (including NCCD of 19%) till 28 February 2015) and 2% (including NCCD of %) if such Cenvat
Credit on inputs and capital goods is not availed,

This has been lunher clarified by the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India in the similar cases by ruling that the benefit of
exemption / concessional rate of excise duty, which is subject to a condition that no Cenvat credit on inputs or capital goods
used in the manulacture of such goods shall be taken, is also available 1o the imparters of Like goods for pavment of CVD
urider Customs.

During the financial years 2014 -2015 and 2015 - 2016, the Company was clearing the imported mobile phones by paying
CVD of customs at higher rate of 7.21% before March 01, 2015 and 13.50% from March 01, 2015 instead of 2% during
respective periods. The Company got re-assessed bills of entries amounting to Rs 638.47 million during the financial vear
2017-18 Post clarification issued by the Hon'ble Supreme Court in M/'s SRF case discussed above, and afier re-assessment
of bills of entries, the above said CVD amount became fully recoverble. Accordingly, the Company has ¢laimed refund as
per the Customs Act 1962,

As at 315t March 2024, ol amount recoverable amounting 10 Rs. 306.09 million (31 March 2023: Rs. 31537 milllon)
(including recoverable charges for delayed payment nmounting to Rs. 24585 millian (31 March 2023: Ry, 251 54 million))
was recorded, has been disclosed under "Balance with statutory/govemment authorities™ based on legal opinion obtained.

35 Research and development expenditure
The Company has duly carried out its research and development activities during the year and the details of related
expenditure are given below:

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Amount charged to Staiement of Profit and Loss 188.30 155.88
Amount capitalised

- Property, plant and equipment 3.27 11.89
191.57 167.77

(This space hay been intentionally left blank)
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36 Employee stock option plans:
The plans existing during the vesr are a5 follows -

Numiber of options approved 15% of Equity Paid up Share capltal

Method of settlement (Cash / Equity) [Cuash/Eguity

The emplosee should be on roll of the Company or

Vesting conditions its subsidiary

The details af sctivity under ESOP Schemes have been summarized below*:

31 Mareh 2024 31 March 2013
Number of ‘:::‘r:;:d Number of ‘:"m“:
L g exercise price aytines exercise price
['h.lli'Lll'lﬂing it the hr.ginning ol yeur 49.727.550| 8.6 49,161,554 8,35
Options granted during the year : : 1,201,872 24.86
Exercised / Senled dﬂnng the vear - - 152,969 19.21
Forefieted during the year . a 4829407 16,09
Outstanding at the end of the vear 49,727,550 B.64 49,727,550 B.64
Eswrcisable us at end of the year 44 859358 7.59 44,449,927 7.58

The detalls of the ESOP guistanding arc as follows;

Options Ouistanding as al 31 March 2024 Optiens Ouistanding as at 31 March 2023

M. o shares Weighted Welghted No. of shards Weighted  Weighted Average
Range of exercise price  arising oul of Avernge Average arising out of Average Exercise price
per share oplions remaining Exercise price optlens remaining

contractunl life contractual life

Re]-Rs 3025 20,444,744 175 2350 20,444,744 276 2,50
Rs. 6250 - Rs, 9.375 1,639,200 218 7.72 1,639,200 318 172
Rs, 9375 - Ry, 12,500 18,508,158 - .95 18,508,158 . 10,95
Rs, 15625 - Rs. 18,750 7933 575 1 98 1682 933,575 299 16,82
Rs. 21 875-Rs. 25.000 1201872 3.00 24,86 1,200,872 4.00 24.86

The share based payment expense incurred during the year is shown in the following table:

31 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023

Expense arising from equity-settled shure-hased paymen! transactions 9,02 1683
{Income) / Expense arising from sextlement of options - -
9.02 16.83
oan & o TRB LD
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o,

/ N Y {This space has been intentianally left blank)
Ty X

th



Lava lnternational Limited
Notes to standulone financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2024
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37 Lense Linbilities

Contractual maturities of lease labilities:-

The delails of contractual maturities of lease labilities as at March 31, 2024 & March 31, 2023 on an undiscounted basis are

as follows:-
Partleulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Poyable not later than | year 42.70 840
Payable later than | vear and not 66.75 109.47
later than 5 year

10445 14787
Lease liability
Particulars Office building Factory Warehouse Vehicle Total

building Building

As at 31 March 2022 43.40 11730 1.80 = 162.59
Addition in lease liability - - - 19.08 19.08
Deletion in lease liability - - - - -
Interest expense on lease linbility 484 13.09 0.20 0.55 18.68
Payment made dm‘inl CY 13.79 3393 0.59 4,17 51,48
As at 31 March 2023 J4.45 .46 .50 15.46 147.87
Addition in lease liability - - - . -
Deletion in lease liability - - . = - -
Interest expense on lease liability 3.84 10.76 017 1.53 16.30
Payment made during CY 15.28 3528 .65 351 54.71
As at 31 March 2024 23.02 TLY4 1.02 1348 109,45
Non Current portion 10.31 44.68 0.48 11.29 66,75
Current maturities of lense
limbility 12.7 17.26 0.54 219 42.70

{This space has been intensionally left Blank)
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Debt Equity Ratio: Decreased due 1o decline in debt as compared to previous financlal vear.
Debt Service Coverage Ratio: Declined due 1o higher repayment of debt during the year as compared to previous

financial year.

38 Ratios
The following are analytical ratios for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023; -
Particulars Numerator Denominator | For the vear ended | For the year ended Variance
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Current Ratio Current assets Current liabilites 159 1.58 .63%
Debt- Equity Total deb Shareholder's 013 0.23 —43.48%
Ratio® including lease  |egquity

liahilities
Debt Service Earnings Dbt service 0.76 1.04 -2R30%
Coverage Ratio®  |available for debt [including lease

service liabilities (during

the year)

Retum on Equity® [Net Profit after | Average 4.54% 2.78% 63.31%

Laxes shareholder's

equity

Inventory Revenue Average Inventory 5.66 504 12.30%
Turnover Ratio
Trade receivable  |Revenue Averaps Trade £.80 398 i21.11%
Turnover Ratio* recelvables
Trade puyable Purchases Average Trade 520 518 0.39%
Turnover Ratio pavahles
Net Capital Revenue Average Waorking 560 2.1 92.44%
Turmover ratio® capital '
Net Profit Rotio MNet profit Revenue 1.84% 1.60%% 15.00%
Return on Capital |Esmings before  |Capital employed B.78% 7.24% 21.27%
employed interest and taxes
Returm-on Income generated |Average invested L18% 0,20% 490.00%
Investment® from funds n treasury

sale of invested  [investments

funds
‘E nation w riance in ralios han 25%

Return on Equity : Improved due (o increase in profits und decreased in average total equity in current financial vear
as compured 1o previous financial yvear,

Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio: Improved due 1o revenue growth and decline in trade receivable.
Net Capital Turnover Ratio: Increased due to revenue growth and reduction in average working capital,
Return on Investment :Improved due to income generated from sale of invested funds in current year,

)
A |
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39 The Company has appointed independent consultants for conducting o transfer pricing study 1o determine whether the
tmnsactions with essociated enterprises were undertaken 5t "anm’s length price”. The manngereni confirms that all
international transactions with associste enterprises are undenuken ot negotiaied contracted prices on usual commercial
terms and there is po adjustments required in financial stalements on campletion of the udy.

40 There are certain recelvables and puvables where the Company intends to set off with each other. For thi purpose of
presentation in financial statements, such receivables and payables have been presenied on net hasis. The Company is in
process of obtaining the requisite approvals from the approprinte authorities in this regard.

41 In respect of certain iransuctions periining to other company/companies relaling (o prior periods, the Direclorate of
Enforcement (ED) has filed o case against the Compuny and s former Managing Directar which is sub-judice. On the bosis
of the information avallsble and the legil opinion obtained by the Company, the prospects of the cuse being dischargod is
favarable. Accordingly, as on the date of approval of these financial results, the Company is nol required to make any
adjustmients, disclosures or piven any effect o he Benclel statemims,

42 There were no amounts which were required to be transferred o the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
company.

43 The company did not huve any long-term contracts for which there wene any material foresecable losses.

44 The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initisted or pending against the Compamy
for holding any Benam| property.

45 The Company has nol heen declared willfisl defaulter as ut the date of the bulance sheet ar on the date of upproval of the
financial sitements.

46 The Company has not sdvanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entityties), including foreign entities
(intermediaries) with the understanding thot the intermediary shall;

(2) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitles identified in any manner whatsoever Iy or on behall of the
company {Ultimate Bencficlunies) or
(b} provide any guarsniee, securlty or the ke 1o or an behalf of the Ultimate Beneliciaries.

47 The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entityties), including foreign entitics (Funding Party) with
the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(8} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whitsoever by ar on behalf of the
Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficianies) or
(h) provide any gusraniee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficlarics.

48 The Company is in compliance with the number of layers prescribed under clanse (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies {Restriction on number of Layers) Rilles, 2017 (s amended).

49 The company has nequired 100% of the equity shares in China Bird Centro America, $.A tmﬂﬁj‘\‘a Fanama based
company which is into the business of selling the mobile phones in Latin America. CBUA is a handset seller in Latin
Americy with a distribution network consisting of mobile cariers, retablens and loes disiributors,

The objective of the acquisition of CBCA was ta provide the Compuny with access to an established market und consumer
base in Latin American countries und allow to benefit from the growth of mobile handset market in Latin America.

The Company has acquired the China Bird Centro America, S.A. (CBCA) in September 2021 by way of o share swap deal
and also entered into certain agreements between the company, CBBCA and CBCA's shareholders. Under the share sWap
deal, the company issued 3% of its equity shares to the sharcholders of CBCA and Sharcholders of CRCA has transferred
100% of CBCA hires to the company,

The Management of CBCA has not coopernted and shared the financial statement and other required information for
disclosure,

The board of the company hax been apprised of the current development of the non - cooperation of CBCA management In
sharing the fequired infarmation despite numerous follow ups by the company. The board has sdvised 1o the management to____
enforce fhe terms of the agrecment entered into during the acquisition of CBCA and take necessary legal course of u}p@ (" 5:}‘\
protectthe intergat of the company. ~ G
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A ameinty i fndian Rupees million walexs othemise stated;

80 There is no income surrendered or disclosed ax income dunng the curn'onl or previous vear m the ax ssessments under e
Income Tax Act, 1961, rhat bas oot been reconded in the books of acooant

51
Act, 1956,

The Company has no tremeuctions during (he year with the companies struck ofT wnder Companies Act. 2013 or Companies

The Company have not traded or invested in Cryplo currency or Vinual Curreney during the hinancial vear.

The Code on Social Secority, 2020 ("Code’) relnting 1o employee benelits, during employment and post-emplovment

benefits, has recelved the Presidentinl assent in September 2020, Thls Code hus been published in the Gazette of India
However, the effective date from which the changes are applicable iz vet to be natified und the rules {or quuntifying the
finuncial impoct we also yet w be |ssued. The Company will evalusie the impact of the Code and will give appropriate
impact in the financial statements in the period In which the Code becomes effective and the related rules are published,
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E-mail: carajguptaco@gmail.com Mob: 9815643637
INDIA Website: www.carajguptaco.com Mob: 7889279571

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Lava International Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial :ﬁumr.nu
Opinion

We have audited the sccompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Lava Intemnational
Limited (“the Holding Company™), its subsidiaties (the Holding Company and its subsidiagie
roguhn::r referred to as "the Group”), its trust, associste and a joint venture comprising of the

(including Other Comprehensive Incorne), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows fur the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory
information, '

huu:upininnmdmﬂmbeumfwhzﬁmmﬁnnmdacm:dingmtht explanations given to us and
- based on the consideration of teports of other auditors on separate Ind AS financial statements and

on the other financial information of the subsidisries, trust, associates snd joint ventures the
aforesaid consclidated Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the C
Act, 2013, as amended fﬁcﬂcf?hﬁﬂ_mmmr@ﬂmdmdgivunmmﬁi:ﬁmh
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS") prescribed under section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies anmﬁmwhmm)nmmmis,nm&dm
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as
at March 31, 2024, its consolidated profit including ather comprehensive income, consolidated
changes in equity, and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial sttements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act).
Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements’ section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issned by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the

Kolkata J&K Ludhiana New Delhi Mumbai Bangalore Chennal Hyderabad Amritsar
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Emphasis of Matter

With reference to Note- 40 of the Consolidated Financial Statements of Lava Intemnational
Limited for the year ended 31st March, 2024 The Company has acquired 100% of equity shares
in China Bird Centro America (CBCA) in September 2021 by way of a share swap deal and also
entered into certain agreements between the company, CBCA and CBCA’s sharcholders (i.e
Clipper Global 5.A. having 100% Shares of CBCA). Under the Acquisition deal, the company
issued 5% of its equity shares to the shareholders of CBCA and Shareholders of CBCA has
transferred 100% of CBCA shares to the company.

Based on Financial statements shared by the CBCA's management, the Consolidated Financial
statement of the company have been prepared and approved for the financial years 2021-22 and
2022-23.

The Management of CBCA has not cooperated and shared the required information for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements as at March 31, 2024, Hence the consolidated

financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 has been prepared without considering
the Financials of CBCA to ensure comparability of the financial information presented in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024, the previous year figures
have been restated without considering Finaneials as at March 31, 20123

The board of the company has been apprsed of the current development of the non -
cooperation of CBCA management. The board has advised the company management to enforce
the agreement entered into durng the acquisiion of CBCA and take legal course of action
of action to protect its interest. Our opinion is not modified in this matter.

Other Matter

A) We did nor audit the financial statements of 6 subsidiaries whose financial statements reflect
total assets of Rs. 2 946.58 million and net assets of Bs 77449 million 45 at March 31, 2024,
total revenue of Rs. 14,300.03 million and net cash flow amounting to Rs, 30.99 million for
the year then ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements before giving effect of elimination of intra-group transactions, whose Ind AS
financial statements have not been audited by us. The consolidated Ind AS financial
statements also include the Group's share of loss (including other comprehensive loss) of
Rs. 0.05 million for the year ended March 31, 2024, as considered in the consolidated Ind
AS financial statements, in respect of joint venrure.

These financial statements have been audited by the other auditors whose reports have been
furnished to us by the management and our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries, trust, associate and joint venture, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of

e
1 %
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B)

Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsiciaries, trusr, associate and
joint venture is based solely on the reports of the other audirors.

Further, of these subsidiaries, 3 subsidiaries are located outside India whose Ind A5 financial
statements and other financial informadon have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally acceptable in their respective countries and which have been
audited by other auditors under generally accepted auditing standards applicable in their
respective countries, The Holding Company's management has converted the financial
statements of such subsidiaries located outside Tndia from accounting principles generally
accepted in their respective countties to accounting prineiples generally accepted in India.

Also, we did not audit the financial statements and other financial information in respect of
9 subsidiary companies and 1 Trust, whose financial statements reflect total assets of Rs.
169.65 million and net assets of Rs. 43.33 million as at March 31. 2024, total revenues of Rs.
11.19 million and net cash flow amounting to Rs. (20.24) million for the year ended on that
date, as considered in the consolidated Ind AS financial sratements before giving effect of
elimination of intra-group transactions. The consolidated Ind AS financial statements also
include the Group's share of loss (including other comprehensive loss) of Rs, 0,18 million
for the year ended March 31, 2024, as considered in the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, in tespect of an associate. These financial statements and other informanon are
unaudited and has been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the
consolidated Ind AS Anancial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of the subsidiaries, joint venture and associate and our report
in term of sub-section (3) of section 143 of the Act, in so far it is related to the aforesaid
subsidiaries, is based solely on such unaudited financial statements and other financial
mformaton. In our opinion and according to the informaton and explanagons given to us
by the Management, these financial statements and other financial information are not
miaterial to the Group.

Qur opinion above on the consolidated Ind AS financial starements is not modified in
respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports
of the other auditors and these financial statements and other financial information certified
by the management.
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Other Information

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other informaton.
The other informarion comprises the information included in the Holding Company’s Annual
report, but does not include the consolidated Ind AS financial statements and our report thereon,

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not exptess any form of assurance conclusion theteon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is matenially
inconsistent with the consolidated Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude thar there is 2 material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Ind AS financial statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance,
consolidated cash flows and consolidated change in equity of the Group including its associate and
joint venture in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (India Accounting Standards) Rule 2015 amended. The respective Board of Directors of
the companies included in the Group including its associate and joint venture are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safepuarding of the assets of the Group including its associate and joint venture and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularites; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates thar are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements that pive a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used
for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements by the Directors of
the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the

companies included in the Group including its associate and joint venture %ﬁ_._:_f_:ﬁﬁ}nﬁiblt for

assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as app;';ﬁa"bk.-'ﬁ!ﬁytgrﬁ related
i e Sl T i

to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless magagemen ther intends
to liquidate the group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternagve butro do sy, |l
o g |/
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The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group including its associate
and joint venture are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group
including its associate and joint venture.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS financial
statermnents as 8 whole are free from marterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a4 guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
tnisstatement when it cxists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to mfluence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and approprate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Group, associate, and joint venture
which the companics are incorporated in India has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

+  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to evenrs
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Cumpau}r s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attenton in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our cnndyslfns are’ i@am,d on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, Euru.rb events ot
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue 4s a going mmcpm %
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obrain sufficient and approprate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entifies or business activities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors, to
express an opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision, and performance of the audit of the Ind AS financial statements of such
entiies included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them, We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audir and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiendies in
internal control that we idennfy during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

With respect to the matters specified in clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 and paragraph 4 of the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“CARO”/ “the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, according to the information and
explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us and the auditors of
respective companies included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements to which
reporting under CARO is applicable, as provided to us by the Management of the Holding
Company, we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective
auditors in the CARO reports of the said companies included in the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements.

Section 143(3) of the Act is not applicable to LAVA Employee Welfare Trust :u:ui co
incorporated ourside India. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based -;r.n our audit and
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the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on the separate financial statements and

other finandal informadon of subsidianes referred to in the "Orther Matters’ section above we
report, to the extent applicable, that:

{a) We/the other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial staterments;

{b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from
our examination of those books, and the reports of the other audirors;

{c) The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss, (including
other comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of the preparation of the consolidated
Ind AS finandal statements;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") prescobed under section 133 of the Act read with
the Compantes (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015;

(¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on March 31, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and the reports of the auditors of its subsidiary companies, associate and joint
venture which are the companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group's
companies, its associate and joint venture which are companies incorporated in India is
disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Secton 164
(2) of the Act

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and
operating effectiveness of such controls of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies,
associate, and joint venture which are the companies incorporated in India, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure A", and

(g) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Holding Company which are the companies incorporated in India
to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of
the Act. Further, based on the auditor’s report of subsidiary companies incorporated in
India, no manageral remunemton is paid/provided by these subsidiary companies to their
directors during the year ended March 31, 2024 and hence, rcpﬂrﬁngﬁf\‘t_if.iiﬁﬁjq!:?visiﬂnﬁ of
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secion 197 read with Schedule V to the Act is not applicable for these subsidiary
companies.;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on
the consideration of the report of the other auditors on separate Ind AS financial statements
as

also the other financial informaton of the subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, as
noted in the *Other martter® paragraph:

.. The consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the impaet of pending litigations
on its consolidated finandial posiion of the Group, its assodiates, and joint ventures in
irs consolidared Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 30 to the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements;

. Provision has been made in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, as required
under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any,
on long-term contracts including derivative contracts;

ii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investur
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, its subsidiaries, associates,
and joint venrures, incorporated in India during the year ended March 31, 2024;

iv. (a) The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are
compianies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under
the Act, have represented to us and to the other auditors of such subsidianes
respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note 52 to
the consolidated Ind AS financial statement, no funds have been advaneed or lodned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources pr kind of
funds) by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries to or in any other person(s)
or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, thar the Intermediary shall, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries and associate
(“Ultimate Benefidanes") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimare Beneficiaries

(b) The respecuve Managements of the Holding Company and 1ti;crb§1dignes which
are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements’have been Audited
under the Act, have represented to us and to the other auditory ra.t su% subsiﬂl:mes
respectively thar, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as discly srcd mute note 53 to
the consolidated Ind AS fnancial statement, no funds have WII Iec lYJEd by the
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V.

vi.

Holding Company or any of such subsidiades and associate from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entiies (“Funding Pardes™), with the understanding,
whether recorded In writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of such
subsidiaries shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any muanner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimare
Beneficiares.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the arcumstances performed by us and that performed by the
auditors of the subsidiades, associates and joint ventures which are companies
incorporated in India whose Ind AS financial statements have been audited under
the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditor’s notice thar has caused us or the
other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a2) and (b)
contain any matenal mis-statement;

The Holding company and subsidiary companies incorporated in India have not declared
and p:lid dividend du.t]'.ng the year.

The Company uses SAP-ECC 6.0 EHP 8 (SUITE ON HANA) as the Enterprise
Resource Planning (ERP) and accounting software, SAP -ECC 6.0 EHP 8 ensures an
audir trail, providing standard functionality and logging in all changed dara in the system.
This functionality and audir trail feature in SAP-ECC 6.0 EHP 8 has been operational
throughout the year for all relevant transactions récorded through the application at the
Company. At the Company, accounting documents are used to record all business
transactions — posted documents are stored in SAP-ECC 6.0 EHP 8 for every
transaction and a financial document once posted cannot be deleted or changed for data
points tmpacting financials,

The SAP-ECC 6.0 EHP & environment at the Company is approprately governed and
only authorized users can make postings in SAP-ECC 6.0 EHP 8, while interacting with
the system through the application layer. Normal /regular users are not granted nor have
direct SAP-DB (database) or super user level access which would allow them to make
any changes to financial documents directly which have already been posted through the
application. To operate the SAP-ECC 6.0 EHP 8 -application and the SAP-DB
(database), the system necessarily requires a ser of super-users to have DB (database) -
level accesses. These super-users are obligated to perform system related tasks, The
super-user are not allowed to carry out any direct changes/edits to financial transactions
in the SAP-DB (database), which if carded out is ill-legal. In the event of an
unauthotized change by a super user specifically, these can be detected through an
investigative approach and/or using services provided by SAP as part of their financial
data quality check service, which validates the consistency of financials based on the
request of the chent

o
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viii.  In respect of entities incorporated outside India whose auditors have made no reporting

on the requirement of maintaining the audit trail under Rule 11(g) and in respect of

entties incorporated in India, whose financial statements are unandited, no comments

have been included for the purpose of reporting under Rule 11(g) for such entities.

ix.  Reportng on the requirement of maintaining the audit tail under Rule 11(g), in so far as
it relates to 3 subsidiades and 1 joint venture which are companies

incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures incorporated in India.

For Raj Gupta & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registratdon Na: 000203N

. 553045

UDIN: 2456563 Y53k P9 R 76
Place: Noida

Date: Y Ceptembes | 2024
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors’ Report of Even Date on the Consolidated Ind AS
financial statements of the Lava Intemational Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of The Lava
International Limited (hercinafter referred to as the “Holding Company™) as of and for the year
ended March 31, 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
Ind AS financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries {the Holding Company
and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), its associates and joint ventures, which are
companies incorporated in India, audited by other auditors.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Flolding Company and its subsidiary companies, associates
and joint venture incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financizl controls with referenee to consolidated Ind AS financial statements based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective Companies considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Finandal
Contrals Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI)". These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the ordedy and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Comparues Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the *Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of
the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both, issued by ICAL
Those Standards and the Guidance Note requite that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS finandial statements was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. Our audit involves performing
procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal ﬁnzncm] mntruls system
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. \

Kolkata J&K Ludhiana New Delhi Mumbai Bangalore Chennai Hvderahad Amritsar




RAJ GUPTA & CO. 1839, SECTOR 22-B

Chartered Accountants Chandigarh-160022
E-mail: carajguptaco@gmail.com Mob: 9815643637
INDIA  Website: www.carajguptaco.com Mob: 7889279571

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Tnd
AS financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements, assessing the dsk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors judgement, including the
asscssment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors of the subsidiary companies, which are incorporated in India, in terms of their reports
referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the intemnal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Ind AS financial
statcments

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
consolidated Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepred accounting principles, A company's internal financial control over fnandial reportng
includes those policies and procedures that(l) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of consolidated Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated Ind AS
tinancial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Ind AS
financial statements

Because of the inherent imitations of internal financial controls over finandial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override. of controls, material misstatements
due ro error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future pedods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

5 ".'Q.\_
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, its joint ventures, and its associates
which are companies incorporated in India have, in all material respects, an adeguate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal financial control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essental
companents of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Finandal Control
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Martter

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness
of the intemal financial controls over financial reporting, in so far as it relates to 3 subsidiaties and 1
joint venture which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of
the auditors of such subsidiaries, assodiates and joint ventures incorporated in India.

For Raj Gupta & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 000203N

Jo. 553645

UDIN: 746 53¢ YS 3k C PKRARIC T4
Place: MNoid

Date ty34 Sefetenvbin, 202y
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Consolidated balanee sheet as al 31 Mareh 2034
LA amonnts in Indian Rusees million, undess othenvise stuted)

Particulars Note No. As at 31 As at 31
N March 2024  March 2023
Assels
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 474.93 568.89
Capital work-in-progress 3 201.69 191.99
Intangible assels 4 10L51 21,77
Right of use asset 5 2. 14 | 16.89
Investments accounted Tor using the equity method 35 60,62 H0.ET
iinancial ar-aty
Investments :n equity instruments of other entitics f(a) 57.86 65.00
Investment in subsidiaries 6 (a) (i) 371614 3.716.14
Other financin] assets 6(1) 55.02 124.26
Deferred tax assels (net) 22(c) 364,45 31023
Other non-curren! assets 8 (a) 32.21 208,12
5,055.57 5.384.16
Currert assels
Invenlories 7 J.R41 4% 3,202.38
Financial assels
lavestments 6 (h) 3.06 28.73
Trade receivanles 6 (c) 3.925.57 6,563.70
Cash and cash equivalents 6 () 524.03 822.59
Otker bank balances 6 (e) 843.09 214.95
Ohher financial assets b (g) 174.83 209.68
Other curren! assets B (b} 293827 2 566.80
12,250.34 17.308.83
TOTAL ASSETS 17,305.91 22,642.99
Equity and liahilitics
Eouity
Fipuity share capital 0 3, 710563 2,705.63
instruments entively equily in nature 9 33.42 3342
Other equity
Securilics premium reserve 5,6%0.34 5:.000.34
Treasury shares (G3.34) (63.34)
Foreign evrrency translation reserve 285.07 728.96
Share based payment reserve 38116 37214
Retined earnings 465.77 4.107.09
Dhler reserve 29,8y 17,31
Equity attributable 1o equity holders of the Helding Company 9,527.94 13,591.54
MNon-controlling interest ) (10,54 {22.28)
Total equity 9,527.40  13.569.26
Lighilities
Non-current linbilities
Finaneial liabilities _
Borrowings N\ a 0112470 (0) 132.77 229.52
Lease liabilities ' 10 6615 109.47
Provisions ‘Qf “ A 61.95 8634
y | 261.47 Ju8.03




Lava International Limited

Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2024

(Al amounis in Indian Rupees million. unless otherwise siated)

Particulars MNote Na. Asat 31 As at 31
March 2024  March 2023

Current liabilitics
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 10 (b) 991.00 1,815.08
Lease liabilities 10 (e) 42.70 38.40
Trade payables
- Iuta: outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 10 (c), 32 229.93 132.17
- tolal outstanding dues of ereditors other than micro
enterprises and Hf‘lﬁ” enterprises M 24R1%:20 46323
Other financial liabilities 10 (f) 1,637.98 1,512.84
Other current liabilitics 12 479.00 326.02
Provisions 11 (b) 164.24 133.78
Current tax liabilities (net) I3 152.99 110.87
Total Current liabilities 7.517.04 8,725.09
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 17,305.91 22,692.99
Material accounting policies 21

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated [inancial statements,

Th:: financial statements for the current financial year have been prepared withoul considering linancial statements of
China Bird Centro Amercia, S.A, wholly owned subsidiary of the reporting entity. Previous year figures (315t March 2023)
have been restated without considering financial statement of China Bird Centro America, S.A (Refer Note 40)

As per our report of even date ag attached

Fur Raj Gupta and Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chﬁl'lﬂmﬂ _:T'_i‘:muntﬂuts Lava International Limited
Firm’s Registration No.: 000203N CIN: 1J32201 DL2009PLC | 88920
e
B £ . - g
- L] —C,
M ""’/ QQJ) gﬁ A (2aw) ﬂ“ﬁ
~ Shailendra Nath Rai Sunil iﬁinn S'J\njuw Agarwal
Whole-Time Director Whale-Time Direct Whole-Time Director
(DIN-00908417) (DIN-09302069) (EIN-071 10183)
Sunil Bhalla Vishal Seligal
Direclor Direclor
(DIN-DO9RO040) 3 (DIN-03127049}
P ,f

J’” o /“ﬂ}‘ o>
Rajesh Sethi
Chief Financial Officer

iitesh Singh
; 7~ Comipany Secrctary
Vg Earat) (M. No.- A61459)

1=/ ‘4%
Place: Noida

Date: Seplember 4, 2024




Lava International Limited

Consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2024

fAN amernis in Indian Rupees million, unlesy otherwise siated)

—

Piirticalavs Note  For the year ended  For the year ended
No. 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Income
Revenue from operations 14 36.460.55 49,026.55
Other income 15 209.43 273.84
Total income (1) 36,669,958 49,300.39
Expenses
Cost of raw material and components consumed 16 17.858.78 16,213.7]
Purchase of traded goods 10,633.47 22.99529
Changes in inventories of finished goods, spares and 17 2,181.57 667.83
stock in trade
Employee benefit expenses 18 1,808.66 1,999.17
Other expenses 19 3. 15710 4,211.03
Total expense (1) 35,639.58 46,787.03
Earnings before share of loss of an associate & joint venture, 1,030.40 2,513.36
interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) (I)-(IT)
Depreciation and amortisation expense 20 230,19 1,286.56
Finance costs 21 345.56 367.22
Profit before share of loss of an associate & joint venture and tax 454.65 #59.58
Share of loss of joint venture, associates (net of tax) (1) 35 0.23 0.22
Profit before tax 454.42 B59.36
- Current tax 170,12 118.19
- Tax charge/{credit) relating to earlier years .06 (16.98)
- Deferred tax expense/(income) (54.28) 3.69
Income lax expense 22 115.90 106.90
Profit for the year 338.52 752.46
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income not to be
reclassified 1o
- Re-measurement (pains ) losses of 37 018 (1.71)
- Income lax relating to this item 22 (.05 {(.43)
Other comprehensive income that will be
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods :
<Change in fair value of FYOC] equity instruments {37.58) -
-Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations 443,89 (35.25)
Other ecomprehensive income/loss for the year (net of tax) 406.54 (37.39)
Total Comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) (68.02) T89.85

c/g&/
-




Lava International Limited

Consolidated statement of profit and loss for the vear ended 31 March 2024
(Al ameaunts in Indian Rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Note For the year ended  For the year ended

N 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Profit for the year is attributable to

- Equity holders of Holding Company 316,77 752.62
- Noen-controlling interest 201.74 (0.15)
Other comprehensive income of the year is attribulable to

- Equity holders of Holding Company (406.54) 37.39
- Men-controlling interest - (.00
Total comprehensive income of the year is attributable to

- Equity holders of Holding Company (B9, 76) 700,01

- Non-controlling interest 21.74 (0.15)
Earnings per equity share (in rupees) 23

Basic 0.59 1.39
Diluted 0.54 1.28
Material accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying notes form an intepgral part of these consolidated financial statements.

The linancial statements for the current financial year have been prepared without considering linancial statements of
China Bird Jentro Amercia, 5.4, wholly owned subsidiary of the reporting entity. Previous year figures (3 1st March 2023)
have been restated without considering financial statement of China Bird Centro America, S.A (Refer Note 40),

As per our report of even date as attached

For Raj Gupta and Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.; 000203 N

viJindal /
Pdrines

Mr:mh-nn‘hlpHﬂ ‘i‘i?ﬁ"r"

UDIN 2 245536 ySBre PRBIET6

Place: Noida
Date: Seplember 4, 2024

For and on behall of the Board of Directors of

Lava International Limited
CIN: U32201RL2009PLC 1 BRO20

Fulr = g s fened

Shailendra Nath Rai
Whaole-Time Director  Whaole-Time Director Whale-Time Diréclor
(DIN-00908417) (DIN-09302069]) (DIN-07110183)

fos

Sunil Bhalla Vishial Sehgal
Director Direclor /
{ DIM-00980040) E LDIN-03127049} o

{
O % R
Rajesh Scili Ritesh Singh
Chiefl Financial Officer Company Secretary

(M. No.- AGT459)

Place: Noida - l

Date: September 4, 2024 ‘/‘ﬁ( g |
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Lava International Limited
Consolidated cash flow statement for the vear ended 31 March 2024
(A ameonis in Indian Rupees willion, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash Mows
Depreciationfamortization
{Profit) loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Linrealized foreign exchange (gain)/ loss
MNet gain on sale of mutual fund investments
Share of loss/{Profit) of associate/ joint venture
Fair value (gain)/loss on derivative linancial instrument at FYTPL
Provision for Share based payment Expenses
Provision for Inventories obsolescence
Provision for trade receivables and advances
Amortization of prepaid seourity deposit
Interest expense
Interest income

Operating profit before working eapital changes

Muovements in working eapital;
Inerease/ (Deerease) in trade payables and other liabilities
Increase/ (Decrease) in provisions
{Increase) Decrease in trade receivables
{Increase)’ Decrease in inventories
{Increase)’ Decrease in other assets
Cash generated from operations
[ncome taxes paid (netl of refunds)
Net cash Tow from / (used in) operating activities (A)

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase/Sale of property, plant and equipment, including capital work
in progress , intangibles and capital advances
Proceeds drom sale of propery, plant and equipment
(including intangibles)
Investment in equity shares of other companies
Purchase of mutual fund investments
Sale of mutual fund investments
Investment in bank deposits
Maturity of bank deposits
Inderest received
Met eash fow from / (used in) investing activities (B)

Cash Mow from financing activities
Proceeds from long-term borrowings
Maovement [n Long-lerm borrowings
Movement in short-lerm borrowings
Interest paid on lease liability
Payment of principal portion of lease labilities
Interest paid on borrowings
MNet cash from / (used in) financing aectivities (C)

454.42 §59.36
230,19 |,286.56
(0.65) (1.95)
0.14 (65.60)
022 (0.30)
0.23 0.22
(1.83) 1.96
9.02 16.83
(69.54) (20,25)
4.15 (0.20)
0.97 0.97
228.40 256,65
(93.89) (74.77)
761.83 2,259.47
(418.51) 205.50
33.06 (10.73)
(790.33) (1,445.05)
243043 (450.36)
(772.02) (327.76)
1.244.47 231.08
(114.96) (262.01)
1,120.5] (30.93)
(101.57) 219,98
65 3.6
6.81 (4.49)
(63.00) (53.50)
88,92 25,00
(1,929,09) (2,859.66)
2.066,27 2,995.00
124.28 49,22
193.27 374.51
80.61 13.51
(457.45) -
(544.28) (94.72)
(16.30) (18.68)
(38.42) (33.80)
(202.30) (216.69)
(1,178.14) (350.38)

e




Lava International Limited
Consolidated cash fow statement for the year ended 31 March 2024
fAl amounis in fndian Rupees million, wiless othervise siareed)

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 Marech 2023
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B +C) 144.63 (6.49)
Effeet ol exchange rates on translation of operating cashlows (443,207 T7.896
Cash and ¢ash equivalents at the beginning ol the year 822,59 751.11
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 514.03 812.5%
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand _ 233 5.94
With balances on current accoum
- on deposil account 308.13 751.54
- others balances 213,57 65.11
Total cash and cash equivalents [Refer note 6 (d)] 524.03 #22.59

Change in Liability arvising lrom Financing Activities

Particulars IE; I:;];nl Cash Flow ::}ur::i:f‘::;lﬁ: 3ist March 2024
Borrowing-Mon Current 631,05 (376.85) - 25420
Borrowing -Current ' I 41385 (544.28) - BGY.5Y

2,044.90 (921.13) - 1,123.77

Particulars etapch Cash Flow Farelgn Exchange J1st March 2023

2022 movemenis/others
Borrowing-Non Current G17.33 13.50 - 631.035
Dorrowing -Current 1,308,357 (94.72) 1.413.83
2,126.12 (81.22) - 2,044.90

Material accounting policies (refer note 2.1)

The financial statements for the currenl financial year have been prepared without considering lnancial stalements of
China Bird Centro Amercia, S.A, wholly owned subsidiary of the reporting entity. Previous year ligures (31st March
2023) have been restated without considering finnncial statement of China Bird Centro America, 5.4 (Refer Note 40),

The accompanying notes forms an integral pan of these consolidated financinl stalements,

The schedules referred Lo above and noles on accounts orm an Integral part of the consolidated cash Dow statement,

The nbove Cash flow simtement has been prepared under the Indirect method setout in Ind AS-7 'Statement of Cash Flow',
The above Cash flow statement has been prepared by excluding lnancials of China Bird Centro America for current and

previous finanical year
Cash fow lrom operating activities include Rs. 10.79 millions (3 1st March 2023 : Rs. 10,03 millions) being expenses
towards Carporale Social Responsibility,
(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Lava International Limited
Consolidated cash Mow statement Tor the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al comorants in Indian Rupees million, nnless ofherwise stared)

Particulars

For the year ended  For the year ended

X1 March 2024 31 March 2023
As per our report of even date as attached
For Raj Gupla and Company For and on behall of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountamts Lava International Limited
Firm's Registration Mo.; 000203N CIN: L2201 DL2009PLCT 88920

Shailendra Nath Hai
Whaole-Time Director

Membership Mo, 353645 (DMN-CEHIEA T

dli

Sunil Bhalla
Director
(DIN-00980040)

L

Chiel financial officer

UpIN® 24563 6uSRKePK 89876

Place: Noida Place: Moida
Date: Seplember 4, 2024 Date: September 4, 2024

-

At S dgennd

Whole-Time Director  Whole-Time Director
(I -09302068) {IHMN-07110183)

-’..-l"'

Vishal Schegal
Direclor
(DIN-03127049)

e

Ritesh Singh
Company Secrotary
(M. No.- A61459)




Lava International Limited
Mote to Consolidated Anancial Staternent for the vear ended 3 1% March 2024

SAN ampannes in Indian Bupees miflion wless otherwise stared)

I+

=

Corporile information

Lavn Internaticnal Limited {'Company® or ‘Holding Company®) is engaged in trading and manufacturing
of mabile phones, storage devices and other wireless felecommunication devices. The Company is a public
company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of Companies Act applicable in India. The
registered office of the Company is located in Karampura, Delhi and the principal place of business is Moida,
Uttar Pradesh. The Company has an in-house research and development center and manufacturing facilities in
Moida.

The consolidated (inancial statements for the year ended 315! March 2024 were approved and asuthorized for jssue
by the board of directors in their meeting held on 4™ September 2024

Statement of compliance, going concern assumptions, use of estimates and judgements, principle of
consolidation and Investment in associates and joint ventures

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Company, the trust, its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
*Group") and the Group's interest in joint veniures and associate have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Aceounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as
amended thersafier notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act") and other relevant
provisions of the Act.

These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, and all amounts have been rounded-ofT 1o the nearest
millions upto two places of decimal, unless stherwise indicated,

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in India. The consofidated financial stalements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis excepl for the following items:

+ Invesiments in equity instruments of other entities (at fair value through other comprehensive income)

Investment in mutual funds (at fair value through profil or loss)

Derivative financial instruments (at fair value through profil or loss)

Plan assets under defined benefit plans (at fair value through profit or loss)
Employee share based payments (at fair value through profit or loss)

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally aceepted accounting principles
requires management 1o make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application ol accounting
policies and the reported mmounts of assets, Habilities, income and expenses and the disclosure of contingent
liahilities on the date of the financial statements, Actual results could differ from those estimates, Estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Any revision to accounting estimates are recognized
praspectively in cunent and fulure perieds. Information abowt judgments made in applying accounting policies
thal have the most significant elfeels on the amounts recognized in the consolidated Pnaneial stalements is
included in the following noles:

Estimales

Uselul lives of depreciable/amaortizable assets — Management reviews ils estimate of the uselul lives of
depreciablefamortizable assets_al each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets
Uncertainties in these estimafes relate to technical and economic absolescence that may change the utility of
assels, Carrying amoun ./“' property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are disclased in Note 3 and
Nole 4 respectively, [/ -




Lava International Limited
Mate o Consolidated (inaneial Statement for the year ended 3 1% March 2024
AN amavans i didion Rupees miflion unless otherwise sigred)

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) — Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on a number of underlying
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary
increases. Variation in these assumptions may impact the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit
expenses. Carrying amount of defined benefit obligations are disclosed in Note 27,

Provisions for warranties — A provision is estimated for expected warranty in respect of products sold during
the year on the basis of a technical evaluation and past experience regarding failure trends of products and costs
of rectification or replacement, Carrying amount of provision is disclosed in Note 11,

Judgmenits

Contingent liabilities — At each balance sheet date hasis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal
aspects, the Group assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liahilities. Howewver,
the actual {utvre outcome may be different from this judgement.

Impairment of financial assets — At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed over
expected life, the management assesses the expected credit loss on outstanding Hnancial assets,

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators ol impairmen|
of asseéls requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in deterioration of
recoverable amount of the assets.

(d) Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financinl statements comprise the financial siastements of the Group and its interest in joint
venture and associate as at 31 March 2024, Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable retums from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those retumns through its
power aver the investee. The nature of the Group's information are set out in Note 37.

Specifically, the Group controls an investee i and only il the Group has;

o Power over the investee (i.e, existing rights that give it the current ability (o direct the relevant activities ol
the investoe)
»  Exposure, or rights, 1o variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

+  The ability to use its power over the investee to alfect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that o majority of voting rights resull in control, To support this presumption
and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facls and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an invesiee, including:

¢ The contractual arrangement with the other vole helders of the investee
Rights arising from other contractual armangemenls

The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights

The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the heldings of the
other voling rights holders

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the theee elements of control. Consolidation of o subsidiary begins when the group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities,
income and expenses ol a subsidiary scquired or disposed of during the vear arc included in the consolidated
financial statements from the date the company. gains control until the date the company ceases 1o control (he
subsidiary. T R
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Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other
events in similar circumstances, 1T a member of the group uses accounting policies other than those adopied in
the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate
adjustments are made to that group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial
stafements 1o ensure conformity with the group’s accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up lo same reporting
date as that ol the holding company, i.e., vear ended on 31 March, When the end of the reporting period of the
parent is different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation purposes, additional
financial information as ol the same date as the financial statements of the parent to enable the parent fo
cansolidate the financial information ol the subsidiary, unless it is impracticable to do so.

Consolidation procedure;

8. Combine like items of assets, liabilities, cquity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with
those of its subsidiaries, For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the
amounts of the assets and liabilitics recognized in the consolidated linancial statements al the
acyuisition date

b.  Offset {eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent's
portion of equity of cach subsidiary,

c.  Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and eash flows relating 1o
transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that
are recognized in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses
may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements, Ind AS
12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses
resulting from intragroup trnsactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of
the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling mterests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests

having a deficit balance,

A change in the ownership inlerest ol o subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction. Tf the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it;

Derecognises the assets (including poodwill} and liabilities of the subsidinry
Deerecopnises the carying amount of any non-controlling interests

L

s Derecopgnises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

s Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

= Recopnises the fair valuoe of any investment retained

#  Recognises any surplus or delicit in prolil or loss

»  Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognized in OC] to profit or loss or retained

earnings, as appropriate, as would be required il the Group had directly disposed ol the related assets
or liabilities

(e} Investment in associnios and joint ventures

An nssociate is an entily over which the Group has significant influence. Stanificant influence is the power 1o
participate in the financial und opermting policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joim contral over
those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joinl control of the arrangement
have rights 1o the net assets of the point venture, Joinl control is the contractually agreed sharing ol control of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions aboul the releyant activities require imanimous consent of

the parties sharing eontrol, =
The considerations made in determining whether Significant influenee or joint control are similar 1o those
! i "5

) {//Xf : '




Lava International Limited .
Note to Consoliduted Anancial Statement for the yvear ended 31 March 2024
LA amtenenis in lndtan Rupees million wiless otherwise stared)

necessary (o determine control over the subsidiaries,

The Group's investments in its associate and joint venture are accounted for using the equity method. Under the
equity method, the investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognized at cost, The camying
amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the group’s share of net assets of the associate or
Joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate or joint venture is included in the
carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment individually.

The statement of profit and loss reflects the Group™s share of the results of operations of the associate or joint
venture. Any change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the Group's OCI. In addition, when there
has been a change recognized directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its
share of any changes, when applicable, in the statement ol changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
sesulling {rom transactions between the Group and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of
the interest in the associate or joint venture.

T an entity™s share of losses of an associale or a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the associale or
Joint venture (which includes any long term interest that, in substance, form part of the Group™s net investment
in the associate or joint venture), the entity discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses
are recognized only (o the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behall of the associate or joint venture, [T the associate or joint venture subsequently reports profits, the entily
resumes recognising its share of those profits only afler its share of the profits equals the share of losses nol
recopnized,

The aggregale of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate and a joint venture i5 shown on the face of
the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

The financial statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as the Parent
Company. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the

COmpany,

After application of the equity method, the Company determines whether it is necessary to recognise an
impairment loss on its investment in its associate or joinl venture, At each reporting date, the Group determines

. whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the associate or joint venture is impaired. If there is
such evidenee, the Group caleulates the amount ol impairment as ihe difference between the recoverable amount
of the assoeiate or joint venture and its carrying value, and then recognises the loss as *Share of profit of an
assoviate and a joint venture” in the stalement of profit or loss,

Lpon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint ventare, the Group measures
and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the
associate or joint venture upon loss of significant mfMoence or joint control and the fir value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognized in profit or loss,

2.1 Material accounting policies information
{a) Current Vs Non-current classification
The Group presents nssets and habilities in the balanee sheel based on currentd non-current ¢lassification. An
assel is treated as corrent when il is:

v [xpected to be realised or intended to be sald or consumed in normal operating cyele

*  Held primarily for the purpose ol trading

*  Expected (o be realised within twelve months afler the reporting period, or

= Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to setile o lability Tor ol least
twelve months afler the reporting period

Current assets inclade the uurrun-l'an[:m Bl mon-current financial assets. All other assets are classified ns non- .
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A liability 15 current when;

* tis expected to be settled in nermal operating cycle

= i35 held primarily for the purpose of trading

» It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting perfod, or

»  There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months afler the
reporting period

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. The Group classifies all other
liabilities as nop-currenL,

Dieferred tax assels and habilities are elassilicd as non-curren| assets and liabilities,

Operating cyele

The operating eyele is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and
cash equivalents. The Group has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification
of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

th) Functional and Presentation Currency
The Financial Stalements have been presented in Indian Rupees (TNR), which is also the Company’s functional

currency, All Financial information presented in TNR has been rounded off to the nearest millions as per the
requirements of Schedule 11 of “the Act", unless atherwise stated.

(¢} Properly, plant and equipment
i Recopnition and measurement
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

if any. Cost directly attributable 10 acquisition are capitalized until the property, plant and equipment are ready
for use, as intended by the management.

il Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent costs are capilalised on the earrying amount or recognized as a separale asset, as appropriate, only
when [ulure economic benefits associated with the llem are probable to Mlow to the Group and cost of the item
can be measured reliably, All repair and maintenance are charged to stalement of profit and lToss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

The present value of the expected eost for the decommissioning of the asset aller its vse is included in the cost
of the respective asset il the recognition criteria for a provision are mel.

The gain or loss arising on the dispossl or retirement of an item of propery, plant and equipment 15 determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized i the
statenment ol profit and loss on the date of disposal or retirement.

Advances paid lowards the aequisition of property, plant and equipment oulstanding at each balance sheet date
is classified as capital advances under the non-eurrent nssets and the cost of fssets not put to use before such date
are disclosed under ' Capital work in progress’.

iit. Deprecintion

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on o straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of the assets as below: 2 Ln
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Assets Useful Lives As per Schedule 11
Office Equipment 3-5 Years 5 Years
Furniture and lxiures® 3-5 Years 10 Years
Demonstration Fixtures* 2 Yemrs 2 Years
Vehicles* 3 Years [0 Years
Computer ond Components® 3 Yoears 3 Years
Flant and Machinery*

Jigs I Year | Year

Other Plant and Machinery 5-15 Years 15,25 Years
Electrical Installations 10 Years 10 Years

*Based on technical evaluation, the management believes that the useful lives os given above best represent the
period over which the management expects to use these assets. Hence the useful lives for these assets are different
from useful lives as prescribed under Part C ol Schedule 11 of the Companies Aot 2013,

Leasehold Improvements are amortized over the lease term or 10 years whichever is less.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates
them separately based on their specific useful lives.

The Group reassess and review the carrying value of the assets at each reporting date. Incase carrying value s
higher than the recoverable amount or the benefits arising from the assets then carrying value s
impaired/depreciated to the extent of recoverable amount of benefit to be received in future,

The residual values, uselul lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed al
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if approjpriate.

(i) Intangible assets

i Recognition and initial messuremsent
- Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost, Following initial recognition,
intangible assels are carried al cost less accumulaled amortization and sceumulated impairment Josses, i any,

Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized md
expenditure is reflected in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred,

i, Subscquent expendifure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will How to the Group.

i, Amortization

The useful lives of intangible assels is nssessed as linite as stated below and the assets are amortised over their
useful lives and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that an intangible asset may be impaired.
In respect of Customer relationships and brand names are recorded o cost less acecumulated amortisation and are
amorlised on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives as Tollows

Assels Useful Lives
Computer software (over license period) [-3 Years
Brand 20 years
Long term customer coniact 20 years
Internally generated sollware _ T 3- SYears

Gioadwill arising on business combination is initfally m}a"&ur::l al cost, being the excess of the aggrepate of the
consideralion ransfered and the amount recogn forgon-contralling inlerests, and any previous interest eld,
over the Tair value of net identilable assets acquirgd and Habilities assumed. After nitial recognition, Goodwill
is tested For impaimment annvally gnd measured gl cost less any accumulated impaimment logses i any.
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The amortization period and the amorization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in
the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset
are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in
pccounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets s recognized in the statement of profit and
loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset,

Guains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible assel are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when
the assel is derecognized.

Research and development costs

Rescarch costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure incurred on an individual project Is
recopnized as an intangible asset when the Group can demonsirate all the following:

. The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale
= lis intention to complele the assel

. Its ability to use or sell the asset

. How the asset will generate future economic benefits

The availability of adequate resources to complete the development and (0 use or sell the asset
The ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during development,

Following the initinl recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the cost model is applied requiring
the assel to be carried al cost less any sccomulated amorization and accumulated impairment losses.
Amorlization of the asset begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortized
on & straight line basis over the period of expected future benelil [rom the related project, Le., the estimated
useful life of one to len years. Amortization is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. During the period
of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.

(¢} Leases

The Group adopled Ind A5 116 using the Modilied retrospective method of adoption, with the date ol initial

“application on 1 April 2019, The Group has recopnized a lease Hability on initial application (i.e. April 1, 2019)
al the present value of the remaining lease pavments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at
the date of initeal application and right-of-use asset at an amount egual 1o the lease liability, adjusted by the amount
of any prepaid or acorued lease payments relating io that lease recognized in the balance sheet immediately before
the date of intial application.

The Group, as 8 lessee, recognises a righl-of-use assel and a lease Hability for its leasing arangements, if the
eontract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset.

The contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, i it involves the use of an identified assel
and the Group hias substantially all of the economic benefits from use ol the asset and has right 1o direct the use
of the identified asset. The cost of the right-of-use assel shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement
of the lease, Liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date plus any initial
direct costs incurred. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measurcd al cost less any sceumulated depreciation,
accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement ol the lease liability. The right-of-use
assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or
useful life of right-of-use asset (Refer note 367,

The Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease pnvments thal are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the imerest rate implicit in the lease,
if that rate can be readily determined. I that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses ineremental
borrowing rate.

The Group also elected 1o gse the fecogaition exemptions for lease contracts thal, al the commencement dute,

ave a lease term of 12 months o dess and do nol contain o purchase option (shar-term leases), and lease contracts
{/

{ L
i
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for which the underlying asset is of low value (low-value assets),

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from Ind AS 17, Lessots will continue to classify
leases as either operating or finance leases using similar principles as in Ind AS 17, Therefore, Ind AS 116 does
nat have an impact for leases where the Group is the lessor.

(f) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. IT any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the assel’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and
its value in use, Recoverable amount 15 determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash

inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, When the carrying amount of
an assel exceads its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down Lo its recoverable

amaount,

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash Nows are discounted to their present value using a pre-lax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the assel.
In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used, These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budoets and forecast calculations. These budgets and
forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term prowth rate is
calculated and applied to project future cash flows afier the fifth year, To estimate cash flow projections beyond
periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Group extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget
using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any
case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country
or countries in which the entity operates, or lor the market in which the asset is used. Impairment Josses, including
impairment on inventories, are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

(g) Financial instruments

A linancial instrument is any contract that gives rise 1o a financial asset of ane entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity,

Financinl assetls

Recognition and initinl measurement

All Financial Assets are initially recognised at fair value, Transaction costs that are directly attributable 1o the
acquisition or issue of financial assets, which are not at fair value through profil or loss, are adjusted to the fair
value on initial recognilion.

Classification and subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, linancial assets are classified in four enlepories:

»  Financial assets sl amortised cosi

»  Financial assets at fair value through other comprehiensive income (FYTOCT)

«  [inancial pssets and equity instraments at {wir value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

s BEquity instruments measured st fair value through other comprehiensive income (FYTOCT)

2.




Lava loternationsl Limited
Mote o Consolidated financial Statement for 1he year ended 31Y March 2024
(Al ameenis in Tndian Rupees miflion wnless otherwise stated)

Financial assets al amortised cost

A Minancial assets” is measured al the amortised cost iTboth the Tollowing conditions are met:

a)  The asset i held within a business model whose objective is 1o hold assets for eollecting contractual cash
flows, and

B  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specilied dates (o cash Nows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPL) on the principal amount outstanding.

This categary is most applicable to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently
measured al amortised cost using the Effective Inlerest Rale (“EIR™) method. Amortised cost is caleulated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from
impairment are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. This category penerally applies to trade and other
receivables.

Financial assets at FYTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial assets, which does not meet the criteria for
calegorization as al amortized cost or as FVTOC, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a financial asset, which otherwise meels amortized cost or FVTOC]
criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is considered only if doing so reduces or eliminates o measurement
or recognition inconsistency (referred 1o as ‘accounting mismatch'),

Financial nssets included within the FVTPL category are measured al fair value with all changes recognized in
the statement of profit and loss. This category is applicable to investments in mutual funds.

Financial assets at FVTOCI
A ‘financial asset” is classified as at the FVTOCT if both of the following criteria are mel:

&) The objective af the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the

financial assets, and
b) The asset’s contractual eash flows represent SPPL

Financial asset included within the FYTOCI category are measured initially as well as al each reporting date al
fair value, Fair vilue movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCH). However, the Group
recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the stalement of
profit and loss. On derecopgnition of the assel, cumulative pain or loss previously recognized in OC] is
reclassilied from the equity to statement of profit and loss (P&L). Interest cared whilst holding FVTOC]
financial instrument is reported as interest income vsing the EIR method,

Equity Investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for
trading are classibied as at FVTEL. For all other equity instruments, the Group may make an irevocable election
to present in pther comprehensive income subsequent chamges in the fair value, The Group makes such election
on an instrument-by-instrument basis, The classification is made on initial recognition and is revoeable,

I the Grroup decides to classify an equity instrument as at FYTOC, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
exeluding dividends, are recognized in the OCL There is no reeyeling of the amounts from OCI to statement of
profil and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within

equity,
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Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at {air value, All changes in fair value
including dividend are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition

A financial asset is de-recognized only when
o The rights lo receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

s The Group has transferred its rights (o receive cash Nows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material defay to a third party under a *pass-through’ arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
nither transforred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, butl has transferred control
of the asset.

When the Group has ransfered its rights to receive cash Tows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recopnize the transterred asset W the extent of the Group's continuing
mvolvement. In that case, the Group also recognizes an associated lability, The transferred assel and (the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained,

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transforred assel is measured al the lower of
the original carrying amount ol the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could he
required to repay.

Im pairmeni of linuncial asseis

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected oredit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

#. Financial assels that are debt instruments, and are measured ut amortized cost e.g., loans, debt securities,
deposits, trade receivables and bank balance
b.  Lean commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. The
application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment lose allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initinl recognition.

Far recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initinl recognition. 1f credit risk has noi
increased significantly, 12-month expected credit loss (ECL) is used to provide for impairment loss. However,
if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credil quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer o significant increase in eredil risk since initial recognition,
then the entity reverts o recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-meonth ECL.,

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible defaull events over the expected life of
a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is o portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events
that are possible within 12 months afler the reporting date.

ECL isthe difference between all contractual cash Nows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract
and all the eash Mows that the entity expects o receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original E1R.

The Group uses a provision matrix o determine impainnent loss allowanee on porifolio of its rade receivabiles,
The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade
receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates, At every reporting date, the historical observed default
eafes wre updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed,

A ¢




Lava International Limited
MNote 1o Consolidated financial Statement for the year ended 31% March 2024
LAN amonnits in Indian Rupees millian unless otherwise steted)

ECL impairmenl toss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in
the statement of profit and loss. For the financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue
receivables, ECL is presented as an allowance, i.¢.. as an intepral part of the measurement of those assets in the
balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount, Until the asset meets write-ofF eriteria, the Group
does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amoumi,

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurcment

All financial liabilities are recognized initially ot fair valoe and, in the ¢ase of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s fimancial habilities include tade and other payables, loans and borrowings mcluding  bank
overdralls, fimancial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilitics at falr value through profii or loss

Financial lighilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at Tair value through profit or less. Financial liabilities are
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category
wlso includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by lnd AS 109,

Giains or Josses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the statement of profit and loss,

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such
at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as
FYTPL, fair value gains! losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCL These gains/
loss are nol subsequently transferved to statement of profit and loss. However, the Group may transfer the
eumulilive gain or lozs within equity, All other changes in fair value of such liability are reeopnized in the
stutement of profit and loss,

Loans and borrowings

Afier initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subseguently measured at amortised cost using
the EIR, Gnins and losses are recognized in statement of profit and loss when the linbilities are derccopnized as
well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amontised cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of profit and
s,

Financial gnarantes contracls

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracls that require a payment 1o be made w
reimburse the holder for o loss it ineurs because the specified debtor fails w make a payment when due in
pecordanee with the lerms of s debt instrument, Financial guaraniee contracts are recognized initislly as o lability
at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly sttributable to the issuance of the puarantee.
Subsequently, the liability 15 measured st the higher of the amouni of loss allowance determined as per
impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognized Jess cumulative amortisation,

De-recognition ﬁ
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A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liahility is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substamially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original Liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Reelassification of financial assels

The Group determines classificalion of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial
recognilion, no reclussification is made for financial assels which are equity instruments and linaneial liabilities.
For finmncial assets which are debt mstroments; a reclassification 15 made only ifthere is a change in the business
model for managing those assets. If the Group reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification
prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period
following the change in business model. The Group does not restate any previously recognized gains, losses
{including impairment gains or losses) or interest

Offsetting financial instroments

Financial asset and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reporied in the balance sheet where there
is a legally enforeeable right to offsel the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on o net basis or
realise the assel and settle the liability simultancously.

(i} Derivative financial instrument

The Group uses derivative financial instruments 1.e., forward and futures currency contracts to hedge its foreign
currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured al fair value. Derivalives are carried as
linancial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any
gains or losses arising from changes in the [air value of derivatives are taken directly 1o statement of prolit and
loss,

A0 Eair value Measurement
The Group measure its financial instruments such as derivative at lair value ai each balance shee date
Fair valug is the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or paid Lo translera liability in an orderly transaction

hetween market participants a1 the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the assel or transfer the Hability takes place either:

» Inthe principal market for the assel or liability, or
s Intheabsence of o principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or lHability

The prineipal or the most advaniageous markel must be accessible by the Group,

The fair value of an assel or a Hahility is measured vsing the assumplions that markel participants would nse
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best inlerest,

A fair value weaswement of & non=financial assed takes ito pecount v market participant’s ability (o gererate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
wotld use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure Fabr value, maximising the use of relevant observable inpuls and minimising the use ol

unobservable inputs,
C] . 7 - /“H
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All assets and linbilities for which Fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as o whole:

Level 1- Quoted (Unadjusied) marked prices in the active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2- Valuation technigues for which the Jowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3- Valuation technigues for which the lowest level inpul that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting periad.

Al each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilitics which are
required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Group’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the
management or its expert verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in
the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documenis.

(i) Inventories

Inventories are valued ar the lower of cost or net realisable value,

Cosls incurred in bringing each product 1o its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

= Raw materials and spares: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories

to their present location and condition, Cost is determined on weighted average basis,

»  Finished goods and work in progress; cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and o proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is
determined on weighted average basis.

= Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventorics 1o their
present location and condition. Cost is determined an first in Frsl out basis,

Net realizable value s the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale,

(k) Revenue recognition

Ind AS 115 —"Revenue from Contracts with Customers™ notified by MCA with effect from 158 April, 2018, vide
its notification dated 28 March, 2018 which supersedes Ind AS 18 — “Revenue” and refated Appendices.

Group account Tor revenue in accordance with Ind AS 115 "Revenue from Contraets with customers” using (he
medified retrospective method.

The Group has recognize revenue in accordance with Ind AS 115 by applying the fellowing 5 steps:
i ldentily the contracts with the customers,
i ldentify the separnte performance obligations,
i Determine the transaction price of the contract,
iv.  Allocate the transaction price to each of the separate performance abligations, and
v,  Recopnize the revenue as each performance obligation is satisfied,

) <
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Sale of Goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when the significant risk and rewards of ownership of the goods have
heen passed to the buyer which penerally coincides with delivery of goads, as per the contractual 1grms with
cuslomers, Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods
i the ordinary course of Group’s activitics. Revenue is shown net of GST, returns, sales incentives and discounts,

The group has concluded that the Group is principal in all of its revenue arrangements since the Group is the
primary obligor in all the revemie arangements as the Group has pricing latitude and is also exposed to inventory
and credit risks.

The Group accounts for volume discount for pricing incentives to customers as a reduction of revenue based on
estimate of applicable discount/incentives.

Sale of Services

Revenue from sales of services is from installation of third party mobile applications in the handset and is
recognized by reference to the stage of completion, net of GST. Stage of completion is measured by reference 1o
services performed Lo dale as a percentage of lolal services to be perlormed.

Interest

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or al fair value through other comprehensive income,
interest income is recorded using the EIR. EIR is the rate that exactly discounis the estimated future cash payments
or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where sppropriate, to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liabilite, When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Group estimates the expected cash Oows by considering all the contractual terms of the
finaneial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Dividend Income
Dividend Income is recognized when the Group’s right to receive the amount has been established.

; Ineentive Income
Ciroup has recognized incentive income in Torm of Merchant export incentive income (MEIS), Duty drawback
income based on export made.

Disaggregation of Revenue
See Mote 28 (Segment Reporting) to Consolidated Financial Statements for our disaggregated revenues.

Trade Receivables
A receivable represents the Ciroup’s right to an amount of consideration that is uncondilional,

{1y Forelgn currcncies
{i) Funetional and presentation eurmency

lems ineluded in the linancial statements of the Group are mepsured using the respective eurrency of the primary
economic environment in which in which the entity in Group oparates ie the “functional eurrency”. These
financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is also the functional currency of the parent. For each
enfity the Group determines the functional currency and itlems included in the financial statements of each entity

are measured using that functional currency,

(il Transactions and bolances

Transuctions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group's entilics al their respective functional
currency spol rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the

group uses an average mle i the average approximited the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets nd liahilities denpminated i}'ﬁ;fnmifg,n cirrencies are translaled ab the lunetionnl currency spc}ﬂ ¥ /
rates ol exchange o the reporting dote, ,_,4 ¥, f
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Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in profit or loss with
the exception of the following;

* Exchange differences arising on moenetary items that forms part of a reporting entity’s net investment in a
foreign operation are recognized in profit or loss in the separale financial statements of the reporting entity or
the individual financial statements of the foreign operation, as appropriate. In the financial statements that
include the foreign operation and the reporting entity (e.g., consolidated financiul statements when the foreign
operation is a subsidiary), such exchange differences are recognized initially in OCI, These exchange
differences are reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal of the net investment,

* Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded in
OCL

Non-menetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial ransactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates af the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss
arising on translation of non-monetary items measared at fair value s treated in line with the recopnition of the
gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or
loss is recognized in OC1 or profit or loss are also recognized in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into INR at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the reporting date and their statements of profit or loss are translated al yearly average exchange
rates. For practical reasons, the group uses an average rate to translate income and expense items, if the average
rate approximates the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. The exchange differences arising on
translation for consolidation are recognized in OCI, On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of OC]
relating to that particular foreign operation is recopnized m profit or loss.

{m) Income taxes
Current income tax

‘Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured al the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or

substantively enacted, at the reporting date in India.

Current tax assels and current tax liabilities are offsel only if there is a legally enforceable right o set off the
recognized amounts, and it is intended 10 realize the asset and settle the Liability on 8 net basis or simullaneously.

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside statement of profit and loss is recognized either in other
comprehensive income or in equity. Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction
cither in OCH or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with
respect (o situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriale.

Deferred income tax

Deferred mcome tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their camying amounts in the financial statements as al reporting date,
Dieferred tax is measured based on the tix rates and the tax laws enacled or substantively enacted at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax liahilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

* When the deferred tax liability arises from theinitial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business mmhinn'?,ln and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting

profit nor taxable profit or loss A

= n respect of taxable temporary r‘|ff'i'l‘rw||‘[‘.“-'£'R¢d‘l:‘in1rﬂ with mvestments i spubsidmries pssocinios apd i|11L*1'L~:t:r-;/
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in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable fulure

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credis
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses can be utilised,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available 1o allow all or part of the deferred tax assel to
be utilised. Unrecopnized deferred tax assels are re-assessed ol each reporting date and are recognized 1o the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the delierred tax asset to be recovered,

Deferved tax relating to itewis recognized outside statement of profit and loss is recognized either in other
comprehensive income or in equily. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation o the underlying transaction
either in OC or dircctly in equity.

Deferred tnx assets and deferred tax liabilities ave offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set-of T current tax
assels against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority,

{n} Employee benefits

The Group’s employee benefits mainly include wages, salaries, bonuses, defined contribution plans, defined
benefits plans, compensated absences, deferred compensation and share-based payments. The employee benefils
are recognived in the year in which the associated services are rendered by the Group employees. Shori-term
employee benefits are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss at undiscounted amounts during the period in
which the related services are rendered,

Defined Contribution plans

The contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized in profit or loss as and when the services are
rendered by employees. The Group has no further obligations under these plans beyond its periodic contributions.

Defined benefits plans

In accordance with the local laws and repulations, all the employecs in India are entitled for the Gratuity plan.
The said plan requires a lump-sum payment to eligible employees (meeting the required vesting service
condition) at retirement or termination of employment, based on a pre-defined formula

The Group provides for the liability towards the said plans on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out as at the
reporting date, by an independent qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method,

The obligation towards the said benefits is recognised in the consolidated financial statement, at the present value
of the defined benefits obligations. The present value of the said obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated fulure cash outllows, using interest miles of povernment bonds,

The interest expenses are calculated by applying the above mentioned diseount rate to defined benefits
obligations. The interest expenses on the defined benelits obligations are recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss. However, the related re-measurements of the deflined benefits obligations are recognized directly in the
other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. The said re-measurements comprise of actuarial
gains and losses (arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions), Re- measurements
are not re-classified to the Statement of Profit and Loss in any of the subsequent periods,

Orther short-term employee benefiis

carried oul us at the reporting date, by an indepéndent |'.'|1Iilllh1..d actuaey usinge the projected-unil-credii method
The related re-measaraments are recopnized in the Stateiment of Profit and Loss in the period i which they arise

The Giroup provides for the liability lowards 1I1f menstiluj absences benefits on the basis of actuarial ‘-’JEII-'tI“W 3
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Share based payments

Employees (including senior executives) of the Group may also receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payments, whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments {(equity-settled
transactions).

Equity-settled transactions

The cost of equity-settled ransactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using
Biack Scholes Option Pricing Model,

That cost is recognised, together with o corresponding increase in share-based paymen! reserves in equily, over
the peried in which the service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense, The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the westing period has expired and the Company's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The statement of profit and loss expense or eredit for a period represents the movement in
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognised in employee benefils

expense,

Service conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the
likeliheod of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Company s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest.

Mo expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because service conditions have not been met,

Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the
award is expensed immediately through profit or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluled
earnings per share,

o) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
Provisions

Gieneral

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a resuli of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic henefits will be required Lo seftle the
obligation and a relinble estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating 1o a provision
is presented in the stalement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounied using a current pre-tax rate thal
reflécts, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability, When discounting is used, the incréase in the provision
due 1o the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost,

Warraniy provisions
Provisions for warranty-related costs are recognized when the produet is sold or service provided to the customer,

Initial recognition is based on historical experience. The initial estimate of warranty-related costs is revised
annuially.

Decommissioning Hability

The Giroup records a provision for decommissioning costs of 4 leased facility, Decommissioning costs are provided

al the present value of expected costs to seitle the obligation using estimated eash Pows and are recognized as part

of the cost of the particular asset. The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks

specific to the decommissioning linhility. The unwinding ol the discount is expensed as incurred and recognized

in the statement of profit and loss as o lnanee cost, The gstimated future coste of decommissioning are reviewed
3 .
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annually and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in the estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are
added o or deducted from the cost ol the asset,

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by
the occurrence of non-oceurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the eontrol of the Group or a
present obligation (hat s not recognized beécause it is not probable that an outllow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a lability that cannot
be recopnized because it camnot be measured reliably. The Group does nol recopnize a contingent liability but
diseloges s existence in the consolidated financizl statements.

ip) Earnings per share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the
Holding Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year,

Diluted EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the profit or loss attributable 1o equity holders of the Holding
Company (after adjusting the corresponding income/charge for dilutive potential equity shares) by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year, plus the weighted average number of equity shares
that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares,

() Operating Segment

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker (CODM). Only those business uctivities arc identified as operating segment for which the
operating results are regularly reviewed by the CODM to make decisions aboul resource allocation and

performance measurement,

The Group prepares ils segment information in conformity with the sccounting policies adopled for preparing
and presenting the financial statements of the Group as & whole,

(v} Borrowing cosis

Borrowing costs to the extent directly attributable to the acquisition/construction of assets that necessarily take
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised along with the respective property,
plant and equipment up to the date such asset is ready for use. Other borrowing costs are charged to the statement

of profit and loss,
(s} Cash and eash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet and for the purpose of statement of cash flows comprise cash ul
banks and on hand and shert-lerm depesits with an original maturily of three months or less, which are subject Lo
an insignificant risk of changes in value. These do not include bank balances earmarked/restricted for specific

purIcses,
() Exceptional lHems

Exeeptional items are transactions which due to their size or incidence are separately disclosed to enable a full
understanding of the Group’s financial performance. ltems which may be considered exceptional are significant

restruciuring charges, gains or losses on disposal of investments of subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures and
impairment losses/write down in the value of investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures and

significant disposal of fixed assets.
= Fa
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(u) Measuremeni of Earnings before Interest jtax, depreciation and amoriization (EBITDA)

Ind AS compliant Schedule 111 allows line items, sub-ling items and sub-totals to be presented as an addition or
substitution on the face of the linancial statements when such presentation is relevant to an understanding of the
Group's financial position /performance,

Accordingly, the Group has elected to present eamings before net finance cost, tax, depreciation and amortization
(EBITDA) as a separale ling ilem on the face of the statement of profit and loss. The Group measures EBITDA on
the hasis of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations, In its measurement, the Group does not include depreciation
and amortization expense, interest income, finance costs, and tax expense.

{v) Business Combination

Business Combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting. The cost of an acquisition
is measured at the fair value of the assets transferred, equily instruments issued and liabilities assumed at their
acquisition date i.e. the date on which control is acquired, Contingent consideration to be transferred is recognized
al fair value and included as parl of cost of acquisition. Transaction related costs are expensed in the period in
which the costs are incurred, For each business combination, the Group elects whelher to measure the non-
controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net

assels,
{w) Treasury Shares

The group has created a Lava Welfare Trust (“the trust™) for providing share-based payment to its emplovees. The
group uses the (rust as a vehicle for distributing shares to employees under the employee remuneration schemes.
The trust buys Company’s shares from the employees of the Company as per he employee remuneration schemes.
The group treats the trust as its extension and shares held by the trust are treated as treasury shares.

Crwn equity instruments that are reacquired (treasury shares) are recognized al cosl and dedueted from total equily.
No gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group's own equity
instruments, Any difference between the carmying amount and the consideration, if reissued, is recognized in
general reserve, Share options exercised during the reporting period are settled with treasury shares.

(x) Recent Aceounting Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Alfoirs ('MCA") notilics new standard or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time, For the year ended 31 March 2024,
MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments 1o the existing standards applicable 1o the Company.

7. ¥\
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3 Property, plant and ¢quipment

Particulars Plant and Furniture and Office Compufers Vehicles Demonstration  Leasehold Land Electrical Total Capital work-
machinery fixtures cquipment fixtores improvements installations In-progress*
Gross Block
At Ist April 2022 911.26 37.83 §1.30 164.23 17.45 239377 39660 304 .80 4,033.27 S68.69
Addirions/ Adjustment 135,78 - 2483 .08 104G - 113 - .06 173.93 10,51
Disposals’ Written off 511 0.29 076 7.49 - - - 3004 - 43,69 409.63
Exchanpe difference - 0.12 231 1.65 - 183.63 1.8 - - 158,79 22.12
At 31-March 2023 1,041.93 A7.66 85.67 189.49 20.51 287740 398,80 - .86 435233 191.99
Additions/ Adjustment 69,12 - 3.20 13.18 £.53 - - - - 92.03 .70
Disposals/ Written off 1.05 1.58 17.64 15,84 - 247713 14.72 - - 2,520,094 -
Exchange differcnce - 1.51 .74 .11 - 2368 .16 - - 26.19 -
At 31-March 2024 1,110.00 35.59 71.97 18693 27.04 i23.95 384.23 . 0.6 1,940.59 101,69
Accomulated Depreciation
At Ist April 2022 430,52 31z 7759 145.17 12,79 1,395.13 32074 - 0.29 242435 -
Charge for the vear/
adjustment 137.85 (.64 132 1450 |65 1,0585.05 29,50 - 0,08 1.241.59 -
Disposals’ Writlen off * . - - - - - . - - =
Exchange difference {3.10) (0.12) 1.53 [4.11) - 124.22 1.08 - - 117.50 -
At 31-March 2023 563.27 37.64 81.44 155,50 14.44 157740 35332 - 0.37 3,783.44 -
Charge for the year/
adjustment 142.07 0.02 1.61 20.23 224 - 1805 - 009 185.28 -
Disposals’ Written of T 510 1.78 17.00 19.06 - 247713 13,52 . - 2.513.60 -
Exchange difference 405 {0.29) (.83 213 - 13,68 0,16 - i0.05) 30.53 -
At 31-March 2024 704.29 3559 66.91 158.54 16.68 123.96 358,938 - 0.41 1 465.66 -
Net Block
At 31-March 2024 405,72 (0040 5.06 18.09 10.26 (0.00) 2515 - .44 474.93 201.6%
At 31-March 2023 478.67 0,02 4.23 3303 6.07 (0.00) 45.49 - 0.48 568.59 191.99

* Capital work-in-progress includes Plant and machinery, shops in shop
Note : Certain property, plant and equipment are hypothecated as collateral against borrowings, the details of which hiive been describad in niote 100,

.1..
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Ageing of Capital work-in-progress; -

Amount in Capital worlk-in-progress for a_period of

Projects which have exceeded their original timeline
Projeets which have exceeded their original budgel

Particulars Lessthan | | 1-2vears | 2-3years |[More than 3] Tolal
year years
As at M March 2024
Profects in progress 0,70 10,81 181.1% 2011.69
Projects lemporarily suspended - - - - -
Capital work-in-progress 9.70 10.81 181.18 - 201.69
Amount
Projects which have exceeded their original timeline 191,99
Projects which have exeeeded thelr origing] budget -
Amount in Capital work-in-progress for n period of
Particulars Loess than 1) 1-2 yvears | 2-3 yvears [More than 3| Total
year years
Az at 31 March 2023
Projects in progress 10.41 18118 - - [191.99
Projects temporarily suspended - . - - =
Cupital work-in-progress 10.81 181.18 - - 191.99
Amount
15118

{Thix sprace has been intentionally fefl blank)
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(A ety (o Bidion Rigpoes million, anless offerwise statid)

4 lotnngible assels

Computer Internully Lang Term Brand Licenses Total Goodwill
Particulars Softwaresand  genernted Customer & paienis
Licenses software Contracts

Gross Block
As at Ist April 2022 46160 129.52 - - - 59143 -
Additions/Adjustment 9.59 - - - - 0.54 -
Disposals/ Write off - - - - - - -
Exchange differcnoe - - B - - - .
As at 31 March 2023 471,13 125.82 - - - G096 -
Aulditions!Adjustment 13 - - - - 13 -
Disposals’ Write ofT 246,50 - . - 246,50 .
Fxchunge difference B4 - - - . 840 -
Asg at 31 March 2024 23316 129.82 - E - 162.98 =
Acenmulated Amortization
Ag ol 1st April 2022 445.27 121,29 - - - S566.50 -
Charge for the vear/adjustment 10.04 2,59 3 - - 12,64 -
[Haposals’ Wrile off = - - - B - -
Exchange differsnce - 0.01 - - - 0.01 -
As al 3 March 2023 455.30 123.90 - - - 570.19 -
Charge for the vear/adjustment 1.55 259 - - - 10.14

Disposuls! Weite oftf 245.25 - - - - 245.25

Ixchange difference R.AD 0.01 - - - B4l

As at 31 March 2024 226.00 126.51 - - - 352,49 -
Mel Block
A at 31 March 2024 7.17 331 - - - 10.51 -
Agat 31 March 2023 15.83 5902 - - - 21.77 =

5 _Right of nse asset

Particulars Office building If“']:’:::: "‘"rﬂ:';f;:‘:“ Vehicle  Total

Gross Block

As at Ist April 2022 62.81 159.15 109 - 224.65

Additions - - 19.08 -

Deletion - - - - -

As it 31 Murch 2023 2.8l 159.18 .69 19.08 141.73

Additions - . - - -

cletion - . - - -

As at 31 Mareh 2024 62.81 159.15 .69 19.08 243.73

Accumuluted Depreciation

Agat Ist April 2022 17.87 65.46 1.18 - 94.51

Additions .30 21.82 0.40 (.81 3233

Dreletion - - - - 3|

Az at 31 March 2023 3.7 87.28 158 .81 126.84

Additions 929 21.82 0.39 3.35 3475

Dicletion - - - - -

Asal 31 March 2024 4646 109.10 1.97 4.06 161.59

Net Block

As at 3 March 2024 16.34 S0.05 0.72 15.02 H2.14

As af 31 March 2023 25.64 71.87 L11 18.27 116.89
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[ Financial assets
6{a) Invesimenis (non-current) (Unguoted) Az at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Nu of Units Amuoopnt  No of Units  Amount
Investments in equity instruments of other entities
(at fair value through other comprehensive income)
63,830 Equaty Share (31 March 2023: 63,830) of 0,001 SGI cach £3.830 810 _

furlly paid up of Abhriya Ple, 1id?

SUH0 (31 March 2023: S(0)Equity Share of 10000 CHY cach fully

paid up ol Inone Technitogy Shenzen Co, Limited{Formerly S001.00 57.66 S00.00 64,80
known as Xalo Technology ( Shenzen) Limited).

JOLO00 (31 March 2023; 20,000} Fquity shares of Rs. 10 each fully

paid up of S Venketeswarn Mobile & Electronics Manulacluring 20,000 .20 20,000 (.20
Hub Privame Limited

57.86 65,00
Aperegate amount ol unguoted invesiment 57.86 6:5.00

*As at 31st March 2024, the Holding Company has Fair valued the investmint at Mil (31 March 2023 - Nil) amount as there it no
fusture economic benetii expected from the Investment,

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 Marech 2023
Mo of Units Amount  No of Units  Amount

& (a} {i) lnvestments (non-current) (Unguoted)

Tnvestments in equity instruments of subsidiarics (a1 cost)

Lquity Shave of 1000 USD cach fully paid up of China Bird 15,000 3.716.14 15,000 3,716.14
Centroamerica, S.A.

G (k) Investments (current)
Asat 31 Mareh 2024 Asat 51 March 2023
Nu of uniis Amonni Mo of uniis Amount
Investment in Muiva! funds {Quatediiod fuir value through
prafit or loss)
LIC MF Overnight Fund-Regular Plan Crowih - - 17,387 2011
Union Comporate Bond Fund Regular Plan - Growih 299 975 3.06G 390,960 5.04
06 15.15
Investment in Mutual funds {Ungquoted){at fair value through
jprrofit or loss)
Cuanarn Robeco MF - Regular Plon Graowth - - 144,798 A58
= 3.58
306 28.73
Appregate umeunt of gquoted investment 306 15.15
Murkel value of quoted nvestments 306 25.15
Agpregate amount of unguoted investment ; b 2 =S 3.58
Mlarket value of unguated invesiments f [/ g - 2 358
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Motes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(AN amonmy in Indian Rupees milfion, anlesy othenvise staied)

6 () Trade receivables

As at 31

Asat 31

Muarch 2024 March 2023

Unsecured
- Considered good 14,933.32 15,241.58
- Considered doubtful 36.77 31.99
14.970,09  15,273.57
Less
- Provision for doubtful debts {36.77) (31,59
- Allewance for credit loss (ECL) (11,007.75) (B,677.8E)
3,925.57 6,563.70
Ageing of trade receivables: -
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Mot Due| Less than | 6 months to | 1-2 years | 2-3 years |Maore than 3|  Total
& months 1 yenr YEeArs
Asat 31 March 2024
Undisputed trade receivables- 2804 ET2.18 L5343 | 540504 | 1.221.91 6.252.02 14,933.32
Undisputed trade recefvables - -
Disputed trade receivables - -
Disputed trade receivables - credit - 0.27 141 6.74 1.9 26,46 3677
impaired
Total trade receivables 28.64 §72.45 1,154.54 | 5,411.88 | 1,223.80 627848 | 14,970,009
Less: Provision for doubtful debts - - - - - - (36,77)
Less: Allowanee for credit loss - - - - - - {11,007.75)
Met trade receivables - - - - - - 392557
Ageing of trade receivables: -
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Not Due| Less than | 6 months to | 1-2 years | 2-3 years |More than 3 Taotal
G muonths 1 year Years
As at 31 March 2023
Undisputed trade receivables- I01.18 5,844.40 [ B16.37 | 122268 | 1,720.82 4,536,13 1524158
Undisputed trade receivables - - - x £} . - -
Disputed trade receivables - - - = - - - =
Disputed trade receivables - credit - 011 0.7 1.19 4.44 26.08 31.99
impaired
Total trade receivables 10018 5.844.51 1,816.54 | 1,223.87 | 1,725.26 4,562.21 15,273.57
Less: Provision for doobtful debts - - - - - - (31.99)
Less: Allowance for credit loss - - - - - - {#,677.88)
5 = - - - - 6,563.70

Net trade receivables

For terms and conditions relating to trade receivables (refer note 26)
To comply with the reguirement of Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments, the Company has created total ECL of Rs. 11,007.75
million (31 March 2023: Rs. 8,677.88 million). As it was impracticable to ascertain the ECL for each of respective earlier
linancial yeor, therefore, Rs. 232087 million in complionce with the requirements of para 44 of Ind AS 8 - Accounting
Pulicies, Chonges in Accounting Estimates and Errors, has been adjusted to the retained eamings in the current financial year.
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(AN s o nclian Rupees milfion, unless otherwise stated)

6 (i) Cash and eash ecquivalents

6 (e) Other bank halances

6(f)

6 (g) Other financial assets (eurrent)

As at 31 Asat 31
Mareh 2024 March 2023

Cash an hand 2.33 5.04

Balances with hanks:

Oin eurrent accounts 213.57 65.11

Deposits with original maturity of less than ihree months # {Refer foatnole o note 6{ 1) 30813 751.54
524.03 422.59

ft Shart-term deposits are made Tor varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Holding Company, and carn interest al the respective shor-term deposil rtes,

As at 3 As at 31
March 2024 March 2023

Dieposits with remaining maturity for more than three months but less than twelve 843.00 014,05
manths, #{ Refer footnote to note G6(1)

843.09 914.95

Asat 3l Asat 31
March 2024 March 2023

Oihier financial assets (Non-Current)

Securily deposits

- Considered good 35.63 33.16

= Congidered doubtful 4.92 4.92

410,55 3807

Leas: Provision for doubtful deposits (4.92) {4.92)
35.63 3316

Unsecured constdered good unless otherwise stated

Others receivables 1933 1933

Bank deposits with remaining maturity of more than twelve manths # 0.04 6536

Interest acerued on bank deposits 0.02 641
55.02 124.26

# Includes margin money deposits under lien (refer note 6 (d) 6 (c) and 6 ()):-

"~ against letter of credit Facility, bank guarantees and other margin TIET] 1,317.28

- against amount paid under protest {excluding interest accrued) (refer note 30 (B) (e)i)) 300,00 300.00

As ot 31 As at 31
March 2024 March 2023

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated

Security deposits (A) 8.01 17,48
Interest accrued on bank deposits () 149,54 1 74.85
Derivative assel (C) 0,54 -
Others recelvables
- Considered good : 16.32 17.35
- Considered doubiful® 3 522.06 2.841.90
M 53838 2,859.25
Less: Allowance for credit loss (ECL) " | 522,06} (2.841.90)
my / r ST 1632 17.35
Total (A + B+ C+ D) ' " 174.83 209.6%

/
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MNotes to consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024
(AN amonits in fidiar Rupees milfion. unfess otherwise staivd)

*T'o comply with the requirement of Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments, the company has created ECL of Rs. 322,006 million
(31 March 2023 2,84 1.90 million), As it was impracticable 1o ascertain the ECL for each of respective earlier financial year,
therefore, Bs, 522.06 million in compliance with the requirements of para 44 of Ind AS § - Accounting Policies, Changes in

Accounting Estimates and Errors, has been adjusted o the retained eamings,

7 Inventories
(¥alued at lower of cost or nel realisable value)

Raw materials and components (refer note 1 & 2 below)
Finished goods (refer note 2 below)

Traded poods (refer note 2 below)

Spares (refer note 2 below)

Mote 1 including stock in transit
- law materials and components

Mote 2 The above Inventory is net of -

a) Write down of inventory from cost 1o net realisable value
Finished gonds
Traded poods
Spares

b} Write down of inventory for Obsolescence
Finished goods
Traded goods
Spares
Raw materials, components and semi-finished goods

8 (a) Oiher non-corrent nssets
Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise sinted

Capital advances
Propaid expenses

8 (b) Other current assets

Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated

Prepaid expenses

Balance with statutory/ government authorities (Refer nole 30 (B) & 34)
Advances to vendors

- Considered good

= Advances to related partics, considered good (refer note 29)

= Considered doubtiil

Less: Pravision for doabtful advances

|
Cithersy [ ol
Total (A+ B+ C+D) / | .

m

(A)
(1)

(€)

Agat 31 As at 31
March 2024 March 2023

2.664.17 2,843,409

§69.50 1,242.80
118 1.808.07
30464 308.02

3.841.49 6,202.38

48.30 299,74
30.89 25.68
.01 0.02
.84 4.13
17.92 13.659
.02 7.1
57.12 13243
0.66 2,04

Asal 31 Asat 31
Murch 2024 March 2023

32.00 3211
0.21 176.01
3221 208.12

As at 31 As at 31
March 2024 March 2023

350.98 392,74
550,97 613.69
1L387.01 1,137.72
283.43 .21
9.76 0.76
1,680.20 1,147.69
(9.76}) [.76)

1.670.44 1,137.93

36588 222,44

2,938.27 2,5616.80
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9 Eguity Shore capital and Instroments entirely equity in natore

Asar 3l Asat 31
March 2024 March 2023

Authorised share eapital

TR2000.000 oquity shares of K« 5 each 3191000 391000
(31 March 2023 ; TR2,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 5 each)
100,000 (31 March 2023 ;0 100,000) Compulsory Convertible Preference Shores 1.4M3 1,00
(CCPS) o Rs 10 each
SOO000 (31 March 2023 500,000) Compulsary Converlible Preference Shores S(HW S(h.00
(CCPS) of Ry 10 each =
396100 3,961.00
Tssupedd, sulweribed and Tully paid-up share capital
541,126.216 cquity'shares of B=.-5 cach 2,705.63 2,705.63
(31 Maorch 2023 : 541,126,216 equity shores of B 5 each)
HRLGOO (31 March 2023 10000600 Compulsory Convertible Prefercnce Sharcs 1.00 1.00
(CCPS) af Rs 10 each
324,072 (3] March 2023 : 324,172 Compulsory Convertible Preferenoe Shores 3242 3242
(CCPS) of Ka 100 ench
Total issucd, subseribed nnd fully paid-up share capital 2,739.05 2,73%.05
tn)  Reconcilintion of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
(i) Eguity shnres
Amount No af Shurey
Asat 3l Asardl Azt 31 Az at 31
Muarch 2024  March 2023 Munrch 2024 Mnreh 2023
At the bepinning af the vear 2.705.63 270563 541,126216 541,126,216
Fasued during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,705.63 2,70563 541,026,216 541,126,216
(i) Instruments entirely equity in nature -Compulsory Convertible reference Shares (CCTS)
Amouni Mo of Shares
Asat 31 As at 31 Asar 31 As ot 31
Murch 2024 Muareh 2023 Muarch 2024 Muareh 2023
At the beginning of the year 3142 3,42 424,172 424,172
Converted to equity and other equity - - - g
Outstanding at the end of the year 33.42 3342 424,172 424,172

() Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Holding Compony has only one ¢lass of equity shares having o par volue of Rg, 5 per share (31 March 2023: Rg, 5 per chare).
Each holder of equily shares is entithed o one vole per share and dividends in proportion (o their shareholding, In the event of
liguidation of the Holding Company, the holders of equity shares will be entithed to receive residoal nsscts of the Holding Company
alter distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
sharaholders,

Terms/ rights attached to Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS)

i. During financial year 2007=18, the Holding Company has issoed 300,000 Compulsory Converlible Preference Shares (CCPS) of
s 100 cach. The preference shares shall collectively be entitled to dividend of (LK% of the aggregate face villiee of the preference
shires, As per the tlerms of Subseription and Shareholders Agreement, the preference shares may be converted, al any time at the
diseretion of the COPS holder, into fixed number of equity shaces, further 10 any of the preferonce shures have not been converted inlo
equity shares within 19 years and 11 months, remaining preferenee shares shall be sutomatically and compulsorily converted J(1'|1‘|:|C|'- -.
equily shares upon the expiry of such period. 11 "o
Pursmant to approval of bowrd of direetors of the Hling Company in the meeting held on 9th Aug, 2021, 175,828 CCPS were
converied nto 1528 434 Equity Shares of Rs. [ esch at the premiom of K, L5 per Share, f'-'l. !
Al 7
d %
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ii.

(]

Dring finonctal yenr 200 7-18, the Holding Company had issued 100,000 CCPS of Bs 00 eoch Tor o consideration of Ry, 520,00
millign. The CCPS shall corry a coupon of 0.0001% and shall be non-cumulativee in niture, whith 1% t0 be dechired at the diseretion of
the sharcholder of the Group, Thi preference shares may be converted into the equily shares of any lime o the discretion of' the CCPS
hwlder, subject to the terms of the agreement. IF, any of the preforence shares have niot been converted o equity shares within 10 yeary
from the allotment date, then such remaining preference shares shall be compulsorily converted into equity shares upon the explry of
sueh period,

In response of the exereise the aplion avidlable, the Hoelding Company has to issue 53,608,832 cquity shares against 100,000 COPS,

Number of honas shares bsued during the period of five vears immedintely preceding the reporting dote:

Mo of Shares
Particulary Anui 31 Ax ai 31 Asai 31 Asat 31 Asal 11
March 2024 March 2023 March 2022 March 2021 Mareh 2020
Buity shares allotted during the vear as fully B i 256618862 - ]

poid bonws shares

Pietaily of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the Holding Company:
Eguity Shares of Rs. S each fully paid ({31 March 2023 1 Hs 5 each fully paid)

No of Shares Percentnge sharcholding
As at March Asioat 31 As nl March Asutdl
2024 Muarch 2023 2024  Muarch 2023

Axis Capital Limited® 145,020,160 — 26,809 -
Hurd Cim Rai B2.650,240 140,658,304 15.279% 25,009,
Sunil Bhalla 62,123,163 98,378,203 11.48% 18, 18%
Vishal Sehual 36,989,083 73,244,123 i B4%% 13.54%
¥ash Investments G 6593, 140 60,603, 140 11.22% 11.22%
Shailendr Wath Rai 26,412,782 40,914,798 4. KR T.56%
shibam Sehpal 29,042,880 29,042,880 53T 537%

*Ihe sharcholding disclosed in this foancial statement as on 31.03.2024 s based on information recebved from the Reglstrar and
Transfor agent. Sojo Infotel Privale Limnited hog issued NCDs in March 2021 gnd Axis Caphtal Limited was underwriter for issuance of
such NCD. The company and Sojo lnfote] Private Limited rre having common promoters mumely Mr, Tard Om Ral, My, Sunil Bhalla,
M. Vishal Seligal, Mr, Shailendra Math Rai, The promoters of the company have informed the Management that part of their equity
shiwres of the Company have been pledpged for issuanee of NCDs, These pledged shares of the Company were held as on 31.03.2024
in the name of’ Axis capital limited & per the terms and conditions of issuance of NCDs and other relnted documents. The promolers
are in discussion with the Axis Copitnl Limited to reinstate erstwhile beneficiary position by seltlement of their lability toweds WCDs,

Instruments entirely equity in nature -Compulsery Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS)

Mo of Shares Percentage sharcholding

S oR SRIATEH OReTE Asat3l As at 31 Ax it 31 As at 31

March 2024  March 2023 Mareh 2024 March 2023
UNIC Memory Technology (Hong Kong) Limited 324,172 24,172 101 106%%
Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) of Re, 100/-
each
Bennett Coleman and Compary Limiled RV 100, Oy | D 100%
Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (COPS) of Rs, 104~
ench

éﬂf
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(AN enmoanits B fndhian Ripees million, wnless otherwise stated)

(e} Sharcholding of promoters

Equity Share held by promoters as of 31st March 2024

we o
Promotors Mame Mo of Shares e uf tntal % Change
shares during the year
Hari Om R A2 650 244 15.27% -1,7 2%
Sunil Bhalla 62,123,163 11.48% 6. 70"
Vishal Sehpnl 36,980,083 f, 8% -0, 70%
Shatlendra Math Kai 26,412,782 4885 -3 68%
Tatul 208,175,268 JHATY
Equity Share held by promoters as of J1st Mareh 2023
Promuotors Name Mo of Shares % af toral Yo Change
shares during the vear
Hari Om Bai 140,658,304 25.00% -7.33%
Sunil Bhalla 98.378.203 18.18% -2 B1%
Vishal S-cIl]Eni 73244, 123 [3.54% =2 B30
Shailendrm Math Bai H0.914.79% 7.56% <112 %
Total 153,195,428 65.28%

(1) Shares veserved tor issue under oplions
For details of shores reserved for issue under the emplovee stock option (ESO1) plan of the Company, please refer note 31,

10 Finnocial linbilities

10 () Borrowings (mon-current)

As at 31 Asat 31
March 2024 March 2023
Secured (refer note 1 below )
MNon-Convertible Debentures - -
Ferm loan from banks 644 286
Term loun from other panies 126.33 220.96
132.77 229.82
121,43 401.23

Current maturitics of non-cureent borrowings [refer note 1B)]

Note T Security disclosure for the outstunding current borrowings are oy follows:

(i) Mon-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) had been issued during the earlier vear amounting to Rs. 250 million. The amount
outstonding against the said loan is Bs. Nil million (31 March 2023: Ks. 250,00 million} which carries interest @ 12.41% pa und
repald on 25th September 2023, The loan was secured by first and exclusive charge by pledge of cerain shares of the Company held
by the promoders, Further, the loan has been persomally pusranteed by cerfain dircetors of the Company

{ii) Cor loan had been obinined from HOFC bonk amounting to Bs. 2.32 million during the carlier yeor and the amount outstanding
apainst the ssid loan is Bs. 1,07 million (31 March 2023 Bs, 1,53 million) which carries nlerest @ 7.50% po and repayable in 60
equal monthly instalments starting from 07th May 2021, The loan ls scheduled 1o be repaid by 07th April 2026, The loan is sccured
aprinst the vehicle funded oul of aforesabd loan.

(iii} Car loan has been obtained from HDFC bank amounting to Bs. 2.53 million and the smount outstanding against the gaid loan is

Rs 179 million (31 March 2023: 2.24 million) which carres interest (@ 7.70% poa and repayable in 60 equal monthly instalments
starting from OFth Avgust 2022, The loan is scheduled to be repaid by 05th July 2027, The loan is seeured sgainst the vehicle funded

out of aforesaid loan,
iv) (e lon has been oblained from HDFC bank amousting to Rs, 2010 million and the amount outstanding sgainst the said loan is Rs,

1,89 million {31 March 2023: Nil million) which carries interest @l B50% po and repayable in 60 equal monthly instalments starting
from (5th Seplember 2023, The loan is scheduled w be repaid by 05th August 2028, The loan is sceurcd against the vehicle funded

oul of nforesaid loan,

P )

/ Ly’
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¥} Uar loan has been obtiined from Indian bank amounting to Rs, 3.96 million and the amount outstanding ngainst the said loan s Rs,
3,72 million {31 Morch 2023 il million) which corrles inlerest i B65% poa, ond repoyable i1 i) 1:L‘.j|.l|.1| mionthly mstolments :.'l.'lﬂinp:
froum 07ih Drecember 2023 The loan is seheduled to be repaid By 0710 Movember 2028, The loan is sceured apgainst the vehicle funded

ot of aforciaid loan.

{vi} T'erm loan from Bajnj Finance Lid. had been obiaiped amowtiog o s 350 oullion during the earlier yeor and the amount
autstinding against the said loan is Rs 1B530 million (31 March 2023; Rs. 267,65 million) which coervies interest & 1 1.35% pa. (21
Mlaretn 20231 1,00% poa) amd repayable in 31 cqual monthly instalments staeting feom (3th April 2022 w0 035th June 2026, The loan is
secured by exclusive charge over plant and machinery funded under the term loan with minimum Fixed Assets Coverage Ratio
(FACR} of 1.33% and secomnd pari-passu charge on overnll current assets foorment amnd future) of the Company, Fonber, the loan hos
heen porsonal by puarantecd by certam directors ol the Company,

wii) Term loan from Oxven Finaneinl Services Privale Lid, had been obtained during the calier year amounting o Ry 20 million and
the amount outstanding against the said loan is Bs nil million {31 Mareh 2023: 546 million) which carries fnterest @) 12.25% p.a, and
repayable in 24 equal monthly instalments. The lonn repaid on 05th September 2023, The loan was secured by persons] puamnioe by
director of the Company.

(viiid Term lown from Oxyeo Financinl Services Private Lid, hod been obtained during the current veor amounting to Rs. 75 million ad
the amount outstanding against the said loan is Rs. 60,43 million (31 March 2023: Nil million) which carries interest () 12.5% p.a. and
repayable in 24 equol monthly instalments. The lonn to be repaid on monthly EMI ending on 05th Clotober 2025,

{ix) Term loan From T'ata Copital Finoncial Serviess Lid. has been obtalned amounting to Bs, 125 million and the amount outstanding
against the said loan is Rs, nil million (31 Mareh 2023 10417 million ) which carries interest @@ [ 1L.10% pa. and repayeble in 24
eeuaal monthly instalments, The loan was repaid m full durmg the current financial year. The loan was secured by guamanies gquivalent
i the 50% of the facility nmount and personal gusranies by certain directors of the Company.

Note 11z Satisfaction of charges

There are no charges or satisfaction which are yoi to be registered with the Registrar of Companies heyond the statutory period.

10 (b) Borrowings (current)

Axat 31 As o 31
March 2024  March 2023

Secured
Cnsh eredit / overdrafl faeility feom banks (repayable on demand)* T4.57 74382
Buver's credit® - 13903
Warking cupital dermuand loo** 155.00 531.00
Currént maturities of non current borrowings [refer note 10(a)] 121.43 A01.23

29100 1.815.08

*Securedl by way ol hypethecation on fist park- passu charge basis, on overall current assets of the Company (current and future} and
collateral securities/persanal guarantees of promoter directors and relative of promoter directors. The said loan is further seeured:

(1} by way of o first charge on pari-passu basis, of existing and future movable fixed assets of the Company exeluding software md
mnchinerios! assels created by way of term fonns from other banks and Onancial institutions,

(2} by way of & second charge on pan-passu basis, of such existing and fulure movable ed assets of the borrower such machinerics!
alher wssets which are ereated by wagy of term leans from other banks and financinl institutions, The cash credit is repayable on demand
annd carrdes fnterest @ 10L38% po to 11,.30% paw (31 March 2023 10.30% pa, to 11.55% pac), Buyer's credit cerries infereat NAL(3
March 2023: & SOFR AQ50% poa. o SOFER +1% poa)

*Working copital demand loan from of Rs, nil million (31 March 2023: Rs, 406 million) is secured Secured by way of personal
guamnles of promolers of the company. This facility Iy repayabile on demand ond earries interest ranging from 9.25% pa 1o 9.30%
poa. (31 March 2023 8.85% 1o 9.20% poa. ) Working capitnl demand loan of Rs. 125 million (31 March 2023: Rs. 125 million) is
secired by way of puamntee equivalent to the 100% (31 March 2023: 50%) of the facility amount and personal guaranies by certain
direetors of the Company and repayable on demand and carries interest @1 1.35 % (31 March 2023, 10,10% p.a.) Working eapil
demand loan of Ra 30 million (31 March 2023 nil million) s secured similor fo cash credit Tucilities as mentioned above and
repuyable on demand and carries interest G2 | 1,20% poa (31 March 2023: Nil),

Nate Iz In respect of working capital loans, quarterly returns or statements of current assets {iled by the Halding Company with banks

are in agreement with the books of accounts
( jg /" X2
<




Lava International Limited
Notes 1o consolidnted financinl statements for the yenr ended 31 Murch 2024
FA annanents i ddian Rupees seillion, unless otherwie stated)

10 (¢) Teade pavables

Asar 31 Axat 31
Maorch 2024 March 2023
Micro and Small Emterprises (refier note 32) 229.93 13217
(iher than Micro and Small Enferprises 3.419.20 4,055,493
4,0149.13 4,788.10
Ageing of trade payables ;-
Particulars Lesy than 1 12 emy 23 voacs More than 3 Total
yeur VEALS
As at 31 March 2024
Outstanding dues 1o micro and smull enlerprises 229.93 - - - 129,93
Oithers 2.826.44 KAL) I83, 1 479.10 3,515.74
Digputed - dites to micen and small enterprises =
Disputed - Others -
Trade payables 3,056.37 3710 14510 479,10 3, 755.67
Prowision for expenses 29346
Tutal Trade payables 4,049.13
Particulary Liesstn L 1-2 years 2-3 years Mare thin 3 Tutal
yeur VERTs
As at 3 March 2023
Outstangding dues w micro ond small enterprises 13217 = - - 132.17
(Mhers 3502.37 346,76 167.55 33528 4,351.96
Dhisputed - dues 10 micro and small enterprises - L] - . -
Dhispuited - Others - - = Z i
Trade payahles 363454 246,76 167.55 33528 4,484.13
Preowision [or cxpunsss 10387
Tuotal Trade payables 4, 78810
10 () Laemse Timhilities (non-current)
Axat 3l Axat 31
March 2024  Muarch 2023
Lense Linhilities (refer note 36) iy, 7 5 104,47
0,75 147
10 (e) Lease liabilities (curreat)
Axail 31 Ax at 31
March 2024 March 2023
Lease Linhikities (refer nole 36) 42,70 3840
42.70 A8.40




Lava Internationul Limited
Motes to consolidated financial statements for the yenr ended 31 Morch 2024
(AN emounis in tedian Rupees miffion, wiless oilerwise stofed)

10 (0 Other financind liabilitics {(current)

Asal 31 Asomil 31
March 2024 March 2023

Payuble for capitul purchnses * L3
Securily depisits 1,495 65 1.460.32
Inter company deposits (YR -
Interest aceroed on horrowings 37 008
Derivative liability - 1.24
Emploves payables 13.36 4388
1.637.98 1,512.84

11 (a) Provisions (non-current)

A a3 As at 31
March 2024 Marceh 2023

Provision for employee benefits

Provision for gratudty (refer note 27) 3089 57.28

Other provisions

Provision lor decommissioning linbilities # 2.06 2.006
6195 59.34

# Under lease apreaments entered by the Company, it bas (o incor restoration cost for restoring lease premises 1o the original condition
at the time of expiry of lease period. The timing of (he outllows s expected o be in next 3 yvears, The impact of discounting is not
considered being immaterial and henee ignored,

Provision for decommissioning linbilitles

As ot 31 As a1
Moarch 2024 March 2023
Al the beginning of the yvear 206 302
Liss: reversed during Uhe yeir - (1.96)
Al the end of the year 2.6 2.06
11 (b} Frovisions {current)
Asal 31 As at 31

March 2024 Muarch 20023

Provision for employee benefits

Provigion for gratuity (refer note 27) 16,27 2567
Provision for compensated absenees i 17.0% 20,58
316 46,25

Other provisions
Provision for warranties® 130,88 §7.53
130,88 87.53
164.24 133.78

*The Holding Compnny provides warranty on it's produets by giving sn undertaking to repair/replace items to the customers, which
fails to perform satisfactorily during the warranty period. Provision made represents the amount ol the expeeted cost of meeling such
ohligations of repairfeeplacement. The timing of the outflows is expected to be in next 12 months (3 1 March 2023 < 12 months),

Provision for warrnnties

Axoai 31 As ni 31

Muareh 2024  Muarch 2023

Al the beginning of the year ; S 87.53 203.30
Arising during the year | 494 49 G485, T4
Lazss - Ulilimedfreversed during the vear é | {451.14) (765.55)
AL the eml of the vear ) ] /I.l r S 130,88 B7.53




Lava Internationsl Limited
Notes to consolidated financinl statements for the year ended 31 Murch 2024
FAll aerownts in fnotlan Rupees miittar, unless giherwive stated)

12 Other current Habilities

A at 3l As at 3l
March 2024  March 2023

Advance (rom custamers 3Tnal 278.74
Tux deductuble o source 3083 3Lz
Uither statutory liahilitics TH.16 L6116

47900 326.02

13 Current tax linbilitics (net)

Asat 3l As at X1
Mareh 2024 March 2023

Prowigion for income (mx® 152.949 110,87
152.99 1 1L87

Mol of advance tax and TDS receivable smounting to Bs, 3,871,70 million (31 March 2023: Rg 373419 million)
{This space hax been interdionally lefi dlank)




Lova [nternations] Limited
Notes to consolidated financinl statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
fAN arornts fa fnolfan Kupeey itillian, wunlesy otherwise siored)

14

s

17

Revenue fram aperalions

Sale of products

Bale of services

Other aperating revene
- Berp sale

- Export incentives

Oiher invone

Interest ingome on [Tnancial ssset ol amortised cost

Interest income on fixed deposits with banks

Inierest ineome on oiliers

Met pain on sale of mutial fund investments

Fair value pain on derivative finsncial mstruments at Fair vahse through profitor [oss
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment

Foreign exchange differences (net)

Miscellancous income

Cost of raw materinl aod components consumed

Tnveniory materinls ut the beginning of the year
Purchase during the year
Less: Inventory muterinls of the end ol the year

Cllﬂﬂ!gu in inventorics of Tinished goods, spares and stock in trade

Inventories at the emd of the year
Traded gonds

Hpares for handsets

Finished goods

Inventories st the beginwing of the year
Traded poods

Spares for handsels

Fimished poads

Empluyee henefits expenses

Salary, wages and bonus
Contribution to provident and other Tund {(refer note 27)
Cirntuity expense (refer nofe 27)
Shore based payment expense (reler nole 31)
StalT wellare, recruitment and trining
/)

i

For the vear ended

FFor the year ended

¥ March 2024 31 Muarch 2023
o 43372 48,970.49
14.44 4716

| 4.97

317 193

36, 46055 49,026.55

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

1.27 113

b2.47 73.49

.16 .16

{027 0.50

1.83 L.946

0.65 1.95

107.34 17476

3,93 19.20

0943 27384
Forthe year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

284349 2,802.05

1767946 16:,955.13
(2.661.17) (2.843.49)

17,858, 78 16,213.71
For the year ended  For the year ended
M March 2024 3 March 2023

LR G 1LB08.07

30464 3802

hRg.50 1,242.80

1,177.32 3,158.89

1,808.07 248228

0802 47708

1.742.80 1.067.39

335889 4,026.72

2,181.57 66783
For the yenr ended  For the year ended

31 March 2024

A1 March 2023

|.453,74 1,632.51

il (M 57.27

aTio 20.70 18,90
@ 0.02 16,83

VON 26116 273.66
1 3] 1,808.66 1,999,17

5%

§ i



Lava International Limited

Motes to eonsolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 Muorch 2024
AN cmmrann B fnollan Ruprees sidilion, wetless atherwilse stated)

1% Ohher expensis

0

21

Powver and Tl

e

Rates and taxes

[nsuranee

Repair and maintenance - others
Advertisemont and merketing expenses

Soles promution, scheme expenses aml expected credil Loss provision

Freight nnd cartnge

Chutsonmeed sabary cosd

Travelling and eonveyance
Commumication costs

Warrnnty expenses

Legal and professional foes

Payment to auditor (refer details below)*
Dionation

Corporate socinl responsibilly expense {refér nole 33)

Miscellaneous expenses
Payment to anditor *

Ay auditor:

Audil fee

Tax audit fea
Reimbursement of expenses
Other services

Deprecintion and amortisation expense

Deprecistion oxpense

- Property, plant snd equipment

-on ROL! psset

Amortismion expense on infangible assets

Finance costs

Interast on

=Term loan

-{nsh eredit

-Lease lnbilities {refer note 36)
-Security depasils

-Income tax

Bank charges

For the venr ended
31 Muarch 2024

For the yeur ended
3 March 2023

49.90 A609
49.97 5230
321 12.53
15,37 14.34
110,71 Rl.94
1,.222.18 1,894 K0
560,78 80532
236,81 11949
646 30.65
10749 9,84
8.20 g1
49449 649,78
[77.03 16206
2.50 250
.07 .18
10,79 10.03
41.14 20.07
157,10 421103

For the vear ended

For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
250 2.50
250 2.50
For the year ended  For the vear ended
31 March 2024 31 Munrch 2023
185.24 1,241.39
3477 32.33
j0.14 12,64
230,19 1,286,560
For the vear ended  For the vear ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

120054 137.20
THT4 T80
16.30 1568
348 41
12.19 017
113.91 10296

345.56 36722

!




Lava International Limited
Morles to consolidated financinl stutements for the yvear ended 31 March 2024
(Al amonmis i Tafieen Rupees million, uless otfiervie sioted)

22 Ineome fax ¢xpense

{a) The major components of income tax expense for the years ended as follows are:

For the yeure ended  For the year ended

31 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023
Current income fux;
Cwrrgnt ineome by charge o2 18,19
Adjustments in respect of income e of proviows yveur {1 [16.9%8)
Deferred tax :
Felnting 1o origination and reversal of temporary differences (54.28) 5.69
Total tax expense on profit of the year (a) 115,940 106,90
Oiher comprehensive ineome
Deferred oy reloted Lo flemy recopnised in other comprelensive income during in the year
- Re-measurement losses of defined berefil plan 0.05 (0.d3)
= Chonpge in foir valee of FYOCT equity instruments - -
Tulal tux expense en ether comprebensive income of the year (1) 0.05 {IL43)
Total tax expense on lotal comprehensive income ol the vear (a) + (b) 115,95 106.47

() Heenneilintinn of tax expenst and the secounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic (ax rale
For the year ended  For the year enided

31 Murch 2024 A1 Muarch 2023
Frofit belore tax 454.42 59,56
Applicable Ly rate 25 17% 50 7%
Expected tax expense (A) 114,38 21630
Tux adjustment:
Expenses not considered in determining taxable profit (3.64) 25.00
Ineome not considered in delermining taxable profit (1.32) (3.7
Ineome exempl [Fom i 21.74 (101.43)
T pertaiming o enrlier vemrs (.06 {16.98)
Others’ (15.18) {12.38)
Totnl adjustments (1) 1.66 (10%.56)
Actual tax expense [ C= A+B) 116,04 10674
Tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss 115.90 106.90
Effective Tax Rute 25.50% 1244 %

(i sprarce By been infentionaliy left blank)
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Lova Internatismal Limited
Maotes to consolidnted financial stutements for the vear embed 31 March 2024
(AN anvounis o Sredian Ruapees moillion, ailess offierise wtirietel)

(e} Delerred tax ussels (net)

elerred tax relates (o (he follow ing:

Deferred tax assels oh sooount of;

For the year ended
31 March 2124

For the yvear ended
3 March 2023

Property, plant and equipment (949.495) (93.99)
Employee benefits and other payable (23.4T) (20,06}
Allownnee [or eredit loss (ECLY & provision for doubtful Advances (272.94) (271.76)
Provision [ obsolesconce mventories [ 19.06) (1080}
Provigion for wareanty (32.93)
Ubthers (4.20) 1.48
Dreferred tox related to ather comprehensive income of the year:
Re-meagurement losses of defined benefit plan 341 3.36
Chimge in fir value of FVYTOCT eguity instruments (2.31) (2.31)
Deferred tax lahility! (asset) on account oft
Tax 1o be paid on coston duty receivable in futome yesrs (refer note 34) §7.09 B4 5
Fair valuation of investment - -
Met defereed tnx Hability! (asset) including other comprehensive income (364.45) (310.23)
of the yenr
Movement in deferred ey for the year ended 31 March 2024
Auat Recognised in - Reeognised Recopnised in Asat
31 March 2023 oiher in profit  HRetnined Earnings 31 March 2024
comprehensive  und loss
income
Dreferred tax assets on aecount
of:
Property, plant and equipment (93.99) - {3.96} - {99.95)
Emplovee bencfits and other (26.06) - 159 - {23.47)
payible
Allowanes for credit loss (BECL) & (271.76) - (1.18) - (272.94)
privision for doubtnl Advances
(refer note Gic))
Provision for obsolescence { HLB0) . (8.20) = i 19.06)
invEnLores
Provision for warmmty - (32.93) (33.93)
Other 1.68 i (6,17) a (4.29)
Deferred tax related fo other
comprehensive
Re-measurement lozses of defined 336 0n.0s - - 341
benelil plan
Change in [wir valoe of FYTOCI (2.31}) - - - (2.31)
couily instrmenls
Deferved tax linbility on account of:
Tax 1o be paid an custom duty B9 45 - {2.36) - £1.09
receivieble in fiture vears (refer note 34)
Total (310.23) (.05 (54.28) - {364 45)

(This space fas been infentiamatly lifl blank)
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Lava International Limited
Notes to consolidated fingncial statements for the vear eoded 31 March 2024

Ll amosnis in dndfon Rupees seiliion, unlesy otfierwvive siated)

Maovement in deferved (ax for the vear ended 31 March 2023

Asat Recognised in - Recopnised Recognised in As it
31 March 2022 athey inprofit  Retnined Earnings 31 March 2023
compirehensive  and loss
Inene
Dreferred tax assets on account
it
Property, plant and equipment {R2.67) - (11.32) - {93.99)
Fmployee benetits and other (25.23) - (.83} - {26.06)
povable
Allowance for eredit loss (ECT) & (274.45) - 2,64 {(271.7m
provision for donbtil Advanees
Provision lor ohsolescence {14.00) - 320 - (1080
inventores
Onthers - . | B8 - 1.58
Beferred tax reluted fo esther
comprehensive income of the yenr:
R e-measurement losses of defined 309 ((h43) - - 136
henctit plan
Chunige in Tuir value of FVTOCT (2.31) = . € (2.31)
ouity instruments
INeferred tax linbility on account of: B - -
Tax to be paid on custom duty 934 s .07 - RO.45
receivable in foture years (refer
it 34
Tatal (315.49) {433 509 - (310.23)

(Tiets sperce s been Dntensfematly doft bloei)




Lavva Internutionnl Limited
Modes o consalidaied foaoeinl stntements for ihe vear ended 31 Mareh 2024
(ol enmoiinien it foefios Raecs malfion, widess offieriive siaiod}

I3 Earnings per sharve (EPS)
e folleswimg veflects the profit and shire data used in the basic and diluted EPS computation:
For the vear énded  For the vear ended
3 Muarch 2024 31 Murch 2023

Mommndnal valoe ol equily shares 5 5
Frofit attributable to owners of Helding Company for computing basie and dilutive EPS F6.77 T52.62
(Al

Weighied average number ol cquity shares for ealeulating basie EPS

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the veur for computing $41.126,216 541,126,216
Basic EPS (B)*

Dilutive effect of share based payments on weighied avernge number of equity shares INY55.614 MEsseld
outstanding during the year

[Milutive cfteot of compulsory comvertihle preferonce shares on weighted average number 16,643,640 o, 643,640
of eguity shares outstanding during the yeur

Weighted mverape number of equity shares outstanding during the year for computing SERT25470 SRETIFATO
Diluted EPS (C)*

Basic eurning per share (A/H) .54 L.X¥
Iriluted enrning per share (A/C) .54 1.28

During the previons & current financial year, 1,201,872 number of options issucd for share based payment were excluded from the
calenlntion of diluted weighted avernpe number of equity shares as therr effec! would hove been anti-dilutive

(Thix gpace hax heen intanrfonaliy laft blank)
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Motes to consolidated financhal statements for the yenr ended 31 March 2024
(AN amonnis In Indion Rupees million, unless otfervise siated)

24 Fair value measurement

a) The earrying value and fair value of Moanclal instruments by eategories are ns under;

MNotes 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
FYTPL FVTOCT | Amorfised FVTPL FYTOC Amortised
Cost Cost
Assets
Non-current nsscts
Financial nsscts
Investments a{u) - 37,86 . - 65,00 -
Chher finanoinl assets BN 2 - 5502 - - 124.26
| 57.86 5502 - 6500 | 124.26
Current nssets
Financinl asscls
Investments b{b} EX1T] - - 28,73 - -
T'rade receivables e - - 393557 - - 6,563,770
Cash and cash equivalents 6 () - - 524.0% - - #2259
Other bank balanees i {ed - - 243.09 - - Q14,95
Derivative nsset fig) .54 = z - - -
Uithers financial nsseéls Bigl - - 174.29 - | - 209,68
A0 - 5,466,958 28.73 | - 8.510.92
Liabilities
Man-current labilities
Finaneial Hubilities
Borrowings 100 £} - - 13277 - - 226,82
Lease liabilities 10 {d) - - 66,75 - - 10947
- - 199,52 - - 333,29
Current labilities
Financinl lihilities |
Bomowings 10 () - - 90100 - - 1,8015.08
Lense liahilities 10{e) 42.70 380
Trade puvables 10 {ch, 32 - . 4,044%.13 - - 478810
Derivative Hability 1 . . = 1.29 - -
Other financial liabilities 10i1) - - 1,637.98 - - 1,5011.55
= | - 6,720.81 1.29 - H,1535.12

The fuir values of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other current financial asset, trade payables and other current financial
liahilities are considerad 1o be same as their carrying values doe (o their shovt term nature,

The carrying amounts of ether items cardied ot amortised cost are reasonnble npproximetion of their fair values on respective reporting
e,

For fnancial assers and Hubilities that are measured ol fuir value, the carrving amounts are equal o the foir values,

{Thix space has been tntertionally left lank)
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Notes Io consolidated linnncial statements for the yvenr ended 31 March 2024

(AN gmiownts in Indlan Rupees million, wnless otferwise siated)

24 (b)) Fair valoe hierarehy and valuation techniques used to determine fair values:

To provide an indication about the relinbility of inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has clissified its {inancial
instrument into threee levels preseribed under the accounting standard. The following table provides the fair value measurement
hicrarchy of the Croup's assets and Habilities:

Quantiiative disclosures of fiir value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities are as follows ;

Fair value mensurement using
Quoted prices in Significant Signifiennt

At 31 March 2024 active markets  observable inpuls  unobservable inputs Total

(Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets measared at FYTPL
Investment in mulual Mnds 306 - - 106
Assels measured at FYTPL
Dlorivative assels - (.54 - 0.54
Assets measored at FVYTOC!
Investment in equity instruments - - 57.86 57.50

Fair value messurement using
Quoted prices in Significant Significant Total

At 3 March 2023 netive markets  observable inputs  unobservable inpuis

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets messured at FVTPL
Investment in mutual funds 28.73 - - 28.73
Assels measured at FVTPL
Derivative liability - 1.29 - 1.29
Aszets measured at FYTOCH
Investment in eguity instroments® - - 65.00) 65,00

¢ lnvestment in Abhriva Ple, Ltd, has been valued at zero value e, at fair value and it has been shown in other reserve amounting
1o Ry 7.69 million in Reserve and surplus,

- There were no transicrs belween the Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the years presented.
= There is no change in the valuation technique during the period.

Valuation technigues vsed to derive Level 1 fair values

The fair values of investments in mutual fund units is based on the net asset value ("NAV) 05 stated by the issuers of these mulual
fund units in the published statements as at Balance Sheet date. NAV represents the price at which the fssuer will issue further
units of mutual fund and the price at which issuers-will redeem such units from the inveslors,

Valuation technigues used (o derive Level 2 fair values
Derivative asset/ liability representing forward foreign exchange contracts have been fair valued using dealer/counter party gquolcs
it balance sheet date.

Valuation technigues used to derive Level 3 fir values
Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data, A one percent chiange in the unobservable inputs

used in fair valuation of Level 3'asseis-doesn’| have a significant impaet in its value,
. B,
% 3l
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Motes to consalidated Mnancinl stntements for the yenr ended 31 March 2024
GO eomoniy B P Rupees milfion, imless othermvise stated)

15 Capital management

The Group's objectives while managing capital are to safeguard ils ability W continue as » golng concern and to provide
adequate returns for its sharcholders and benelits (or other stakeholders. The Group's pelicy is generally lo optimise
horrowings at an operating Group level within an scceptable level of deb. The Group's palicy is to borrow using o mixture of
long-term aind short-term debts together with cash penerated o meet anticipated funding requirements.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is calculated as underlying net deht divided by total capital plus
underlying net debt. The Group’s pelicy is to keep the gearing ratio below 40%. The Group measures its nnderlying net debt as
total debt reduced by cash and cash equivalents. The Group monitors complinnce with its debt covenants. The Group has
complied with all debi covenants at all reporting dates,

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the yeurs ended 31 March 2024 and
31 March 2023,

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Borrowings 112377 2.044.90
Less: Ciish and cash cquivalents (524.03) (§22.59)
Net debt (a) 599,74 1,222.31
Lauity 9,527.94 13,591.54
Total capital () 9,527.94 13,591.54
Capilal and ned debt (a) + (b) = (¢} 10,127.68 1481384
Gearing ratio (%) (a) / () 5.92% 8.25%

(This ypoee bays Bean intestionaliy lefi blank)
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Notes to consolitlated financinl statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
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26 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's principal financial labilitics, other than derivatives, comprise loans and overdrafts, and trade payables. The main
purpose of these financial Tiabilities st raise fnance for the Group®s operations. The Group hus various Onencial assets such as
lesicle recetvables, cash, and shori-lerm deposits, which arise directly from its operations, The Group olso holds: mutual fund
investments nnd enters into derivative transactions.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial Instruments are price risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency rigk,
ond credit risk.

The Board of Directors review and sgree policies for managing cach ol these rsks which are summuarised below:

Price risk

The Group is mainly exposed to the price gk due to its investment in cquity instruments and mutual funds. The price risk arises due
i uneertainties about the future market values of these investments, [n order o mansge its price risk arising from investmens in
mutual lunds, the Group diversifies its portfolio in accordance with the fimits set by the risk management policies, The Group docs
nedl have signilicant investment in cquity instruments.

Set out below is the impact of & 1% movement in the WAV ol mutual funds on the Group's profit before tix:

Particulars 30 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023
[ {Tect on profit before tax:

MAN ncrease by 100 bps .03 0,29
WAV decrease by 100 hps (0.03) (.29

Interest rate risk

The Group's cxposure to the risk of changes in market interest rales relates primarily 1o the Group's borrowings with floating
interest rates. The Group's policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed, floating rate barrowings.
The fellowing table provides a breakdown of the Group's Nlxed and floating rate borrowings:

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Fixed rate borrowingy GE41 259.23
Floating rale bortowings 1.054.86 1,785.67
Taoral 1,123.77 2,044.90

The fallowing tahle demonstrates the sensitivity 1o a reasonably possible change in interest rates. being a 0.5% Increase or decrease
in interest rate, with il other variables held eonstant, of the Group®s profit before e due to (he impact on oating rate borrowings,

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Effect on profit before tm:

Intorest rates- decrease by 50 bps 527 £.93
Inferest rates- incrensa by 50 bps {5:27) (£.93)
Credit risk

‘The Group is also expased to credit risk from trade receivables, term deposits, liquid investmenis and other financial instruments.

(i} Customer credit risk i3 managed by the Group established policy, procedures and control relating o costomer credit risk
management. All customers are subjeet 1o eredit verification procedures, In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an on-
going hasis. The Group is exposed to credit risk in the event of non-payment by customers. An impairment analysis is performed at
cach reporting date by grouping the receivables in homogencous proup. Trade receivahles ure non-interest bearing and are generally
on original credit terms of 30 o 180 days depending upon category and nature of customers. Considering the request of certuin
distributors for becoming more compelitive under the ewrrent market scenario and 1o cnhance the overall market share, the
management his decided to extend the credit terms on case-to-case basis 1o ils distributors which shall be helpful to pencirate the
polential apportunities of enhancing (he overall market share, For this purpose, the manngement has done credit evaluation on the
distributors based on their business relationships with the Group and the market credibility as well as established a mechunism of
monitoring the availability and murketability.of inventory levels lying with the retailer netwartk.
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The munsgement regularly follows up to recover the outstanding amount and evaluaies recoveries ut the end of every reporting
period. ‘To comply with the requirement of Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments, the Company has created total ECL of Rs, 11,007,735
million (31 March 2023; Rs. 8,677.88 million). As it was Impracticable to ascertain the ECL Tor cach of respective earlier financial
vear, therelore, Rs. 2,329,487 million in compliance with the requirements of para 44 of Ind AS 8 - Accounting Pollcics, Chinges in
Accounting Estimates and Frrors, has been adjusted 1o the retained earnings in the current finaneial yeir,

{ii) The credit risk for cash and cosh equivalents, other bank balances. lerm deposits, ele, is considered negligible, since the
counterparties are reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings.

Ageing hased on original credit terms but after sllowance for eredit loss as Tollows:

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
O-180 duys 43,40 4,293
180-365 days 201747 1.816.37
| year plus 1 86470 526.42
‘Total 3915.57 6,563.72

The Group has provisions of Rs. 36.77 million (31 March 2023 : Rs. 31.99 million ) for doubtful debis, None of those trade debtors
past due or impaired have had their tems renegotiated. The maximum exposure o credit risk at the reporting date i the fair value of
The Group evaluates the concentration of risk with respeet to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in severnl

jurisdictions and operate in largely independent markets.

Liguidity risk

The Group monitor their risk of shortage of funds using cash flow forecasting models, These models congider the maturity of their
finuncial irvestments, committed funding and projected cash flows from operations,

The Group's objective is to provide financial resourees 1o meel its business objectlves in a timely, cost effective and relishle manner.
A balance between continuity of funding and flexibility is maintained through the use of hank borrowings. The Group also monitors
complisnce with its debt covenants. The maturity profile of the Group’s financial Habilitics based on contractual undiscounted
puvments s given in the toble below:

<lyr 1-5 yrs =5 ¥rs Total
As at 31 March 2024
Borrowings (including interest accrued) 994,77 132.77 - 1,127 .54
Lease liabilitios 42,70 .75 - 109,45
Trade payables 4,049.13 - - 4,049.13
her financial Hability 1,634.21 - - 1,634.21
Total 6,720.81 199.52 - 6,920.33
As at 31 March 2023
Borrowings (including interest accrued) 182116 229,82 - 2,050,958
Lease linbilities 3840 108.47 - 147.87
Trade pavables 4,788,110 - = 4, TR 10
Derivative Liability 1.29 - - .29
Other financinl lability 1,505.47 - - 1,505.47
Total 8.154.41 339.2% - 5.493.71

fThis space hos been intemiomally feff blaak)



Lava International Limited

Motes to consolidnted Tnancinl statements for the yvear ended 31 March 2024
{ AT cmounis in fndian Rupees million, inless otherwise siated)

Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed (b foreign currency in the normal course of business, The Group has transactional currency exposures arising
T sales or purchoses by an operating il in correncies other than the unit’s functionzl corroncy. Accordingly, the Graup's financial
stote of offairs can be affecied significantly by movements in the US dollar & other currencies exchange rates. The Group enfers into
derivative transactions, primarily in the notuee of forward forcign exchange contracts on import payables. The purpose is o manage
currency risks arising from the Group’s operafions,

The caprying smits of e Group's financial sssets and liabilities denominated in different curvencies are as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Finuncial assets| Financial labilities Financial assets|  Financial liabilities
Ulnited States Daollur (11S1) 41.22 41,73 94,75 46,46
Hong Kong dollar {HKD) .14 .14 36.69 1,00
ALD 28.13 oz a4 40 .30
Others (.01 (1.0 iL28 {06

The Group's exposure (o foreign currency arises in part where o Group holds financial assets and Rabilities denominated in o currenty
different from the functional currency of that emity with USD being the major non=functional currency of the Group's main operating
subsidigries, Set oul below is the impact of o 10% moevement in ihe Toreign cumeney on profit before 1 arising as a result of the

revatbuation of the Group®s foreign eurreney linancial assets and unhedeed linbilities :

Particulars 31 March 2024 3 March 2023
Effect of 10% strengthening of INR against following on profit before tax:

LSD 0.05 (5.33)
HED - (3.5T)
ALD (2.81) {4,359
Others (0.00) (0.02)
Effect of 10% weakening of INR against Tollowing on profic beloe s

s (0.05) 533
HED - 3.57
AED .81 4.39
Others (.00 .02

The Group enters into forward/future contracts 1o mitigate the risk arising from (Tuctuations in foreign exchange rates to cover foreign
currency payments. The Group has taken forwards contract of the following amount 1o hedge against currency risk against movement in
INRSUS dallar, The conteact a5 on year and are as fdlows

Particulars

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Amount in INK

121.57

43,51

{(This gpesce-has been Drfantionally it blank)
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27 Post-cmployment benefits plan

Defined Contritmition Mlan

The Helding Company hos recognised B 6404 millions (31 March 2023 0 Bs $7.27 millionz) related to employer's contribution 1o

provigent find and employess’ stiie insuranoe fimnd ns an copense in the statement of profin amd loss.

efined Nenelit Plan

The Helding Company hos partially funded defined henetit gratnty plan. Every employee who hos completed five years or mone ol
service pets o pratmty on departure ot 13 days sulary (last drinsvn salary b for cach completed year of ol servee o part tiereol in cxgess of

& imoniths.

The following table summaraes e components of nel benefit expense recopnized i the stislement of profie snd less Tor grstily plan

aird] dmatits recognied in the bulance sheet in respect of sme,

sratenvent of profit and loss :

el employee henefit expense recopnized in the cmployee cost

Clurrent service onst

Inderest cost on benelit obligation
Iiderest oo plin sssels

Nel benelit expense

Balance sheel ;
Benelit asserTiahility

Present value of defined henetit abligation
Met psseti{linhility) recognised in balonee sheet

Changes in the present value of the defined bencfit abfigation are us follows:

Opening defined benefit abligation
Current service cogt
Inderesl oogt
[mferest on plon nssets

Total nmount recognised in profit & losy

Re-measurement (gains)losses of defined benefit plon

- Due to chunges in financial wssuplions

= e to experience adgustiment

-Exeess of interest on plan assets over sctioal retom

Total wmount recognised in other comprehensive income

Henefirs padd

Comtribution o fund made during the vear

Closing defined benellt oblipation

31 March 2024 31 Marveh 2023
14.40 13.68
6,94 522
(0.34) -
200,71k 1840
31 March 2024 31 Muarch 2023
(76 1) (82.95)
{76.16) (B.Y5)
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
#2095 T5.95
1410 13,658
6,94 597
(0,34) -
20.70 18,00
L3R {2.96)
{0.53) 1.25
0.3 -
0.18 (L71)
(17.66) 110,19}
(1001}
Th. 16 B195
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The principsl nssumptiong used in determining gratoity beoelits are a8 below:

Iriscount rale
Employee turniver
Salury Escolation HRuate
Mortulity Biles

3 ¥March 2024

31 March 20023

7.0
BTN

T.00%
[ALZ0E2- 1410

T

J0.00%

T.00%
1AL2012- 1400

The sstimates of fdore salary mersises, considored i actuomal valuation, ke account of inflation, semonty, promation aod other

refevant (ctors, such os supply and demond in e enployment msdkel,

The average durstion of e defined benefit plan obligaticn o the ond of the reporting period is 496 yews (31 Muaeeh 2023; 4,78 years)

Amuunts for the current und previous four vears nre ns follows:

Farticulars

31 Muarch 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Girlulty
Dedined hene (it obligation 76,16 8295 G607 56.29
Experience adjusiments on Highilities 5=
5 =0}, 33 i

pain (lose) 053 (1.25) 155 138
Sensitivity Analysis:
A guantitntive sensitivity analysis for significant assumption 15 as shown below:

31 Murch 2024 31 March 2023
Projectei benefit ubligation on current assumplions 76.16 K295
Delta efect of +1 % change in discoum rate 2.2%) 216
Dielta effcet of -1 % change in discount rite 244 230
Delin effect of+1 % change in salery escalation mte 2.65 251
Dieltn effect of -1 % Change in sulory escalution e (2.54) =2A0
Deleffect of + 10 %o change an rate of amployee tumover (L86) -[L40

03 045

Delta effect of - 10 % change in rate of eoogploves uenover

{Thix spoce fox been ineniiornally feft dlamk)
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28 Segment information

Ind AS 108 "Operaling Sepments” establishes stdards Tor the way the companies peport information about operating segments and
related disclostres ahout products and services, peopraphic ureas, and major costomers, The Group's operations refate o sules of
mobile hondsets & nccessories through the distributors and resailers network. The Chiel® Operating Decision Maker (CODM)
evaluates the Group's performance and allocate resources based on analysis of various performance indicators pertaining (o biasinesy
as o single sepment, Accordingly, for the purpose of entity wide disclosures, only peagraphical information has been presented,
Rusiness segment of the Group is primarily sale of mobile handsels,

Geographical information on revenues are collated based on individual customers inveiced or in relation fo which revenue i
utherwise recognized,

Gengraphical information:
Ihe following table presents geographical information regarding the Group's revenue as defined in Ind AS 108 ;

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended

31 Mar 2024 3 Muar 2023
Indin 22,777.60 21.641.90
LUAE 1165114 2363412
Hong Kong 1.766.30 3,54537
Others 225,51 205.16
Total 36,460.55 49,026.55

The following table presents geographical information regarding the Group’s non current assets as defined in Ind AS 108 :

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended

31 Mar 2024 31 Mar 2023
Indin E58.13 116760
Hong Kong .00 .00
Cithers 0.0 .00
Total H58.15 1, 167,60

{This space fuy been infentionally fefi biank)
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20 Related parties disclosures
I acoordmmce with the requirements of Ind A5 24 on © Refmed pany dsclosores™ the names of reluied party on which conirol exist nmdfor
with whom transactions have taken plave durig the vear and deseription ol the relationship, as ddetfied and certified by te munagement

aire us below

Mumes of related parties und velited party velationship ¥

County of Mature of Relationship
Se.MNa, Helated Party |I'It.ﬁl'pnl'l|illﬂ For ihe year ended For the yenr ended
31 Mur 2024 31 Muar 2023
| [WingricTel Solutions Private Limited Ll Assoinle Asspiiite
Youmung Electronics Munsfnctormg Cluster Privage ; ;

2 i imited (YEMOCPL) Indin Joinl venture Joknt venture
Enterprises. owned  or|Enterprises owned  or
significuntly  influenced  by|significanily influenced by

3 A express worldwide Logistics (Parnership Fivm) [indlis key nunapoment personnel|key Mmanigement
or ther relatives personnel ar thear relatives

4 [Octemmate Intermutione! Privote Limsted

Inchia

Enterprises  owned or|Enterprises  owned o
sipnilicantly influenced by|sipnifeuntly influenced by
ey mandpement  personneliley mnagemel
or e relatives porsonnel or their relotives)

5 |Soge Infotel Private Limited

India

Fnterprises owned  or{Enleprises owned  or
sigmificantly influenced  by|significantly influenced by
key manpgement  persoune]|key manaEenent
o therr relotives persanel or their relatives

6 [Arprine Selutions Private Limited

Luclia

Enterprises  owned  or|Enterprises  owoed o
significantly  influenced by|significany infleeneed by
ey management  personmel |key management
or their relatives personnel or their relatives

& With whoam trumsactions bsve ken plece during the carment o7 previous year,

ey Management Personnel ¢
Mir. Hart Om Ban - Chairman & Managing director (upto 2Eth February 2024

M, Shalendra Math B - Whole time dineeior
i, Vishal Sehpal - Non Executive direclor
flr, Sunil Bhalls - Moo Executive dineciod

Mr. Vined Rai -Independent director {upte 22nd August 2023)

M. Chitra Gourd Lal « Independent director (upto 22nd August 20235)
Mt Rahul Eans - Independent director {(optn 22nd August 2023)

Mr. Agitwvn Bose = Chiel Financial Offiecr (opto 18ih Tuly 2022)

hr. Vined Shamia -Independent director (w.e ! 23nd Augusl 20210 w190 morch 2024)

Mr. Jitendra Kumar - Independent director (w.e.f 0151 September 2023 (o 306h Precember 2023)
Mr, Maveen Kumar - Company Secrstory (wee. 0 12th Jnmoary 2032 1o 3 st Avuguost 2023 )

M, Sunil Raing - President & Buosiness Hend (w.e { 18th May 2021)

Mr. Sanjeey Aparwnl - Chiefl Moo Bctwring CiTicer (woef 18th Muy 2021)
Mr, Mugdh Ragit - Semior Viee President - Hend Marketing, (w.e. 0 18th May 2021 1o 22th September 2023)
hdr, Sournhh Reghuyvinshi -Vies President - Sales & Supply Chain (w.e. § 1Eth May 2021 )

Mr. Mirav Giitishbhai Raval - Chief Financial Officer (weef 18t July 2022 to Inl December 2022)

Mr. Asitovn Bose - Chief Tinanciol Officer {w.e £ Srd December 2022 upto 29th June 20243

s, Proeti - Company Secretary (woe . (1151 September 2023 upto Sth July Z024)

M Sunil Raina - Whole Trme Dimector (we £ O6th November 20023 (o 30th December 2023)
. Sumjeey Aparwal - Whole Time Director (vwee. 0 15t February 20243

M. Suonil Ruena - Whale Time Director (w.e. [ 28th February 2024)

Mr. Anupum Shrvistava-Independent director (woel from 260h March 2024)
Mr. Ajay Bumar Singh- Independent direcior {w.e T from Lth Aprl 2024)
Mg Deepika Gupta= Mon Execative director (w.e. | from 20t Moy 2024)

M. Rajesh Sethi -Chuel Financial (fTicer (we. ] from 4th September 2024)
I, Ritesh Singh- Compnny Secretary tw.u.ffﬂuﬁ Ay Seplember 2024}
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Matore of (ransuction

Joinl Venlure

2i21-23

A, Treansaetions during the yenr
Espenses incorred on behall of related
pariies

Yomuna Elecrronics Momulscturmg Cluster
Privade Limited (YEMOPL)

Advanee to related party

Yamunn Flectronics Munufactisring Cluster
Privote Limited (Y EMOCI)

B Amount doe o/ Trom related partics
Advanee to vendor

Yamamnn Electronics Manu facturing Cluster
Prvate Lamited (Y EMCPL)

i3

24

o

0zl

Nature of transaciion

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key
management personnel or thelr relatives

2022-13

A Trunsactions during (he year

Sales to related parties

Ottomute Imernafiona) Privide Lomited
Services Talken

Am Express Waorldwide Logistics
Payment made to related parfies

A Express Waorldwide | ogistics
Amount reecived from related parties
CHiomate Intermetionel Privace Lomited
Adlvanee Given

Sapn Infotel Pyl Linibed

Arpring Solutions Private Limited
Amount received from related parties
Sojo Infotel Pyt Linuted

231

70.55

55

26519
15.00

.08
0,98
[0

2048

oy

iy gpvace hexs beer intertiomally loft bk
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Nature of transaction

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key
management personnel or their relatives

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
B. Amouont due to / from related parties
Other receivables
Sojo Infmel Pyl Limited 1M (.04
Advance to Vendor
Sajo Infotel Pt Limited 265.19 -
Arprive Solutions Private Limited [ .00 -
Trade receivalile
Oitomate loternational Private Limited & O 1.69

Remuneration of Key Management Personnel

Mature of transaction

31 Maorch 2024 3 March 2023
Short-term employee benelits vh25 (2,34
Post-employment benefils N 4.63

All transactions with relsted parties are made on terms cquivilent to those that prevail in arm’s length ransactions, Outstanding bakances
at the year-end are unsecured and their seltlement oceurs in cash. For the year ended 31 March 2024 and year ended 31 March 2023, the
Holding Company his not recorded any impairment of receivables relating o amounts owed by related partics,

{(This space hay been infeniionally feft blank)
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M Commitments and contingencies

{A) Capital and other commitiments

iB)

(u)
{i}

(i)

Particulirs I Mareh 2024 31 March 2023

Estimuted amount of eantrmets o be exceuted on capital secounl 26,16 .00
[net of capital advianee: amounting (o RsoNil (31 March 2023; Rs. Nil
million) and not provided for] (refer note #a))

Clontingent liabilities

Farticulars 31 Mareh 2024 31 Muarch 2023

Bank puarantoes 48,03 Hir2s

Sales tox ond costom motters [refor note (o)) (omount paid under protest Rs.

158,43 million) (31 March 2023: Bs. 158.43 million) 4817 44817

Cioods and serviee e matters [refer note (h)] (amount paid ender probest Rs.

45,01 million) (31 March 2023: ks, 45 million) 153150 Q44,54

Tneome by matlers (emounl paid under protest Rs, 6.05 million) (31 March

HI2F: Ks, 605 million) 0324 96,41
2.620.94 2,161.37

Sales tnx and custom

The Hon'ble Supreme Court of India vide it order dated 17 December 2004 in the case of State of Punjah Vs, Nokia Indis Pyl
Limiterd has held that the mobile charger comained in the mobile phone retall pack is an independent pam and shall be scpamtely
charged 1o VAT wl the rate as applicable 1o the chargers. The appellant has already approached the Hon'ble Supreme Coort in a
review petition chullenging the judgmoent. In view of this judgment, the VAT Authorities of vicious states have raised demands along
with interest and pennltics nggregating to Rs, 110,06 million (31 March 2023: Rs, 110,06 million), The Holding company lus {iled
appeal against these demands, Amound paid under protest against demands amounting o Bz 3975 million (31 March 2023: Rs,
39,75 million) have been disclosed under balance with statutery/government authoritics in other assels,

Pased on the legal assessment, management believes that the possibility of musterinlizing sales tax demands is low, Accondingly, no
pravision is mede in the fnancial stotements for such demands:

Sobes tax demunds received of B 3070 million (31 March 2023 @ Rz 30.70 million) (amount paid under protest of Bs 6,19 million
(31 Murch 2023 ; Bz, 6.19 million)) (ol of which Bs. 86 million (3] Muorch 2023 ; Rs. L.86 million) is pending for refund from
department as he cases hid been disposed ofl in fwvor of the Holding company) from various sales tax anthorities for which the
management believes that the possibility of materializing the demmd is remote.

{iii) Sales fax demunds received of Rs 2BI.70 million (31 March 2023 ¢ Rs, 283,70 million) (amount paid under prolest of Rs 70.93

million (31 March 2023 70093 million) classifying mobile phone under residunry entry under sehedule- ¥, whereas as per lawyer's
opinion produet is well covered in specifie entry 39 under schedule <1V for which minagement also believes thot the possibility of
mulerializing the sales tux demand s low. Aceondingly, no provision is made in the Gnancial stslements for such demands,

{ivi-As per Custom Dept, "Camers Module for mobile phone™ is neither similae nor identical with “Digital SUll image video comerss”

and {hus the items “Camicra Module for mobile phong” is totally different from “IHgital still image video comerus, henee availed
cxemption i not eligible 1o Holding company.

According (0 the Holding compuny, the Holding company have mghtly claimed exemption from the payment of Social Welfare
Surcharge vide notifieation Mo | L2018 CT under SR Mo 30 doted 02,02 2018 which exemplts “Digital Still Image video cameras"
falling under the Hesding 8525 8020, considering camera module & digitol still image video cameris serving the same purposs
which is copturing the image ond stored in data bank, Therefore, thie Holding company have done no mistake by claiming exemplion
under above said notification. The period in which the Holding eampany had claimed this exemplion is 2nd Feb 2008 (o 315t Jul
2019, Total amount involved is Rs: 23,71 million (31 March 2023: 25.71 million). Agninst the order passed by Commissioner, the
Holding company have filed an-nppenl before the CESTAT Delhi & deposited Ha 156 million (31 Muarch 2023: 156 million) of

il justify the elmim.

above aount for filing the appeal uqaﬂﬂwd:muicr liw, As per the consultant, the Flolding company have a good eass to argie P

| /\qf;}/\'(l
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{v})

()

(i)

Senrch was conducted by Dircetorate of Revenie ntelligence (DRI} at Holding company’s premises on Felroary 089, 2022, During
investigntion, questions were rised on inferpretaiion issue for chusilication oo inporied display assembly. To avoid impecessary
business interruption, the Holding company had decided o make o deposit of Rs, 40 million under protest, The Holding company
Do ot peceived wny show couse notice or demand from the Depardment, The management i ol the opinion that the Holding
company s in complinnce of liw and the Holding company bas strong chances of suceess nguinst any dispute/emand md o

Conocls ] Service tax

During the review of tmnsactions of cerlain thied partics, the Directorule General of Goods and Serviee Tix {DGGT) kieghambi, LT,
hias identified certain sale aned purchase iransactions which wos execoted by the Holding company with those parics, Based on that,
the Department has fssued o show canse potice dated July 30, 2022 1o the Holding company for the reversal of nput Tax Credit of
K. 928105 million (3150 March 2023; Ks, Y20 million) (mmount paid under protest of Bs, 20 million (3150 March 2025; Rs, 20
million) reloted to earlier years, The Holding company bas filed interim reply on June 21, 2023 betore the aforementioned wcdjucating
authority, Management has obtained o legal opinion from the lawyers wnd based on such assessment, the Holding compony does not
expect any financial exprsure and belicve that il has o strong case mnd socondingly, wo such reversal of Input Tax Credit will be
required, Accordingly, no penalty, {f ony, will slso be leviable g per the assessment of the management,

Further, oul of transaetions of cedain thivd parties under review of DGGE, show cause nolice hag been issued by GST deparlmenl.
Delbi of s, 602,69 million on dated December 11, 2023 and Rs, 34 1,85 miltion (oot of Bs, 37 114 million) on dited September 23,
2023 alang with penalty in relation o cernin ransactions with few parties. The Holding company has Bled the reply agains the
ahow cause nolices and conclugion pending for completion. Az mutter pending before DGGE and GET department. Dethi are for the
sume transactons, hence, il shoold he pssessed by the single suthorily Manapement has obtained o legol opinion from the lowyers
wned based on such pssessment, the Holding compuny does not expect any financial exposure wnd believe that it bas a strong case unid
secordingly, no such reversal of Input Tax Credit will be required. Accordingly, no penalty, it mny, will also he leviable as per the

nssessment of the managemenl.

[uring the review of mransactions of cedlain third paries, the Directorate General of Goods and Service Tax (DGG) - Gorugram, his
dentified certain sale and purchase transoctions whicl was executed by the Holding company with those pertics. Based on aat, e
Department has issoed a premiliary show canse notice duted Jun 12, 2024 for the reversal of Biput Tax Credit along with penalty for
Tes, 36437 million (31 March 2023 Rs. nil million) {smount paid under protesi of Rs. 25 million (3160 March 2023; Bs. 25
million)) related to earlier years, The Holding company is in process of filling the reply apainst intimation. Management has
obtuined o legnl opinion from the lawvers and based on such sssessment, the Holding company does not expect any lnancial
exposure and believe tha it hus u strong case and accordingly, no such reversal/penaliy will be required.

[0 GET Tax demands received of Bs, 9,69 million (31 March 2023: nil million) (amount paid under protest of Rs, (L001 (31 March

(c)
U]

2023: il million) on account of different demnnds received npainst GST Audite for varions states under seetion 65 of CGST Act for
different pare radsed by G871 Depariment. Replies have been filed against cach demand . Mansgement §s in the view that the Holding
company Is nol anticipating any linbility against these demands,

Others

"The Holding company has fled a eivil suit against Telefonaklisbolaget LM Ericsson ('Ericsson') befiee the Hon"hle Distriet Court,
Gautr. Budh Nagar in the month of January 2015 in relation to alleped stondord essential Patents of Erfcsson. M
Telefonakticholaget LM Ericsson {*Fricsson') filed a counter suit alleging infringement of it's alléged patents against the Holding
compiry in the month of March 2015, Since then, both the suils have been transfrred/clubhed Before the Hon ble Delli High Court
and are pending finol sdjudication.

Hon'ble Wigh Cours, Delhi vide its order dated June 22, 2016 has passed an interim order wheremn the Holding company was
injuncied from manufacturing, importing. selling fis devices, subject (o the condition of deposit of Rs, 300 million (as modificd in
uppenl) with the Registror Generl of Delhi Wigh Court. The Holding company has complied with the said order and deposited o sim
of Bs, 300 million, a3 i resull of which, the apemtion of Interim Ovder was stayed 1l the final disposal of the main st The single
bench of the Delhi ligh court kas passed the arder doted 28.03.2024 allowing e suit of Ericsson by awarding Rs. 2,440 million as
damages towirds infringement of patents us claimed by Ericsson. Subscquently, the Holding compuany has chullenged the order did
2R.03.2024 in appeal hefore the division beneh of Delbi High court on 07 05,2004, the grounds of appeal includes  damages on
necount of expired patents, miscaloulation of damagesfinterest, patents are in natare of algorithm kence not patentable and chaimahle
and other legnl grounds, Furiher, in respotise o the appeal (iled by the Holling company, the Cour hind direeted both the parties Lo
setile the issue/dispute in acvordance with the settlement agreement executed between the Ericsson and some other party Tor which

the court has lixed the date of hearing gn TSR Tuly 2024, Based on legal sdvise and munogement’s nssessment thereal, the Holding -~
enmpany does nol expect my H|innciﬁ;xpu?ﬁhﬁ upon finel settlement and aecondingly no provision hes been mude in the financial

sitement of the Molding oompany.,
]
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Ciiy On July 1. 2017, Research and Collaboration Apreement {'ROA™) was exeeted between the Holding comipany, Minellectuols LLF
ol Mokin Technolopies 0% a confirming pary. Under the REA, the partics were to explore and work 1owards (he possibility of
techoical ool research collaborations between Mintellectuals™okia and the Holding company,

The Holding company made payments (o Mintellechiols LLEP under the RCA, with a view (o feceive the Research and Collaboration
deliversbles envisuped onder the Agroemenl. The partics dlso agreed not o challengefassert any legal rights in relotion to
Technically Mecessary Patents, iUany, ased/practiced during the term ol this agreement, The payments in gquestion were being made
by the Holding company in liew of the execulory consideration/promise/obligation of Mintellectunls/Mokia to enable and assisi
resesrch and collaboration in terms of the RCA and no technically necessary patents seere nsedfpracticed,

Consequently. the Holding company declired the RCA 1o be fustrated s there was no consideration in s Twvour and consequently
stopped making payments 1o Mintellectuals, As g result of this dispute, Mintellectusls inftinled arbitration proceedings for recovery
of armounts e the 4th and 5th guader doder the RCA, which was denied by the Holding compaiy along with secking nelund of the
amwunis paid for the first three quarters under the RCA {("First Arbitration™), In relation 1o the First Arbitration, an awird dated July
15, 2020 hind been passed holding the Holding company liable o pay approximately Bs, 240 million, The Holding eompuany hos
challenged the award of the First Arbitration before the Hon'ble High Courl of Delhi, which i admitted snd pending final -
odjudication. Withoul prejudice 1 it's challenge o the sward, the Holding company his aiready paid R, 27103 millions (ineluding
TS net of GST) ond submitted bank puaraniee of Rs 119,50 millions with the Repisirar General, Delhi High Court. Dasis the
Hobding compuany’s pmnogement assessment and supported by independent legal opinion from the legal counsel of the Holding
compary, suhject o the pending challenge, the entire amount paid by the Holding company under this agreement o Mintellectuals (s
fully recoverable on legal grounds in Twvour of the Holding compony.

Mintellectuals had initiated another arbirabion proceeding to clalin smount allegedly due to it for the 6th quarier onwards (“Second
Arbitrution™), which iy pending ot the arbitrnl wibunal ond no smount heve been wdjudicated as vet on the clmms raised hy
Mintollectunts, Without prejudice to the seme, the Holding company has deposited the post-dated cheques amounting ta Rs, 22622
millions 45 o seeurity with the concerned arbitral tribunal, Management has taken legal opinfon from the lawyers and as per
management’s assessment, Holding eompany has strong cise belore arbitral tibunsl on the grownd presented by the Holding

caomipany.

(i) On November 29, 2017, Shore Subseriplion & Sharcholder Agreement (*SSSHA) was exccuted between theHolding company,
Sponsors of the Holding company and UNIC Memory Toechnology (HK) Lid, (TINIC?). There were cetain dispute between the
paartizs [or which arbitration proceeding was initiated,

During the arbitration, settlenment was arvived between the parties on the basis of which Consent Award dated Seplember 9, 2021
{*the Conaent™), was passed by the arhioral toibunal,

In terms of the Consent Award UNIC has epprosched Dedbi High Court which is pending adjudication. The Holding company has
evatuated the cote nnd does not fivesee any additionnl lnkility towards TINIC,

{iv) The Dolby had claimed ownership of 8 portiolio of 7 poicnts, these patents cover standurdized techmology for Advanced Audio
Coding (AACY and Unifed Speech md Audio Coding (USACY), The Dolby assert that the holding company has heen in discussions
for the lawfil use of these patents since 2018 bul has delayed concluding an sgreement, choraeierizing them as an unwilling licenses,
Accordingly, Dolby had filed a suit on 30 Aprl 2024 agoinst theHolding eompany before the Delhi High Count, thelolding
eompany is in the process Glling reply before the court in this case, Based on legal advise and monagement’s asssssiment thereof, the
holding company docs nol expect any fingneinl exposure and accordingly no provision has been made in the financial satement of
thve Holding company.

v} The Halding corpany has anderdaken export oblizations of Rs. 13834 million (31 Muareh 2023 : 164.2% million ) pending against
the Bsuanee of nport Licenses for the Import of Capital Goods. =

{Thais space fay been fntearionally feff Mok}
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3 Employee stock option plans:

I'he plons existing during the year are as follows ;

MNumber of optivns approved

5% ol Eguity Poid up Slhire copital

Method of setilement {Cush { Eguity)

Cush/Equity

Vesting conditions

The employes should be on il of the Holding
Company or ity subsidimy

The details of activity under ESOP Schemes have been summarized helow®:

31 Mareh 2024 31 Mureh 2023
Particulars Number of Weighted MNumber of VisiEated
Avernge AVErage
options exercise price options exercise price
Outstanding at the beginning of vear 49.727.550 #.64 49.161.554 B.35
Ciptions granied during the year - - 1,201,872 24.86
Exereised / Seitled during ihe yeur - - 152,965 19.21
Forfieted d.lrrinE the yoar = - 482,907 I #6059
Chtstwnding ut the end of the year 40,727,550 8.6l 48 727 550 B.64
Exureisable ug alend of the vear 44 K50 558 7:59 44,449 927 7.58

The details of the ESOP outstanding ane s follows:

Options Cutstunding as ul 31 March 2024

Options Quistanding as at 31 March 2023

e Mo. of shiares Weightod Weighted Mo, of shares Weighted Wighted
Range of cxamies poice per arising out of Average Avernpe arising oul of Averape Avergy
e aplions remmining  Exercise price apticns remaining Exereise price

conlkaelial il eomtractual life

Rs1-Hs3,125 20,444,744 .75 2.50 20,444,744 176 .50
Rs. 6,250 - Rs. 9.375 1,639,200 218 T2 1,639,200 ENE 1.2
R5.9.375-Rs. 12,500 18,508, 158 - 1145 18,508,158 - 10,93
Rs. 15.625 - Rs, 18,750 7933575 I8 14.82 7933575 299 1482
R 21875 - Re 25000 200,872 ERL 24,86 1,200 472 4.00 14 .86

The shire based payment expense fncurred during the year |s shown in the following table:

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Expenge ariging from equity-seilled share-based paymient frensactions

{Eneame) [ Expense arising from settlement of oplicns

.02

16.43

a0z

16,83
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37 DPetails of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

U the basis of confirmation obtaioed from suppliers who have registered themselves under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprise Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 20063 and based on the infoemation available with the Holding Company, duey
disclosed as per the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 at the year end ore below:

P?:-I Particulars 31 March 2024 | 31 Muoreh 2023
| ['he FHI_II..'-IFII:I.' it remaining wnpoid o any supplier as ol the end of snch 9.9 192,17
acoounting yeor,
o [The interest due thereon remaining unpaid 1o any sapplier s al the end of each 2.63 119
®  |uceounting year. : :
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 along with the
3 |omounts of he payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during cach Mil il
accounting vear.
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment
4 |{which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but withow Nil Nil
seliding the interest specificd under this Act
5 The amount of interest pecrued and remaining unpaid st the end of each accounting 182 L0
yenr; td ' ’
The amount of further interest remaining duc and payvahle even in tie succesding
6 |vesrs, until such dote when the interest dues as above are actuatly paid to the small Wil Mil
enterprise.

33 Detnils of Expenditure towards Corparate Social Responsibility us per section 135 of the Companies Aet, 2013 and rules

thereon:-
5. |Particulars 31 Mareh 2024 | 31 March 2023
M.
1 |Gross amount required to be spent by the Holding Company during the year 179 10,03
2 slAmount spent in cash during the year on: 10,749 10,03
a)  |Constroction! acquisition of any assel - .
by |Sofeguarding environmental sustninability = -
e} |Promotion of education . 10.03
d)  |Upliftment of Rural Poor Youth - -
e} |Uplifiment of Sports and Culural Activities : -
I} |Protection of national heritage, art and culluse 1079 -
31 |Shortfall of the end of the vear 3 -
4 |Reason for Shortfadl MA NA
5 [Contribution to riest contralled by the Holding Company il Wil
6 |Movement in Provigion made il Nil

{ Thiz space has been intentionally left Mank)
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M lmport of mobile phones only altracts Special Duty of Customs in e ol Excise (CVD) which is couivalent o cxeise duty
applicable on like goods as if manudactured or prodluced in Indin. Accordingly, mobile phones manulactured in India are subject 1o
exoise duty-at the rate of 13.5% (including ROCT of 1%) if Cenval Credit on inputs and capital goods is svailed (rate of duty was
7.21% (including NCCD of 1%) till 28 February 2015} and 2% (including NCCD of 199) i such Cenvat Credit on inputs and capitnl
goods is not avatled.

This hos been Turther elarified by the Honble Supreme Court ol India in the similar cases by tuling that the benefit ol exemption /
concessional rate of excise duty, which is subject to n condition that no Cenval credit on inputs or eapital poods used in the
manlfciore ol such goodd shall be inken, is also available w the imporiers of ke poods for payment of CVD wuler Custims.

During the financial years 2014 <2015 and 2015 - 2016, the Holding Company was clearing the imported mobile phones by paving
CVD of customs ol higher rate of 7.21% before March 01, 20015 and 13.50% fom March 01,2015 instead of 2% during respective
periods. The Holding Company got re-assessed bills of entrics amounting to Rs 638.47 million during the financial yvear 2017-18
Post clariffcation issued by the Hon'ble Supreme Court in M5 SRE case discussed above, and afler re-assessment of bills of enlries,
the above said CVT amount became Tully recoverable, Accordingly, the Holding Compony has claimed refund s per the Customs
Al 1962,

At 3181 Maurch 2024, total smount recoverable amounting w Rs. 306,09 million (31 March 2023; Rs, 31537 million) (including
recoverable charges for delaved pasment amounting 1© Rs, 24585 millien (31 March 2023; Rs. 251.54 million)) was recorded, has
been disclosed under “Balonee with statotory/government authorities” based on legal opinion obtained,

(This space fas been fmentionally left blank)
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35 Investments accounted for using the equity method

Set ot below are the associate and joint venture of the group as ol 3150 Mateh 2024 which, in the opinion of the directors, are
miterial (o the group, The entites listed below hove share capital consisting solely of equity shares, which are held dircetly by
the group. The proportion of ewnership Intereat is the same as the proportion of voting rights held.

. Principmal Carrying amount
Name of the entity Muture place of Mt March 2024 31st March 2023
husiness
MagicTel Solutions Private Limited Agsocinle Inclin 12.69 12.90
Yamuna Electronies Muom faciurdng Cluster Privite Joint veniurs India 47.53 47.97
662 6087

Total

“Ihrough the shareholders agreement of Yamuna Eleetronics Manofaciuring Cluster Private Limited, the Group hag joint
contral over the entity, even though it only holds 45.33% effectivaly, of the voling rights,

{1} Commitments and contingent labilities in respect of associates and joinl ventures

The group has no contingent liabilitiés or capital commitments refating to iis inlerest in MagicTel Solution Private Limited and
Yamuna Electronics Manufaciuring Closter Private Limited s at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,

The tables below provide summarised Anancial information e joint ventures und nssociates of the grovp. The information
disclosed refleats the amounts presented in the fAnancial statements of the relevant associnles and joint ventures and not the Lava
International Limited’s share of those amounts.

Summnarized Balance Sheet
Yamuna Electronics Manufacioring

Cluster Private Limited

MagicTel Solutions Private Limited

3ist March 2024 31 March 2023 31st March 2024 31 March 2023

Current assets 3.50 2.249 124.31 (1.6l
Mon-current assets 43.54 49,63 - 141.45
Current linhilities (0,19} (6,36} {19.62) (19.62)

Mon-Current linbilitics - -

Net assets Sl.85 51.59 104.69 122.44
Proportion of Group's ownership 25.00% 25.00%, 45.33% 45.33%
Clurrying amaont of the Investment 1269 12.90) 47,93 47.97

{"This space has heen intentionally lefl hlank)
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Summarised statement of profit and loss
MagicTel Solutions Private Limited Yamuna Electronics Manufacturing
Cluster Private Limited

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 3 Mareh 2024 31 Murch 2023
Revenue 593 .1 - -
Oiher income : - .01 B -
Interest income .69 202 - -
Cost of Sales (5.85) (1327)
Diepreciation and amorisation - (0.1 . -
Interesi expense (00,043} (.00 (ELIM) (kL)
Ineome s expensed{incmme) ({06} (.03} - .
Emploves bencfit expenss (2.12) (3.62) — -
Other expensis {0.33) (.al) (17.73) (0.1}
Profit for the year (0.74) (1. 70) (17.73) (a1
Lesg- Restalement related to carlior 1764 )
vear corrected in currenl vear R _ -
Other comprebensive income - - - -
Total comprehensive income (0.74) (0,70} (0.009) (0L11)
Tax adjustment of earlier years - .
Proportion of CGrroup’s ownership 25.00% 25.00% 45.33% 45.33%
Ciaind {Loss) from profit of
associate’ joint venture (0.18) (0. 18) fOLDS) (0.05)

{This space fas heen infentionally feff blank)
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36 Lease Liabilities

el ¢ Jinbilities:

The details of contractiml muturitios of lease abilities as ot March 31, 2024 apd Moarch 31, 2023 an an undiscounted basis ore as follows -

) 31 Mairch 31 Murch
Parti 1
nrticulars 2024 2023
Payable nol later thon | year 42,70 18,40
Poyvable Imter thon | veas and o Totor than 5 year 6675 10847
Later than 5 year < -
109,45 147.87
Particolars Office Factary Warehouxe Vehicle Tatal
huilding hilding Builidling
Ax ot 31 March 2022 43.40 117,30 1,849 - 162,59
Addition in lease liability - - - 1908 19,08
Ereletion in lesse lability - - - - -
Interest expense on lease linbility a8 13.0% ih 20 055 15,68
Payment made during CY 13.79 33.93 (5% 417 5248
As i 31 March 2023 3445 9,46 150 1546 147.87
Addition in lease lability - . - - -
Dieletion in lense linbility - . . ‘ .
Imerest expense on lease hability 384 [0, 76 017 1:53 16.30
Payimient made during CY 15.28 35.28 0.63 3.51 54,72
Agat 31 March 2024 13502 71.93 1.02 13,45 119,45
Moo Cuarrent portion 1031 44.08 .48 11.29 .75
Corrent maturities of lease linhility 12,71 IT..iﬁ 0,54 2.13 42,70

{Thiv ypwrce oy beert intentionalfy feft flank)
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37 Grouop Information

Additional information, us required under Schedule 111 to the Companies act, 2013 for entities consolidated as subsidiaries, Controlled trust. Associates and joint ventures -

5. Name of the entity in the Country of Yearended — Effective Net Assets, i.e., total Share in Profit or Loss Share in ather Share in total comprehensive
No. Group Incorporatio Holding assets minus total comprehensive income income
n liabilities
As % of Amount As% of  Amount As % of  Amount As % of Amount
consolidated consolidated consolidated other consolidated total
net assels profit or loss comprehensive comprehensive
income income

(i} Parent (Holding Company)

1 Lavainternational Limited India 31 March 2024 - 97.48% 928776 126.66% 428.78 0.06% 0.23 -230.04% 428,55
31 March 2023 - T0.63% 9.583.94 46.95%, 3533.30 5.72% {2.14) 45 00% 35544
(ii} Subsidiaries
Indian )
I Lava Enterprises Limited  India 31 March 2024 99.05%  0.54% 51.25 000 {0.02) - - 0.02% (0,02
31 March 2023 99.05%  0.38% 51.26 0.01% 03 - - 3.01% (.08
2 Sojo Distribution Private  Tndia 31 March 2024 90.00% -0.13% (14.35) -1.31% {4.43) - - 6:51% [4.43)
Limited 31 March 2023 90.00%  -0.07% (2.50) -0,44% 3.30) < - )47, (3.30)
3 Sojo Manufacturing Irdia 31 March 2024 99.97%  0.39% 37.58 0.04%% 013 - - A 19% 013
Services (A.P.) Private 31 March 2023 99.97%  0.28% 37.45 0.21% {1.59) - - 0,20 (1.5%)
4 Sojo Manufacturing [ndia 31 March 2024 99.95%  022% 20.64 1.3 % (0.09) - - (.14% {00,005
Services Private Limited il March 2023 99.95%  0.15% 20.77 -0.01% (0.08) - - -0.01% (0. 08)
Foreign
I LAVA Intemational (H.K.) Hong Kong 31 March 2024 [100.00% 2.05% 195.66 -1.95% {6.60) - - 2. 7% (660
Limited 31 March 2023 100.00% - 22.06% 2.993.63 29.8T% 224.78 - - 28.46% 224,78
2 Xolo International (H.K)  Hong Kong 31 March 2024 100.00% 0352% - wm_.mu -1 7050 {60.75% M " A9 32%; (60.75)
Limited 31 March 2023 100.00% 4.64% mu.q._.m.w... 19.72% 148.36 - - ———— 15.78% | 48.36
el ) —a™
3 Lava Technologies DMCC UAE 31 March 2024 100.00% 4.41% 419.69. S87% - 19.88 . 3 SR - 19.88
31 March 2023 100.00%  6.66% | G560 5.16% i8.86 - - __F %% IR R
s
..\. Z rd

_a



5. Name of the entity in the

Mo. Group

g

Lava Technologies LLC

(USA)

Pt. Lava Mobile Indonesia

Lava Intermational DMCC,

UAE*

Lava Mobility (Private)
Limited, Sri Lanka

Lava Maobile Mexico
SDERL.DECV.

Lava International
{Myanmar) Co. Limited

Lava intemational (Nepal)

Private Limited

Lave International

{Bangladesh) Limited

Country of
Incorporatio
n

UsA

Indonesia

UAE

Sri Lanka

Mexico

Myanmar

Nepal

Bangladesh

Mon Controlling interest in all

subsidiaries

Year ended Effective Net Assets, i.e., total Share in Profit or Loss Share in other Share in total comprehensive
Holding assets minus total comprehensive income income
liahilities

As % of Amount As% of  Amount As % of As % of Amount

consolidated consofidated consolidated other consolidated total

net assets profit or loss comprehensive comprehensive

income income

31 March 2024 100,007 0.44% 4216 0.00% - - 0.00% -
31 March 2023 100.00% 0.31% 41.55 0.00%% - - 0.00% -
31 Mearch 2024 95.00%  0.00% (0.00) 0.32% 1.07 - -1.58% .07
31 March 2023  95.00%:  -0.01% (1.09) 0.00% = - 0.00% -
31 March 2024 100.00%  0.00% - -20.37% (6854 - 101.36% (68.94)
31 March 2023 100.00%  -0.33% (44.27) 0.00% - - 1.00% -
31 March 2024 100.00%  0.02% [.78 0.00% - 002 - 0:02%, (002}
31 March 2023 100.00% 0.01% 1.61 0.00%4 - - 0.00%% -
31 March 2024 99.00%  0.00% - -0.07% - 022 - 0.33% (0. 22]
31 March 2023 99.00%  0.00% 0.22 0.00%; 3 - 0.00% -
31 Morch 2024 99.00%  0.01% 0.72 -0.13% = 042 - 0.62% (0.42)
31 March 2023 95.00%  0.01% 1.13 0.00% - - 0. 0% -
31 March 2024 100.00%  0.02% 232 0.29% 0.98 - -1.44% 0,98
3] March 2023 100.00% 0.01% 1.35 0.21% 158 - 20% 1.59
31 March 2024 99.99%  0.11% 10.10 -0.03% (0.10) - 0.14% (0.10)
31 March 2023 99.99%  0.08% 10.30 00005 (0.02) - 0.00% (0.02)
31 March 2024 ~0.01% (0.54] 6,42% 21.74 - -31.97% 21.74
31 March 2023 ~0.16% (22.28) 0.00% - - 0.00% =




&.  Name of the entity in the Country of Year ended Effective Net Assets, i.e., total Share in Profit or Loss Share in other ‘Share in total comprehensive
No. Group Incarporatio Holding assets minus total comprehensive income income
n linbilities
As % of Amount As % of  Amount As % of  Amount As % of Amount
consolidated consolidated consolidated other consolidated total
nel assets profit or loss comprehensive comprehensive
income income
(iii) Associates
Indian
| MagicTel Solutions Private India 31 March 2024 2500% 0.13% 12.69 =0.03% (0.18) - - 0.27% (018}
Limited 31 March 2023 23.00%  0.10% 12.90 ~(.02% (0.18) - . -0.02% (0.18)
(iv) Joint venture
{acconnted for using equity method)
Indian
| Yamuna Electronics India 31 March 2024 4533% 0.50% 47.93 .01 % (0.05) - - 0.07% {0.05)
Manufsoruring Cluster 31 March 2023 45.33% 0.35% 47.97 -0.01% (0.05) - - 0,07 % (0.05)
Private Limited (YEMCPL)
(v} Controlled Trust
Indian
I Lava Employee Welfare India 31 March 2024 - 0% (.60 .03% 005 - - . 13%% 0.09
Trust 31 March 2023 SO I .51 0.01% .08 - - 0.01% 0.08
Inter company eliminations / 31 March 2024 - -0.70% (638.24) 14.01% 4742 [00.06% 40677 527.63% (338.89)
adjustments on consolidation 31 March 2023 - -500% (691.17) -1.24% (9367 0428%  (35.29) 3.28% 2585
Total 31 Mareh 2024 100% 9.527.40 100% 338.52 100%  406.54 100% - 68.02
Total 31 March 2023 100% 1356926 100% T52.46 100% 117.29) 100%s TRY.85

* Lava International DMCC. UAE cease to exist w.e.f. 06th December, 2023, (Tt has been Incorrecity disclosed ag cense to exist w,e.f 12th June 2023 in the peevious financial statement i.e for the

period ending 315t March 2023.)

The financial siatements for the current financial year have been prepared witheut considering financial statements of China Rird Cantro Ameércia, S.AL wholly owned subsidiary of the reporting
entity. Previous vear figures (3 15t March 2023) have been restated without considering financial statement of China Bird Centro America. S.A (Refer Note 400

(Thix gpetee has been intertionally left blank)
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Research and development expenditure:

The Group has duly carried out its research and development setivities during the year and the detdils of related
expenditure are given below:

Particulars a1
March 31 March 2023
2024
Amount charged to Statement of Profit and Loss 18830 155,88
Amount eapitalised
- Property, plant and equipment 327 11.89
191.57 167.77

The Holding Company has appeinted independent consultants for conducting a transfer pricing study to determine whether
the transactions with associated enterprises were undertaken at "arm’s length price”. The management confirms that all
international transactions with associate enterprises are underdaken at negotiated contracted prices on usual commercial
terms and Is confident of there being no adjustments on completion of the study, Adjustments, I any, arising from the
transfer pricing study shall be accounted for ns and when the study is completed.

MNote on Subsidiary nol included in Consolidated financial statement (CFS

The company has acquired 100% of the equity shares in China Bird Centro America, S.A. (CBCA), a Panama based
company which is into the business of selling the mobile phones in Latin America, CBCA is & handset seller in Latin
America with a distribution network consisting of mobile carriers, retailers and local distributors

The objective of the acquisition of CBUA was to provide the Company with access to an established market and consumer
base in Latin American countries and allow (o benefil from the growth of mobile handset market in Latin America,

The Company has acquired the China Bird Centro Ameries, 5.A. (CBCA) in Seplember 2021 by way of a share swap deal
and also entered into certain agresmenls berween the company, CBCA and CBCA's sharcholders, Under the share swap
deal, the company issued 5% of its equity shares to the shareholders of CBCA and Shareholders of CBCA has transferred
100% of CBCA shares to the company.

Based on Audiled Financial stalements shared by the Management of CBCA, the Censolidated Financial statement of the
company have been prepared and approved for the financial year for 2022-23 including the balance sheet as at March 31,
2023, the statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the statement of changes in Equity and the
statement of cash flows for the year then ended of CBCA

The Management of CBCA has nol cooperated and shared the financial statement and other required information for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements for Financial Year 23-24. lence, the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 3 st March 2024 have been prepared without considering balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, the statement
of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the statement of changes in Equity and the statement of cash

Aows for the year then ended of CBCA.

The board of the company has been apprised of the current development of the non - cooperation of CBCA managemenl
in sharing required information despite numerous follow ups by the company, The board has advised to the management
to enforce terms of the agreement entered into during the acquisition of CBCA and take necessary legal course of action to
protec! interest of the company

As the company has prepared the consolidated financial statements without considering balance sheet as at March 31,
2024, the statement of Profit and Luss including Other Comprehensive Income, the statement of changes in Equity and the
statement of cash flows for the vear then ended of CBCA, to ensure comparability of the linancial information presented
in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 315t March 2024, the previous year figures has been restated
without considering balance sheet as at March 11, 2023, {he statement of Profit and Loss including Other C 1.‘1Tnprc|1un£-.l1.-’f:
Income, the statement of changes in Equity and the statement of cash flows for the yoar then ended of CBCA. '

) f e
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Summary of effect on key items on restatement of previous year Hgures:

Particulars Restated consolidated | Erstwhile consolidated | Effect of excluding Profit
Profit and Loss Profit and Loss and Loss statement of
statement for the year | statement for the year | CRCA for the year ended
ended 31.03.23 ended 31.03.23 31.03.23
Revenue from 49.026.55 54.435.99 5,409.44
Operalions
Earnings beltore 2.513.36 292414 413,58
inlerest,
depreciation and
amortization
Profit before tax 859,36 988.06 126.50
Profit alier tax 752.46 879,75 127.29
Mon-Current 5,384,106 5,174.13 210,02
Assels
Current Asseis 17.308.83 20,086.77 -2,777.94
Equity 13,569.26 14,042.88 471 .44
Non-Current 398.63 308.63 -
Liability
Current Liability R.725.08 1,819.40 Y649

There are certain receivables and payables where the Holding Company imends 1o set ofT with each other, For the purpose
of presentation in fnancial statements, such receivables and pavables have been presented on net basis. The Group is in
process of obtaining the requisite approvals from the appropriate authorities in this regard.

There were no amounts which were required (o be transferred (o the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Group.

There were no significant adjusting events that ocourred subsequent to the reporting period other than the events disclosed
in the relevant notes,

The Group has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standard, for material foreseeable
losses, if any and to (he exteni ascerainable, on long term contracts including derivalive contracts.

The Group does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company
for holding any Benami property.

The Group has not been declared wilful defaulter as at the date of the balance sheel or on the date of approval of the
financial statements,

In respect of cerfain transactions pertaining to other company/companies relating 1o prior periods, the Directorate of
Enforcement (ED) has filed a case against the Company and ils former Managing Director which is sub-judice. On the
basis of the information available and the legal opinion obtained by the Company, the prospects of the case being
discharged is favarable, Accordingly, as on the date of approval of these financial results, the Company is not required to
make any adjustments, disclosures or given any offest to the fnancial stalements.

The Group have not traded or invested in (‘rypt(p@qrmnc} or Virtual Currency during the financial year, / f'f .

i

/
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There is no income surrendered or diselosed as income during the current or previous year in the lax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of acenunt,

The Group is in compliance with the number of layers preseribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Companies (Restriction on pumber of Layers) Rules, 2017 (as amended).

The Group has no transactions during the year with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act,
1956,

The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
{intermediaries) with the understanding that the inlermediary shall:

() direetly or indireetly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b} provide any guarantee, security ot the like to or en behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

The Group has not received any Tund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimite Beneficiaries.

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (*Code’) relating to employee benefits, during employment and post-employment
benefits. has received the Presidential assent in September 2020. This Code has been published in the Gazette of India,
However, the effective date from which the changes are applicable is yet 1o be notified and the rules for gquantifying the
financial impact are also yet to be issued. The Group will evaluate the impact of the Code and will give appropriate impact
in the financial statements in the period in which the Code becomes effective and the related rules are published.
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